MOUNT CARMEL

0@ tace Zo pul dateit Acold
’ ¢

BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN MEETING AGENDA

10.

June 26, 2025 - 5:30 P.M.
City Hall, 100 Main Street E.

Call to Order

Invocation

Pledge of Allegiance
Roll Call

Welcome from the Mayor

Approval and/or Correction of the minutes of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen Meeting dated May 22,
2025, monthly financial report, and department reports.

Visitors’ Comments:

Old Business:
A. SECOND READING: Ordinance 25-541: Retail Package Store Licensing

New Business:

DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: Resolution 25-653: Personnel Policies and Procedures
DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: Resolution 25-654; Commit Additional Funds to CDBG Ladder
Truck Purchase Grant

DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: Carter's Valley Fire Dept. Request for Turkey Shoots
DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: Surplus ltems

DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: K-9 Drug Enforcement Grant

@w >

mo o

Board Comments: Mayor, Vice-Mayor, Aldermen, Staff Comments: City Manager, Asst. City Manager,
City Attorney

11. Adjourn



MOUNT CARMEL

.7{/,;&%: 2c /an‘r/cldn pryysg

TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL

BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN MEETING MINUTES

A regularly scheduled meeting of the Town of Mount Carmel, Tennessee Board of Mayor and Aldermen
was held at Town of Mount Carmel City Hall, 100 East Main Street, on May 22, 2025, at 5:30p.m.

CALL TO ORDER
5:30 pm by Mayor John Gibson

INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Led by Vice-Mayor Bare and Alderman Shugart

ROLL CALL:

BMA Present | Absent City Administration Present
Alderman Darby Patrick Jim Stables, City Manager
Aiderman Philip Binstock Joe May, City Attorney
Alderman James Cross Tyler Williams, Asst. City Manager/CFO/Recorder
Alderman Mindy Shugart
Alderman Jim Gilliam
Vice-Mayor Jim Bare
Mayor John Gibson

ANANANENENENAN

WELCOME FROM THE MAYOR
Mayor Gibson welcomed everyone

MOTION to suspend the rules to proceed with New Business Items A and B.
Motion: Alderman Shugart
Second: Alderman Binstock
Approved: All present voting in favor

NEW BUSINESS
A. PROCLAMATION: National Police Week and Peace Officer's Memorial Day

B. PROCLAMATION: Recognizing Mount Carmel Elementary School as a Tennessee Reward School



APPROVAL and/or correction of the April 24, 2025, Board of Mayor and Aldermen meeting
minutes, departmental and financial reports.

Motion: Alderman Shugart

Second: Alderman Binstock

Approved: All present voting in favor

VISITOR COMMENTS
Senior Center Director Sue Jarret spoke concerning the recent delivery of a new activity bus
at the Senior Center.

OLD BUSINESS
A. SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING: Ordinance 25-540- An Ordinance of the Town of
Mount Carmel, Tennessee, Adopting the Annual Budget for the Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2025,
and Ending June 30, 2026

Motion: Alderman Shugart
Second: Alderman Binstock

AYES NAYS OTHER

Alderman Darby Patrick

Alderman Philip Binstock

Alderman James Cross

Alderman Mindy Shugart

Alderman Jim Gilliam

Vice-Mayor Jim Bare

ANIRNIANIR NI NI NI

Mayor John Gibson

NEW BUSINESS
C. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: To enter into a contract with TDOT for reimbursement of
routine maintenance of State Routes

Motion: Alderman Shugart
Second: Alderman Binstock

AYES NAYS OTHER

<

Alderman Darby Patrick

Alderman Philip Binstock

Alderman James Cross

Alderman Mindy Shugart

Alderman Jim Gilliam

Vice-Mayor Jim Bare

ANIANIENIE NI NN

Mayor John Gibson




. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: To enter into an administration agreement with First
Tennessee Development District regarding the LPRF grant at Mount Carmel Park

Motion: Alderman Shugart
Second: Alderman Binstock

AYES NAYS OTHER

Alderman Darby Patrick

Alderman Philip Binstock

Alderman James Cross

Alderman Mindy Shugart

Alderman Jim Gilliam

Vice-Mayor Jim Bare

AN NENE NN

Mayor John Gibson

. FIRST READING: Ordinance 25-541: Retail Package Store Licensing
Amendment to 8-206 to remove “Non-Profit” requirement to include any organization.

Motion: Alderman Cross
Second: Alderman Patrick

AYES NAYS OTHER

Alderman Darby Patrick

Alderman Philip Binstock

Alderman James Cross

Alderman Mindy Shugart

Alderman Jim Gilliam

Vice-Mayor Jim Bare

ANIANIE NI NI NN

Mayor John Gibson

Amendment to strike Section 8-311, number of licenses allowed to be issued.

Motion; Alderman Cross
Second: Alderman Patrick

AYES NAYS OTHER
Alderman Darby Patrick v
Alderman Philip Binstock v
Alderman James Cross v
Alderman Mindy Shugart v




Alderman Jim Gilliam

Vice-Mayor Jim Bare

Mayor John Gibson

v
v
v

Amendment to 8-309 to define where establishments may be located as 200 feet from

building to building from any church, school or other place of public gathering.

Motion; Alderman Cross
Second: Alderman Binstock

AYES

NAYS

OTHER

Alderman Darby Patrick

Alderman Philip Binstock

Alderman James Cross

Alderman Mindy Shugart

Alderman Jim Gilliam

Vice-Mayor Jim Bare

Mayor John Gibson

ANIANIANEENE NI NN

Amendment to 8-309 to allow permits to only be issued in commercial and business zones.

Motion: Alderman Cross
Second: Alderman Patrick

AYES NAYS OTHER
Alderman Darby Patrick v
Alderman Philip Binstock v
Alderman James Cross v
Alderman Mindy Shugart v
Alderman Jim Gilliam v
Vice-Mayor Jim Bare v
Mayor John Gibson v
Approval of Ordinance as amended.
Motion: Alderman Cross
Second: Alderman Patrick
AYES NAYS OTHER
Alderman Darby Patrick v
Alderman Philip Binstock v
Alderman James Cross v




Alderman Mindy Shugart

Alderman Jim Gilliam

Vice-Mayor Jim Bare

Mayor John Gibson

ANIANEANIN

ADJOURN

Motion: Alderman Shugar at 6:32 P.M.

Second: Alderman Binstock
Approved: All present voting in favor

Attest:

Approve:

Tyler Williams, City Recorder

John Gibson, Mayor




MOUNT CARMEL

S petnce Lo prpt onise e

FINANCIAL REPORT
TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TN
Month ending 05/31/2025
GENERAL FUND: BALANCE:
Checking Account (First Horizon) $1,660,682.73

LGIP Investment Account

Capital Outlay Savings (First Horizon)

$5,134,094.25

$1,399,994.63

TOTAL: $8,194,771.61

DRUG FUND: BALANCE:
Drug Fund Checking (First Horizon) $14,576.16
Special Drug Fund (First Horizon) $1,038.95
TOTAL: $15,615.11

SEWER FUND: BALANCE:
Checking Account (First Horizon) $982,959.95
Savings/Bond Reserve 2014 (First Horizon) $105,577.91
Savings/Sewer Savings 2014 (First Horizon) $532,821.06
TOTAL: $1,621,358.92
GRAND TOTAL CASH ON HAND: $9,831,745.64

Current Savings Rate: 3.20%
Current LGIP Rate: 4.28%



%/P' 1559~

(87°£98'291)

(87'£98'/8T)

(o9'ssb's2)

0000052 sBuiutes 15a190u1 0019€
%00"00T 00°005'T 00°0 00°0 000057 suonnquiuo) brug 002s€
%E0'6L 09'085'T (ob'614) 000 000002 S1500) puy saul{ HNo) AWno) 0916€
%00°'00T 00°000'T 00°0 000 00°000'T saul4 pajefy Bnig ov1SE
%91°19 86'882'ST (zo'112'6) (£re0z'D) 00'000'sT Juswaniojug paads 010yd Xspay (4813
%08°LS 78°£68'8T (81'201'12) (ST°206'1) 00°000°0S §150D puy sauld unoD AD 0T1SE
%0008 000 (00°01) 00°0 000§ SOIAIDS 104 S3B1RYD - [013U0D [eUlUY 0TSPE
%00"00T 00°008 00°0 00°0 00°008 924 uoney) L3 Teebe
%ST1°99- (19°628'12) (19'628'S) (19°628v5) 00°000°€€ penuo) Aemybiy a1e1s 0TEPE
%86'68C- (00'566°£5) (00°566'24) 00°0 0000002 8nuaARY JusWHeda( Al 0z/E€
%000 00°0 (00°000°s) 00'0 00"000°S suoneuoq Areiqgn 6TLEE
396png oN (00°000°ST) (00°000°ST) 000 00°0 Aunod wouy Jues TT/E€
%9T'61- (8£°0v5'T) (82°0v5'6) (s0°10€’E) 00°000°8 spund eauy pedw [epads 76SEE
%6891 6C'TET'0T (1£'£98'6Y) 00°0 00°000°09 SXEL JO N3 I sjusWARg BAL T65¢€
3eb6png oN (25'881°0) (25'881°D) R 27d] 00°0 Uojjez|uIspoly uoiepodsuel| 85SEE
%TH'TT 8b'v62'8 (29'50£'82) (€9'1€0°9) 00"000°Z€ Xe|_suljoses djels 756€€
%E'HT v 16b'8E (9£'8b5°121) (0£°0bb'eT) 00000091 3NUBAY PIY 19811S 33eIS 165€€
%UT'SL 1728t (6£°'L1h) 00°0 00°004'T Xe| 1oag 2)els 0£see
%£9'1T 68°0v8°0b1 (11'651'605) (96'15£'09) 00°000'059 xe| s3jes 3jels 0TSEE
%IETTE- (zr'9vb'9) (zr'ovb'8) (75'668) 00°000'C T2-02Ad ALTIGVSIA IH OSHD 6ThEe
%00'00T 00°000'002 00'0 00°0 00000002 INYVHS Jdd131VIS I Xa X3
%£9°9T 00008 (00°000') 000 00°008% Aed jusws|ddns a3e15 0TEE
%00'0 (52°0) (5£'099°02) (sz'8/8'T) 00°099°0¢ PeiRUO) [BIS0d T61€€
%ZTEL 78'/8%'s/1 (81'215'%9) (812£0'sH) 00°000°0vC sjueln a3els 06TEE
%0¢C°9¢- (08'€£5'0) (08'ces’s) (ob'9v/) 00°000'2 suwRd Bulpjing 019¢¢
%85 75'9050€ (8b'£6b'6€) (e1°01£'2T) 00°000°0L Xe] 3siyoueld Al 8|geD 141383
%61°0€ S1'509°91 (58'v6£'8E) (b8'1Hb'S) 0000055 Xe) Ja9g 9jessjoyM 01/1€
%Eb8T 81°€58TH1 (zz'ov1'ee9) (£9'89£'29) 00°000'SZZ Xel s9jes [ed07] 0197€
%112 00'%LY'T (00'920D) (00°2LT) 00°005'€ xel doid uQ 3500 HNOD puy ‘Isas)u] 00€TE
%I18'be- (89'€6'6) (89'€26'6b) (+9°'861°S) 00°000'0F (sleap Joud) saxel Apsdold 00z1€
%69°C- (90'T9'0b) (90°1#9°€55'T) {00"068'T) 00°000°€1S'T (3usunD) saxe| Apedold 0011€
pazijeayun % pozijeatun pazijeay QLA pozijeay ALlW pajewnys3 [exoL
%/£9'16 aanesedwo) Ajyjuop pund |eJausn OTT :pund
tJo 1 abedq ST0TZ Ael
Wd b0'¥ 5202/91/9 :aun) /oreq A1) - sanudAsYy Jo JuslElS 291 iAq pajeasd
sweljim J91AL HED |ow.e) Junopy o UMoL SONUIADY JO JUSWIEIS DO :oweN jejdwsa]



%96'TT 61'6TE'Z8Y (18°086'6¥S'E) (s zTe’sts) 00'0TE'TEO'Y OTT :pundJtodjejol
196png oN (00°000'2) (00'000°2) 00'0 00'0 [lBMW\ |eLOouIBY SURISISA Suoljeuoq S669€
%Sb'T qg8'1e (s1°892'T) (98's£T) 00°00€’T 3NUSASY SUOHEDIUNUWOIB[B] 1669¢
%98/ C- (#8'1£8'S) (¥8'1£5'sD) (c0'p81'2T) 00'000'0¢ SANUAASY Snoaueffeos)iy 0669¢
pazijeayun % pazijeaiun pazijeay QLA pazijesy a1 pajewnsy jejol

%/9'16 aaneledwo) Ajppuop pun [eusn OTT :pund
¥ J0 7 9bed sz0T Aey

Wd $0:% S202/91/9 iawi)/ajeq K1) - senusnay Jo JusWN IS 291 :Aq pajeas)
SWel||Ip J91AL HEL ] [owIe) JUNOK JO UMOL

SSNUDASY JO JusWalels Do :awel ajejdwial



%00°00T (00zbs'y) (0o0'zvs'y) 000 000 LTT :pund lod |ejol
196png oN (00°Zb5'p) (00°'2¥s'p) 00'0 000 suonnguuo) 6niq 002S€
pazijeayun % pazijesiun paziesy AlA pazijesy LW pajewnsy |elo)

%.£9°16 aaperedwo) Ajyauop pung 6nig LZT : pundg
¥ Jo ¢ obed S20T Aey

Wd 0 §202/91/9 :owi) /ejeq K1) - senuaaay jo JuswAjels 291 :Aq pajear)
Swieljjip J9JAL HE) | jowe) JUno Jo Uumol

SSNUBASY 4O JUSWIAIEIS DO :wep @3ejdwa)l



%0S LY TZ'986'TST'T (6L'€vE'€LT'T) (56°160°€6) 00'0E€’'STH'T 71b  ‘pundlod Jejol
%EL'L88EE- (eL488'€E) (e£'£86'¢E) (¥9'pE0'T) 00°00T 1aMaS - snoaue|[Eos]iy 662LE
%009~ (00°095') (00°095°0T) 000 0070009 s34 del Jamag 967.€
%9/'8L 05°£86'0bT'T (0s'evs'£0€) (0s'828'8) 00°0£2'8¥b'T vdyv S6TLE
%8001 05°20€ (05'269'0) (00"021) 00°000°€ s394 Bununooy p6TLE
%00°8 STL6T'LL (5£'208'288) (9v°995°62) 00°000596 sabJey] 2o1aS 1amas 0T2LE
%ET CCTT- (1£'€50'82) (1€7€55'0€) (se'Tps'e) 00°00S'C sbuiuleq 3sa1au] 0019¢
pazijeayun % pezijeaiun pazijeay AlA pozijeay Al pajewns3 |10l

%L9'T6 aAnesedwo) Ajauol pung Jamas ZIb :pund
¥ Jo t abed szoc Aeyy

Wd +0:v S202/91/9 rowil /areq A1) - sanuaaay Jo Juawajels 291 :Aq pajeas)
Swiel||Ipm JaAL jowlie) JUnojy O UMOoL SSNUBASY JO Juswalels Do aweN Ijejdwat



00°0

00°0 00'0 AInWAIY
00002 %00'SL (00'00t) 00°002'T (00°009°T) (00'009'T) 9ZL
00°0 000 000 0IBWWIOD JO J3quIey) 0D suimeH
000 %00°00T 0070 007005'C (00'005'2) (00'005'2) ves
000 000 00°0 UOIRUO( SUSZIYD JOIUSS
000 %00'00T 000 007000°€€ (00 000°€€) (00°000°€€) €L
00°'0 000 000 fouaby @oinosey uewnH N1 1sil4
0070 %00°001 00°0 00°005°C (0070050 (00°005'2) [47
00°0 000 000 1ISIQ JUBLWdoRARQ UL 151
000 %81'96 (00°59) 00°S€9°T (00'00£'T) (00'00£'T) 02
00°'0 000 000 sabiey] 201135 Yueq
SL'SET'T %2 TULYY 99'9b9°/ 99'99/'L (00°02T1) (00'0z1) 169
00°0 000 000 weubo.d Aajes
000 %000 (00°005'2) 000 (00"005'2) (00'005'2) 168
00'0 00°0 00'0 s1s0)) |esjelddeay
000 %66°58 (z97092'1) 8E'6EL'L (00'000°6) (00°000°6) 158
0070 000 000 souRINSUL
000 %85'18 (0s°220'€D) 05'2£6'T01 (00"000521) (00"000's2T) 01§
00°0 00'0 00'0 saonRs BunssuIbul
00°0 %00'0 (00'000t) 000 (00°000'%) (00°000'%) 414
00°0 000 000 S3DIAIRS UOHEDIUNWILIOD J3YI0 Puy duoydajal
¥6'SET %LTbS (6£vL£'T) 12'529'T (00°000°€) (00°000°€) 174
00°0 00°0 000 nn
L0bTE'T %80"€L (e8'sb8'p) LTHST'ET (00"000'8T) {00'000°8T) (124
00°0 000 000 uonejRy 2119nd
1£°85b°C %S52'€0T £b°CI8 £b°218'ST (00°000'52) (00"000'50) 9€T
000 000 000 sang
000 %0878 (00'889) 00°TTE'e (00"000) (00'000%) [tor4
JUBWIUIBA0S) [elBU3D Q00T
Ivuesqunouly pasn % d|qe|ieAy spuny saoueIqUINOUg jobpng |ejoL sjuswpuswy P3(qo 12ul) 191[qo
/1eny [seamyipuadx3 /196png ewbLIQ qns 150D
ain alA
%/9'16 1aAeledwo) AJYIuo OTT : puny
8T Jo T abed S20Z Aen
IWd 76:€ S202/91/9 @l /ajeq seduelquinouy pue sadnjpuadxy Jo Juswelels 91 iAq pageasd
SWeljiM JojAL 119sM jauLIe) JUNoy JO UMOo]L alnjpuadx3 Jo Juswaiels Do dwepN ajejdwa)



00°0 00°0 000 abpnr AD
00°00% %L9°16 (0o0ob) 00°00t" (00'008't) (00'008'%) 0s2
00°0 00°0 00°0 BuisniaApy
000 %E£9'1S (0z'156'T) 08'8b5'T (00'000°€) (00"000°€) ££2
00°0 000 000 sang
000 %SE"9ST 8b°€99 86°€95'T (00°000'T) (00'000'1) {4
00°0 00°0 000 SIOIAIDS GOM
000 %000 (007000'T) 00'0 (007000'T) (00°000'T) L1
00°0 00°0 00°0 SDIAIRS JBUISIU]
Lb'06 %S8°29 (££°58¢) €CHI8 (00"00Z'T) (00°002'T) 9TC
00°0 000 00°0 JoAely puy URWISPY JO S34
9€€£9'T %ILL8 (§5°02£'1) Sb'6L7'TT (00°000°pT) (00°000'p1) 191
00'0 000 00'0 Bujuiel| puy uopednp3 a4ojdwy
00'S€T %05'82T 00582 00°582'T (00°000°T) (00°000'T) 8bT
00'0 000 00°0 duelnsu] uawAojdwaun
098¢ %88'/ET 14689 6811 (00'005) (00°008) Vi
000 000 00°'0 ue|d Juawainay sadojdwy
62'881'C %99St (16'206'9T) 60°260"pT (00'000°1€) (00"000'7€) 348
00°0 00'0 000 3ouelnsuy askojdwy
L6°£95'S %L8'7C1 62°687°0T 62°682'SS (00"000'5t) (00°000°S) 42!
00'0 00°0 00°0 (24eys sahojdw3) 1seQ
L1°59b'C %9 1L (Lz2L9'9) €LLTEDT (00°000°02) (00'000°02) 184
000 00°0 000 sabem
9/ Th6'ce %T1°68 (65'512'22) T'$8L'CeC (00'000°052) (00°000°052) 121
uonelsiulwpy [epueuly  QOSTH
0070 000 0070 juswdinbg
8PI8'1E %9229 (z8'8¢£'v6) 81°T99'GST (00°000'052) (00"000°052) 0b6
00°0 000 000 jueis swoH
8T1'/£0'Sh 396png oN 81'215'€9 81'215'€9 00°'0 00'0 062
IdueIqUINDUZ pPasn % a|qe|leAy spung sdJjuelquinouy 32bpng |eioL sjuawpuswy P3(qo J9ua) Pa3[qo
/lemdy [sainyipuadx3 [196png jeulbugQ qns 150D
din dlA
%/9'16 :3Apeledwo) Ajyuopy OTT :pund
8T Jo ¢ 3bed ST0T Aen
Wd Z&:€ S202/91/9 iowil /eleq sadueiqundug pue sainjipuadxy Jo Juswalels 91 :Aq pajeas)
Swel|jIp J91AL oSN [owIe) JUNoY 30 UMOL aInjipuadxy Jo Juswalels Do :BdwepN Ijejdwa)l



00°0 000 00'0 juswdinb3 Hoddng/1andwo) maN
Lb'p9E %EL'0 (55'€6H'T) Sb'9 (00°00s'T) (00'005'T) Lb6
00°0 000 000 Juswdinb3
00°0 %el'LE- (1£'v8'S) (1£v8%'T) (00°000'%) (00°000'%) 0v6
00°0 000 000 Ja1do) ssea Bunesado
4908 %89°6Y (18'%54) 61°ShL (00°005°T) (00°005'T) 579
000 000 000 Snoaue|IRasy
00'T£¢C %26°02¢ £8'9¢8'8 £8'9£8'CT (00'000'%) (00°000°t) 6L
00’0 000 000 sa||ddns samog Asuild
£9°€8¢ %052, (66'%09) 10°665'1 (00'002'2) (00°002'0) [453
00°0 000 000 abeisod puy saijddns 2010
SL'7L0'T %0S°ZhT £2°00b'E €2°00b'T1 (00"000°8) (00'000°8) (143
000 00°0 00'0 324 UOISSILLIOD
89'50T %66'8CT 68°6.S 68'645'T (00°000'2) (00°000'2) 861
00°0 00°0 00'0 [onesL
1€721€ %9b'€S (65'€91'T) TH'9€€'T (00°005'0) (00°005'0) 082
00°'0 00°0 00°0 sBulpjing dueUSUIRY pUY Jledey
L6'HST'E %60'F1 (6£'%56'2y) 19°Sb0°2 (00'000°05) (00°000°05) 992
00°'0 000 00°0 s=0IAS Buluoz puy butuueld
00°0 %00 £0T 00°05t 00°'0Sb'ST (00"000°5T) (00°000'ST) LST
00°0 00°0 00°0 poddng atemyos/alempley Jaandwo)
#6'061 %L,y 0k (95°9£5'¢€) vb'ez8'Te (00°00t'95) (00°00t"95) 114
00°0 000 000 s34 Buiypny puy BununoxDy
00°0ST'G %0£°0TT 0z 0Ty 0Z°02T'ty (00"000°0%) (00*000°0%) €5¢
000 000 0070 $9IAI9G [eba
00°08€'C %00'€8 (05'001'S) 05°668'vC (00"000°0€) (00°000°0€) (474
00°0 00°0 000 SEJIAIRS [e31p3ly
00°0 %0052 (00°0ST) 00°0S (00°002) (00°002) 192
dueIqundugz pasn % a|qe|teAy spung saduesquindug 196png |ejol sjuawpulawy palqo Jajua) walqo
/ilemoy /seamyipuadx3 /196png JeuibLio qns 350D
aln dlA

%/9'16 'aAneledwo) Ajuiuoly OTT : pung
8T 40 ¢ abed SZ0T Aen
Id 7S:€ §202/91/9 2wl /ajeq sadueiquindug pue saamypuadx3 Jo Judwziels 91 :Aq pajeas)
swel[|ip J9JAL HEL ] [ounIe) JUNOK JO UMO)L ainjpuadxg jo juswalels Do BwepN ajejdwal



000 00°0 00°0 Moddng a1emyjos/aiemple Js3ndwo)
000059 %80°2ET [V R4 2" 20°218'6T (00°000°sT) (00°000°ST) 174
00°0 000 00°0 S3DIAIIS (ed1palA
0005 %00°68 (007s9) 00°Stb (00°00%) (00°00%) 15¢
00°0 000 00°0 SIIAIBS UOIEDIUNWIWIOY) JALYIQ PUY SuoydsjaL
8€795H %16°LL (b5'52e'T) 9'v/9' (00°000'9) (00°0009) 74
00'0 000 000 seng
000 196png oN 0S°£6T 05261 00°0 000 S€C
00°0 000 000 wod3
00°0 %TS¥6 (5£90) ST'ETE'T (00°00t'T) (00°00b'1) 612
00°0 00'0 000 SIDIAIDS JDUIBIUT
86°6L %86'TL (81°082) 78'612 (00°000'T) (00'000'T) 912
00°0 000 000 Bujuiel| puy uoneonp3 sskojdws
009 %IT°0EE 00°5S£°0T 00'558'pT (00"005'%) (00'005¥) 8b1
000 000 00'0 ouelnsut JuswAojdwaun
000 %L VL (1z°'821) 6LTLE (00°005) {00°005) iz
000 000 000 uojjesuadwo?) s,udWIoM
000 196png oN (00°9€v'2) (00°9€%'2) 000 000 91
00°0 00°0 00°0 uejd JUBWaINRy 22A0|dwg
1€°946'C %10 (5e'€£8'97) §9'921'1¢ (00°000°8%) (00"000°8t) b1
0070 00°0 00°0 3oueInsu] asAojdwg
80°298'C %81/t (5£788'65) STL19'SE (00°005'52) (00°005'52) 428
000 0070 000 (a1eys s 2h0jdw3) IseQ
LE'TT6'T %b8'6S (Lz'6b0'TT) €£°056'L1 {00°000°0€) (00°000°0¢) b1
00°'0 00°0 000 sabem SWIHRAQ
¥5'852'1 %TE'T6 (€£'5€5'T) LTHIY'8T (00'000°027) (00°000°02) [44}
00°0 000 000 sabem
LT°T06'8€ %TC'9L (52'959'58) SLEVE'PLT (00"000°09€) (00°000'09€) 114}
juawypedaq 3dijod  00TZH
aoduerquinouy pasn % d[qe[ieAy spunyg sapuelquinoug 396png [ejo0l sjusIpuUlaWY Peiqo 12U P3lqo
[1enpy /seinypuadx3 [1ebpng [eulbLQO qns 1500
alnW aiA
%L9'T6 ‘aAnesedwo) Ajujuoly OTT :pung
87 Jo ¢ abed szoz Aey
IWd TS:€ S§202/91/9 iawiy/ajeq saduelquindug pue saimipuadx3 Jo Juswajels 91 iAq pageas)

swelipm JSJAL

1198

Jowiie) JUno Jo UMOo]

anypuadxg Jo Juswalels Do :ewenN arejdwial



00°0 000 00°0 12-0T A4 INVYS ALTIIEISIA IH OSHL
00°0 %EG"0ST 09'9b5'C 09°9b5'2 (00°000's) (00'000°s) S0/
00°0 000 00'0 Ja1do) ased bunesndg
81°95 %61°EE (£1°9€€T) £8°€99 {00"000'2) (000000 S79
00°0 00°0 00’0 sabieyd Aajes Jo ideg
Stk %92°0¢C (bE'€8T'S) 99'9T€'T (00"005'9) (00°005'9) 095
00'0 000 00°0 snoaue|jadsiiy
00°0 %78'H8 ((I¥x4d) 8Lt (00°005°T) (00°005'T) 6/
00°0 00°0 000 asuadxg olpey
00°0 %T0°S (95'vLT'v) vb'see (00°00s'¥) (00°005) 9ge
000 000 000 asuadxg and
£8'7SLT %L9'65 (11°590'8) 68'bE6'TT (00°000'02) (00°00002) £33
00°0 000 00°0 asuadxg Bunessdo apIuRA
08ber'e %0b"95 (95'668'0T) $5'00Tv1 (00"000'52) (00"000's2) 0g€
00'0 00°0 000 Sa1ddNS 133011-3
000 %000 (00°008) 000 (00°008) (00°008) 62¢
00°0 00°0 00°'0 swioyiun puy Bugior
00°Ste %25TeT 96°006 96'006'y (00"000'%) (00°000'%) 143
00°0 000 00°0 SIS9A 4001d 391Ing
000 %SL’€9 (00'sz4) 00'S/T'T (00°000'2) (00°000'2) 743
00°0 000 00°0 sa|iddns Bunerdo
69°SEL AARZA 9/'S07'1 9/°507'9 (00°000°S) (00°000°S) 1743
00'0 000 00'0 abeisod puy salddns =040
79'15b %STHET 9¢'p20’1 9E'b20'y (00'000°€) (00'000°€) 1)83
000 000 00°0 [orell
00°0 %65°SST 19'68€'T £9°688'¢ (00°005'7) (00°005°2) 08z
000 000 00°0 sbuipjing adueusjuiRy puy Jleday
00°0 %96°76 (26'550'7) 80°tb6'El (00°000ST) (00°000°5T) 99¢
00°0 000 00'0 SDIAIBS BUIMO] /1BXRIM
00°0 396png oN 00°0ST 00°0ST 000 00°0 65C
aduelqunduy pPasn % a[qejieAy spung saJuelquinouy 39bpng |ejol sjuawpudWy 3(qo0 183ua) Pelqo
/1enpy /ssunyipusadx3y J196png |euiblip qns 350D
aln alA

%/9'16 idAReleduwio) Alyiuol OTT : Ppung
87 Jo G abed S20T Ael
WWd Z§'€ §202/91/9 awnl /ereq sedouelquindul pue sainjipuadx3 jo Juswslels M :Aq pajeasd
SWe|jIM 1BJAL 19sn jowie) JUno Jo UMmoj ainjipuadx3 Jo Juswale)s Do :awep ajejdway



000

00'0 000 [eAelL
00°0PE %6C 6 (ot°208) 06'C6b (00°000'T) (00°000'T) 08¢
00'0 00'0 000 sBulpjing adueuajuiely puy Jledsy
00°0 %bS 10T S/'8b9 S/'8b9'Th (00°000°2t) (00°000°2¥) 992
00°0 00°0 000 Hoddng aiemyos/aiempieH Jandwo)
00°0 %8b 1T (€£:659'0) LTHPE (00°000°€) (00"000°€) 652
00°0 000 000 SADIAISS [EDIP3IA
000 %0001 (00°0S%) 0005 (00°005) (00°00%) 152
000 00’0 000 SS0IAIRS LUONEIUNWWIO)) J3Y30 puy suoydajaL
86°0F %TbbL (29'v02) 8£°G65 (00°008) (00°008) SHT
000 000 00°0 in
10°8.€ %Ib 1S (sg'£1€'9) 99°789°9 (00°000°€T) (00°000°cT) 2174
00°0 000 000 apeled/suoney dllgnd
00°0 %SPHTT 4337 TS EEP'E (00"000°€) (00'000°€) 8¢
000 00°0 000 sang
00°0 %0062 (0055¢€) 00°5bT (00°008) (00°005) Q€T
00°0 00'0 000 Buiurel| puy uopednp3 asAojdwz
00'9/T %29°0S (¥8'296'2) 9T'LE0’E (00°000'9) (00°000°9) 8bT
000 000 00°0 duelnsut JuswAiojdwaun
81'92 %9¢'Cy (es'880) 8C'11C (00°00%) (00°00S) yag!
00°0 00'0 000 (21eys saholduig) IseQ
82'64S %9825 (£5'6¥6'D) £6°050'p (00°000°2) (0070002) 84
00°0 000 000 sabem
1228t %0b'69 (25°660'87) 85°006'€9 (00"000°26) (00°000'26) 121
Wswyedsq a1l  00ZZF
00°0 00'0 00'0 juawdinb3
00°0 %000 (00'000'2) 000 (00°000"2) (00°000'20) 0p6
pung bnia  6TITY
00'0 00'0 00°0 juawdinby
00°0 %ET"00T ¥0'8Z £0'8£0°09 (00°000"09) (00°000°09) 0b6
IduUeIqUNOUT Pasn % o]qejieAy spung sesuelquniugy 196png |ejol sjuswWpudWy Palqo 19JUl) palqo
/1enpy /seamytpuadxy [396png jeutblip qns 350D
alw alA
%L9'16 iaapeledwo) Auoly oTT : pun
8T 4o 9 abed S20T Aew
Id 7S:€ 5202/91/9 oL /ajeq sajueIquindug pue sainjipuadxy Jo Juswalels M1 :Aq pageasd
SWIRIA J9JAL HEL )| JouLIR) Junop 0 UMo) aInjipuadxg Jo Juswaiels DO1 :awepN ejdwa)



00°0 00°0 00'0 douelnsuy JuswAojdwaun
000 %b9°S (9£°v6) ¥9'S (00r001) (00'001) Vi
00°0 0070 00°0 (sseys sJaho)dw3) IseQ
000 %26'bE (9z'9£6) v/'€es (00°00S'T) (00°005'T) 2
00°0 00°0 00°0 sabem
00°0 %8T'SS (1+'209'2) 65°26€'6 (00°000°2T) (00'000°21) 14
juewpedeq |03u0) jewuy  00bTH
00°0 000 000 juswdinby
000 %699 (0T°+02'1S) 06'56/'€6 (00°000°5¥T) (00°000's¥T) 0v6
00°0 000 000 SNOBUR|[2ISIW
0070 %0699 (00°1£€) 00699 (00°000'T) (00°000°T) 6/
000 00°0 000 juawdinby Juswpedaq a4
000 %S5'T6 (e€'128'T) 19'8/b'9T (00'000°8T) (00"000°8T) 243
00°0 000 00°0 asuadxg olpey
L2099 %TEL6 (cTben) L4598 (00"000's) (00°000's) 9€€
00°0 00°0 000 asuadxg |ang
122 %8699 (§T'186'T) S8°810 (00°000'9) (0070009) T€€
00'0 000 000 asuadxg Bupesado spIysA
00268 %bb €9 (z8'£96°0T) 812061 (00°000°0€) (00'000°0€) 0€€
000 000 00'0 suuojun puy Buiyiop
00°0 %L5"€6 (v8'z6T) 9T°£08'C (00'000°€) (00'000°€) 9¢¢
00'0 00'0 000 sa||ddng bupessdo
000 %05'8£2€ $6'69£'29 ¥6'69L'v9 (00°000'0) (00'000'D) 1143
000 000 00'0 abeysoq puy saiddns s3140
00°0 %SS'19 (ob'v8¢) ¥5°9T9 (00°000°T) (00'000'T) 01€
00°'0 000 00°0 SDIAIIS |ENIORIU0D
000 %0S5°L9 (00°059) 00'0S€‘T (00°000'0) (00°000'2) 062
000 00°0 000 Bunsal eyso
00'0 %EE"6CT 9T'9pE’e 9T'9%€'01 (00°000°8) (00°000'8) 182
ajuelqunougz pasn % 2]qe[ieAy spung sadueIqUNdUlz jebpng |elol SHUIWpUIWY Palqo Jul) palqo
/1enpy /sesmipuadx3 /396png [ewibLIQ qns 150D
ali dLA

%L9'16 :annesedwo) Aliuop OTT : puny
8T Jo £ obed S20T Aen
Wd ZG'€ §202/91/9 iawiL/a3eq SadueIqUINOU] pue sainjpuadxy Jo Juawajels 91 iAq pajeasd
SWwel||im J9JAL B ELTT] [owie) Junop Jo umoj

ainjipuadx3 JO Juswalels Do :awepN @3ejdwa]



00°0 000 00°0 (ateys stakoldw) 1seQ
00°0 196png oN (00zeT) (00'zeT) 00°0 000 r1
00°0 00°0 00°0 sobep)
000 186png oN (00'pbT) (00¥bT) 00°0 000 121
juwabeuely Jajemuiols /uoipadsuy buipjing 0zZbTh
000 00'0 00'0 uswdinbgy
000 %000 (00°005'p) 000 (00°005"p) (007005") ov6
0070 000 000 snosue|[2osiiy
00°0 396png oN 89'6 896 00°0 000 6/
00°0 000 000 asuadx] end
000 %L bE (08'20£'T) 0C'268 (007009?) (00'009'0) 1€€
000 00°0 000 asuadxg bunerndo apiysA
00°0 %9€'121 00°SET 00'S€€'T (00'001'T) (00°001'T) oge
00°0 000 00°0 swuoyun puy Bupor
000 %000 (0o'001) 00°0 (00°001) (00-00T) 9z¢
000 000 000 salddns Hunesado
000 %000 (0o0"001) 000 (0o0'00T) {00 00T) (1743
000 000 00°0 SAJIAISS [BIIP3IN
00°0 %000 (0o0oT) 000 (00'001) (o0'001) 152
00°0 00°0 000 SSDIAIBS UORESIUNWIWOY JaY3Q puy suoydajpL
86'0p %9%'19 (sz'1€0) G/'89€ (00°009) (00°009) 974
00'0 000 000 samN
000 %000 (00'001) 000 (00°00T) (00°001) (1174
00°'0 00°0 00°0 sang
00°0 %000 (0000T) 000 (00'00m) (o0"001) SET
00°0 000 00'0 CEE
000 %ET'E9 (00°056'2) 00°050°S (00'000'8) (00"000°8) 0L1
000 000 0070 Buluel] puy uoneonp3 ssdojduig
0070 %00°0 {(oo'0o1) 000 (00°00T) (00°00T1) 8t1
aouelqundul pPasn % a|qejieAy spung sajueiquniugy 3ob6png |ejol sjuswpuswy Pelqo 19jud) Palqo
/1empy /seinyipuadx3 /3e6png [euiblp ans 150D
alw alA

%/9'T6 :9Anesedwo) AjUIuop OTT : pund
8T Jo g sbed S70T Aew
INd TG:€ §202/91/9 :awi) /ajeq sadueIqunduz pue sainjipuadx3 Jo Juswaels 91 iAq pajeasd
swel||Ipm J9jAL HELT] joule) JUNojy JO UMOL aInypuadxy Jo JusWIleIS D5

:owep ajejdwa)



00°0 00°0 00°0 SIVIAIDG JRUIBI]
| VA TA %LT'LL (95°95b) P EYS'T (00°000°2) (00°000'2) 91
00°0 00°0 000 Bujutelj puy uonesnp3 sakojdwg
05'86¢ %0661 (os102'T) 05°862 (00"005'T) (00"005'1) 8bT
000 000 00°0 @durInsuI JuswAojdwaun
000 %007k {(66'682) 10°012 (00°00%) (00°00%) 1
000 00'0 000 uoljesuaduio) S,udWIoMm
00'0 obpng oN (00'e€v'D) (00°€€b') 00°0 00°0 91
000 00°0 000 ueld Juswa.iay saAojdwy
¥b'288'1 %b9'8 (£5°T26'ST) €5°££0'ST (00'000°1€) (00°000°1€) evl
00'0 00'0 000 soueinsut aaAojdw]
Sb1ET’e %bE 06 (6v'£50'p) 1S°7¥6'LE (00"000°2t) (00°000°2h) Wi
00'0 00°0 000 (21eys sahojdwiq) 1seQ
$2'208'T %LS5'8S (66'191'8) 10°8£5°TT (00°00£'6T) (00'00£'6T) 12
00°0 00'0 000 SsabeMm SWIHBAQ
€191 %IT'+0T 1€°50C 1€°502's (00°000'S) {00°000°S) w
000 00'0 000 sabem
88'455'5¢ %bEe 8. (95°'S5€"S) ¥b'#b9'96T (00"000'152) (00°000'152) 121
s39911s puy shemybiH  Q0TED
00°0 00'0 000 snoaue|[Easiiy
00°0 %09'L (0z'808) 08T (00°055) (00°05S) 6/
00'0 000 00°0 salddns Bunessdo
000 %09°'C (10°8v6'T) 66'1S (00'000'2) (000000 oze
00°0 000 000 uotyjowsq
00°0 %000 (00°000'52) 00°0 (00'000'52) (00°000's2) 692
000 000 00°0 sang
S8'0EH'6 %99°60¢C 66'8£0'9€ 66'8£6'89 (0070062€) (00'006'2€) S€T
000 00°0 00'0 Bujuiel| puy uopeonpz sakoldwz
000 %000 (00°009'2) 0070 (00'009'2) (00°009'0) 8p1
3duesqunoul pPosn % dJqe[ieAy spunyg s9ouRIqUNDUY 39b6png jejol sjuswWpuWy P3lqo 19jUd) plqo
/1enpy /saimpuadx3 /396png Jeuiblo qns 150D
alnW alA
%L9'16 1aAnetedwo) Ajyuol O%T :pung
8T 40 6 abed ST0Z Aen
Wd 7S:€ 5202/91/9 iowiy/e3eq sedueIqUINIUZ pue sainjipuadxy Jo Juswajels 91 :Aq pajeasd

SWeI[|IM J3JAL

HELT

|owde) JUnop Jo umoy

aJmypuadxg Jo Juswalels Do ewen ajejdwa)



00°0 000 000 Buineq
0070 %19'9L (1TeLn'es) 6£'778'7S¢C (00'000°0£€) (00"000°0£€) 1€6
00°0 00°0 000 Jleday sbeurelq
00'0 %000 (00'000'T) 000 (00"000'T) (00°000'T) 8b
00°0 000 000 snoaue|[sosiy
00°S¢ %Eb"S6 (bL5b) 9T'bS6 (00'000'T) (00%000°T) 6Lb
000 00°0 000 asuadx3 [ond
PLEVS'T %89'EL (re'21T's) 99°/8'ST (00°000°5€) (00"000°5€) £33
0070 00'0 000 asuadxg bupessdo apIYsp
ST'1S6 %89°LS (££7085'0T) €THTY'PT (007000'52) (007000'57) 0€e
00°'0 000 000 swoyun puy Buiyio
00°0 %T9'E9 (b2e9'T) £6'798'C (00'005p) (00'005"v) T4
00°0 00'0 00'0 sal|ddng Bunesedo
¥E'855'T %65°02T Vada Rt LY'[b9'6 (00'000°8) (00°000°'8) oze
00°0 00°0 00°0 abeisod puy salddng o140
000 %0¢C'6L (10'v01) 66°S6€ (00°00%) (00°00%) 01€
000 000 000 Buises juswdinby
00009 %96'1€ (L2180 ££8TT'T (00"005°€) (00°00s'€) 62
000 000 000 [enedl,
000 %00°0 (00"000'T) 000 (00°000'T) (00°000'T) 08¢
000 00’0 00'0 S}aR.)S puy SpRoY 2dUeURUIRK puy Jledsy
YI'EIs %685 (b0'222'9) 96°2£L'8 (00°000°sT) (00"000°5T) 897
00°0 000 000 sBulpjing adueuajuiely puy Jledsy
0L'LbT %S56'LCT LE'8EB ££°8€8'E (00"000°€) (00°000°¢) 997
000 000 000 SIDIAIIS |eDIPR
000 %009/ (0o0'0zm) 00°08€ (00"00%) (00"008) 15¢
000 000 000 SIIAISS UOIIEDIUNWILLOY) JSYI0 puy suoyds|aL
9/°LE€ %LSbL (00°z14) 00°880°C (00'008'0) (00"0082) (N74
000 000 000 sanan
69182 %98'0/ (85'9/¥'2) [4 A X4 L) (007005'8) (00°005'8) 1] 74
dJuesqundug pasn % ajqejieAy spung saouelqunoug jobpng [ejol sjuswpuswy P3(qo 123Ud) Pelqo
/lenpy /seamyipuadx3 /196png jewibuQ qns 350D
diN ala

%.9'T6 :anneledwo) Ajyiuon OTT :pung
8T 40 0T 9bed ST0T Aey
IWd Z5:€ ST0T/9T/9 s /ejeq sedueiquINOU] pue saimipuadxy Jo Juswajels 91 :Aq pa:geasd
SWel|lim JalAL asn jouue) Junop Jo UMojf ainjipuadx3 Jo JUsWRIRIS DO dwep jejdwal



0070 000 000 S3IAIDS [edIpaly
000 %00°'St (00°s5) 00°Sh (00'001) (00°00T) 152
00°0 00'0 00'0 2oueInsuT JusWAojdwaun
000 %00°2k (00°8S) 00'2t (00"001) (00"001) Vaq!
000 000 000 ueld sy sdAojdwy
6072 %T0"€h (66"855"p) 10°THb'E (00°000'8) (00'000°'8) 348
00'0 000 000 3ouelInsuI 9akojdwg
09°6£0'T %TL'16 (02°9£0°1) 08'€T6'TT (00°000°€T) (00"000°€T) Wl
000 000 000 (s4eys safoldwsz) 1se0
S8°08¢ %T0°T9 (19'865'T) 6€'7105'C (00°00T ) (00'001'H) 12!
00°0 000 000 Sabem SWIHRAQ
6T'TL %TT'bS (LELPT'T) £9°75¢'1 (00'005'0) (00'005'2) (44!
000 000 000 sebem
02'S69's %6t'88 (90'816'S) p6'18'Sk (00°00b'15) (00°00%1S) 121
Buipioay puy aisepm pljos  00ZED
000 000 000 juawdinb3
00°0 %S9°9/1 16°2€8'€ 15°2€8'8 (00°000°S) (00"000°s) 0v6
000 000 000 Buined
000 %LG'8 (65°€14'Sh) Sb'98¢'y (00"000°05) (00"000°05) 1€6
00°0 00'0 000 saljddns puy s|elajen
000 %95°65 (zrTeren) 88'898'/1 (00"000°0€) (00°0000€) 00t
000 000 00°0 aoueuajulely W6IT dyedl
00'0 %0761 (00'919'T) 00"8¢ (00°000'2) (00°000'2) £be
00°0 000 000 sa||ddns puy speq ubis
00°0 %98'TH (85'159'p) webe's (00°000'8) (00'000'8) we
00°0 000 000 Bunybr 19815
82'80L'L1 %90°69 rrese'vd) 9L LbT'SS (00°000°08) (00°000°08) Vigd
plvjeons 23els  06TEY
00°0 000 000 juawdinby
000 %LS b6 (ce'b6y'2T) £9'S08°£1¢ (00°000°0€2) (00°000°0£2) ov6
aouesquinouy pasn % olqejieAay spung s3dueIqUNDOU] 3e6png |ej0l SjuUawWpuUdIWy p8elqo 193ud) P3[qo
/1endy /saimypuadx3 /3ebpng Jeuiblo qns 150D
ailw aiA
%/9'T6 raAneledwo) Ayjuoly OTT :pung
8T J0 17T ob6ed szoz Aew
Wd 7S:€ §202/91/9 iowilL/e1ed seduelquinoug pue sain}puadxy Jo Juswalels 291 :Aq pajeasd
SWel||Ipm JBJAL 11350 jowIe) JUNoy O UMOL alnyipuadx3 Jo Juswalels Do :dwep ajejdwa ]l



000 00°0 00'0 Bujuiel) puy uoneonp3 aakojdwg
1LL1 %Sb'LT (es's20) LY bLT (00°000'T) {00"000'T) 8b1
00°0 000 00'0 aouesnsu] JuswAojdwiaun
el %898 (eb81) L8121 (oo'obT) {00'obT) Yig!
00°0 000 000 (21eys sJaholdws) iseQ
vLL9E %Lb'79 (6T°105'T) 18'86b'C (00"000'%) (00"000') Tp1
00°0 000 00°0 sebem
16'908' %LE"98 (50°002'9) S6'66¢'6€ (00°005°St) (00°005'sb) X4
Ateiqrn  oospb
000 000 000 pue
00°0 %00°0 (00°000°002) 00°0 (00°000'002) (00°000'002) 016
000 000 000 uopjesadQ puy JuswdopRAsq Yled
8b'SL %65 T (68°2b0'SE) 11725602 (00'000'09) (00°000°09) Y44
000 00°0 00°0 aseydlnd puel
000 %¢20'0 (00'8£6'66€) 00'29 (00"000°00%) (00°000°00t) 192
000 000 000 SNOSUR|[EISIN
000 %068 (9z'0v) ¥£'60C (00°052) (00'052) 6Lb
000 00'0 000 saiiddns bunesado
00°0 %0565 (b5°209) 9268 {00°005°1) (00°005'T) (1143
000 000 000 Sled [eLIOWS|N JeA URIDIDA
000 %5781 (z5'£18) 85281 (00'000°T) (00°000'T) 00¢
00°'0 000 00°0 LN
88'SbC %98°'ST (b€ 878°9T) 99°1/1'€E (00°000°02) (00°00002) (1] 74
uonealdsy  Obbbb
000 000 000 asuadxg bunesado sPIYysA
85°9/9 %SE'L6 (0¥'609) 09°06€ 2 (00°000°€2) (00°000'€2) oge
00°0 000 000 sa|ddns bunessdo
00°0 %56'T (5'062) S£'60€ (00"005) (00°005) 1743
000 000 000 SIDIAISS {enpenuo)
05'€b2'0p %c1'Z8 (0s°262'ch) 0520210 (00°000'st2) (00°000's%2) 062
aduequnduyg pasn % a|qejieAy spung saduelqunoul 10b6png [ejol sjuswpuswy 02[q0 1=jua) P3lqo
/lempy /seinipuadx3 /396png jeulblio qns 350D
ain aiA
%.9'T6 ‘aanetedwo) Ajyuon OTT : pung
8T 40 7T 9beq Sz0zZ Ae
Wd TS:€ 5202/91/9 iawiL/e1eq sadueIquinduz pue sainjipuadxy Jo Judwajels M1 :Aq pajeald
SWwiel|im AL 1asn [ow.e) JUnoy Jo umoj

ainyipuadxg Jo Juswalels Do :ewel ajejdwa)]



000 00°0 000 SDIAIRS [RUOSIRd
00°0 196png oN 00°+08's 00°408's 000 000 001
sjuawied jedipulld asea] 00006
00'0 000 00°0 weiboid Buipesy Jawwing
0070 %b8'TZ (£z'€95'T) €L°9¢h (00°000'0) (00'000'20) 12
000 000 000 Ja1do) asea Bunesado
85781 %0S°S. (15°2¢1) 6b'LL€ (00°005) (00°008) s79
00'0 00'0 000 12-0¢ 3uet Buiuey Atesgn
000 %000 (00'000'2) 00'0 (00°0007) (00'000'7) 619
00°0 00°0 000 SNood
85°8€ %068 (€£9'19%) LE'BEL'Y (00'00€'s) (00°00¢'s) 06t
00°0 000 000 Snoauel[EsIy
L8'8€T %TT'29 (zr'181) 88'8bC (00"00b) (00'00%) 6/
00'0 00°0 000 abelsod puy seiddns 3040
413 %CLTIT L8'SLT L8°S/9'T (00°005'T) (00°005'T) 01€
00'0 000 000 EIT
000 %000 (00°00%) 000 (00°005) (00°005) 082
00°0 00°0 000 sbuipjing aoueuajuiely puy Jiedsy
¥6'8€T %ETLT (90°981'2) P6'€18 (007000°€) (00"000°€) 997
00°0 00°0 000 Hoddng alemyos/aiempley Je3ndwo)
000 %€£9'09 (c0'eew) £6'999 (00'001'T) (00°001'T) (174
00°0 00°0 00°0 SIDIAIRS [EDIPBIY
00°0 %00'0 (00'001) 000 (o0001) (00°001) 16¢
00'0 000 000 S30IAIDS UOHEDIUNLIWOYD JBYI0 PuY duoydaaL
000 %SSTT (es'v88) LY'STT (00°000°1T) (00"000'T) 174
e 00'0 00'0
90'THC %91°SP (9L'T4L'0) ¥2'852'C (00"000°s) (007000's) 174
000 00°0 000 S30IAIRS JBUIBIU]
12691 %06°05 (68'24H'T) 112251 (00°000°€) (00'000°€) 917
dduesquunoug P3SN % 3lqejieAy spung sadueIqundugz jabpng [ejo} sjuswpuawy pa(q0 Jajua)d Pafqo
/1lempy /seinypuadxa /396png [eulblo qns 350D
aliW alA

%L9°T6 :aAneledwo) Ajujuol OIT :pund
8T 4o €7 abeg SZ0Z Aen
IWd ZS:€ §202/91/9 Pwil/3jeq SadURIqWINDUZ puk sainjipuadx3 Jo Juswalels 91 :Aq paeas)

Swellim DAL

uasn

jowie) Junopy Jo umoy

ainjipuadxy Jo Juswalels Do :awep ajejdway



00'0 00°0 000
LY'STI'6EE %T19'89 (6£'859'6£1'T) 1T T0T'9pT'E (00°092'585p) (00"092'585"v) ipung 104 [e301
00°0 00'0 00°0 Buises Juswdinby
00'0 396png oN 00°88% 00°88b 00°0 000 ¥6¢
JdueIquiniug pasn % olqejieay spuny seoueIquINDUZ jobpng |ei0L Ssjuswpuswy Palqo p(qo
Jienpy /seanypuadxy /1e6png Jeuibuo qns
alw aia

%/9" :aAnesedwon Ajyuo

%l9'16 I D AlyIuon oIT :pung
8T J0 {1 2bed s20T Aep
Wd TS € 5202/91/9 o) /areq sadueIqUINIUg pue sainjipuadxy jo Juswsiels :Aq pajeas)
SWeIM J3IAL HELT [owe) JUnojy Jo UMo| ainipuadx3 Jo Juawslels Do :awe) ajejdwa ]



00'0 000 00°0 saolAIRS [efa
00°0 %69°T¥T 05'¥80°C 05'$80°L (00'000°s) (00°'000°s) 474
000 000 00'0 SIDINIRS [EDIP3IY
000 %00°02 (00"00%) 00°00T (00°00%) (00°005) 16¢C
00°0 000 000 SDIAUSS UOIEDIUNWIWOD J3YIQ puy auoydsfal
86'0t %TE 9P (99'%89'0) PE'SIET (007000°s) (00'000°s) 74
0070 00°0 00°0
80°S/S'ET %66°ETT TTH8E'ST ey8e’sel {00"000°01T) (00°0000TT) 0ve
000 000 000 sang
00'0 %16°St (00"061'T) 00°0T0'T (00'002'2) (00'002'0) GET
00°0 00°0 00°0 SIIAISS JRUIBIU]
899 %S8'PL (0Z'100) 08'865 (00°008) (00°008) 912
000 000 000 Bujuiel] puy uopesnpy sakojdw3
00°0 %00°0 (00'000'2) 000 (00"000°2) (00°0002) 8bT
0070 00°0 000 2oueInsuT JuswAodwaun
000 %0LHT (zs'9s€) 8b'ceT (00°00%) (00'00%) b1
00'0 00°0 00'0 uopesuadwo)) S,UsWIoM
00°0 %SS'0LL 85'/T6'EE 85°£75'8¢ (00"000°s) (00°000°) 9T
000 000 000 ueld Juawadiay a40dwg
L0'S9% %L0°LT (11'525'50) 68'vLb'6 (00"000'5€) (00'000'5€) b1
0070 000 000 2ouelnsut aakojdwg
$5'85 %ELYT (68'09T'SH) TT°6£8'pT (00°000°09) (00°00009) Wl
00'0 00'0 00°0 (31eys s,1a/0jdw3) IseQ
128 %80'ct (TT'v8E'TT) 68'ST9'8 (00'000'02) (00'000'02) 51
000 00°0 000 sabep swIHaA0
08'801°T %SG bL (€z£18'€) LLT8T'TT (00°000'ST) (00°000'ST) 44}
00'0 000 000 sebepm
wUr's %LT'6b (zv'082'60T) 85°6TZ'S0T (00"000'512) (00'000'512) 121
19M3S  00ZZS
aJueiquinduy pasn % a|qejieay spuny saJueIquInduUg 3ebpng |ejol sjuawWpudWwy 13[q0 Jaqua) P2(qo
[1enpy /saamypuadxy /196png jeuibLiQ qns 350D
alW alA

%L9°16 ranneledwo) Ajtpuon ZTb : puny
8T 4o GT 2beq SToz Aen
IWd Z§:€ S202/91/9 awi) /ereq sadueiquinduz pue saimypuadxy Jo Juswajels M1 :Aq pajeas)

SWel||Ipm J3tAL

1S

[ewIe) JUNOop J0 UMOJ

ainyipuadxg Jo Juswieels Do :ewepN ajejdwa)



00°0 00'0 00'0 Paueu)UIRK puy Jieday uorels dwngd
00°0 %69'CT (91'18'59) $8'815°6 (00°000'52) (00"000'52) 19¢
00°0 00°0 00°0 asuadxd and
LT6LE %0£'69 (z5'889'1) 8b T18'E (00°005's) (00°005'S) £33
00°0 00°0 000 asuadxg bupessdo opIysA
6/°8€1 %168k (9€'¥55'D) $9°Sbb'e (00°000°s) (00"000°s) (13
00°0 00°0 000 swuoyun puy Buigion
00°0 %69°1¢C (L'v92'9) €5°5€/'T (007000'8) (00’000°8) 743
00°0 00°0 000 s|edjway)
00'920's %0866 (c0'ov) 16'656'61 (00"000°02) (00"000°02) [443
00°0 00'0 00'0 sa||ddns 6unessdo
90'THT'T %92°0bT 9Z'8£0'9 92'8€0'1¢ (00°000'sT) (00'000'ST) 0ze
00'0 000 000 abejsod puy saiddns 30uj0
00°0 %T£'801 vS'ey P8 EPS (00°00%) (00°008) (1] £3
000 00°0 00°0 334 UOISSIWWO)
00'920°C %EP'TTT 00°582'C 005822 (00°000°02) (00°000°02) 86T
000 000 00°0 SIIAISS [enyoenuo)
8b°059'T¢ %ST1'€29T 06°158'121 06°158'6¢T (00°000°8) (00'000°8) 06¢
00°0 000 00°0 [oARLL
00°0 %00°0 (00°000'T) 0070 (00'000'1T) (00°000°1) 08¢
00°0 000 00'0 S)92.1S puy Speoy acueusiulely puy Jieday
00°0 %S50°8 (95°9¢1'9) ¥b'€95 (007000°2) (00°000°2) 892
000 00'0 00'0 SSVIAIDS dDURUSIUIEY pUY Jleday
00°0 %60'821 9£'608'C 9€'608'CT (0o0"000’0T) (00°000°01) 09t
000 000 000 Hoddng alemyos/alempleH Jayndwo)
000 %00°0 (00°000T) 000 (00'000°1) (00°000'T) §5¢
000 000 00°0 saoiuRs Bunsauibug
00°056'S %TE'0EL 95°290°9¢1 95°7909bT (007000°02) (00°000'02) T4
000 00'0 00°0 sea4 Bunipny puy Bununoddy
00°0 %00'0 (00°000'0) 000 (00"000'7) (00"000'2) €52
aoueIGWINOU] pasn % ?qe|ieAy spunyg souelquniug 196png |ejol Ssjuswpuswy palqo Jaqua) Palqo
/1empy /ssampuadx3 /396png [euibuQ qns 350D
aiw ala

%/9'16 ‘aAResedwo) Ajyjuol Ty pund
8T Jo 97 obed ST0T Aeny
Wd Z5:€ S202/91/9 awil /e3eq Sadueiqunduz pue sainjipuadxy Jo Juswajels RoY :Aq pajeasd
SWeI||IM J3AL HELT,) |awe) JUnojy Jo umol un)ipuadx3 jo juswalels Do awep ejdwal



000 00'0 00°0 DURUIUIR|Y 19100y 0104 /SSald }od
00°0 %T1°6C (Tr'€90'T) 65°9Eb (00'005'T) (00°005'1) 856
000 000 000 [esodsiq 36pn|S ug
0L'€€€'ST %69vL {€1°959°21) [8'PbELE (00'000'0S) (00°000°05) [43
000 000 00'0 awdinby
0070 %000 (00°000'52) 000 (00°000752) (00"000'52) 0b6
000 000 00°0 sabiey) a0IAISS Yueq
000 %000 (o0 0zT1) 000 (0o002T1) (o0'0z1) 169
00°0 00°0 00°0 Js8493uT ep|L
000 %S59'€S (e2'18£'D) LL'81T'E (00°000"9) (00'000'9) S€9
00'0 00°0 00°0 spuog Bulpuryay xe| /Ay €102
000 %00°0 (00"000°0) 000 (00°000°0%) (00°000°0) ¥19
00°0 00'0 00'0 S84 Jwlad 1e3S
00°0 %98°86 (00°0p) 00°09b'€ (00'00s'€) (00°005°€) 965
000 000 00°0 uonepasdaq
000 %ZT'9TT 00'289's¢ 00'289'8/¢ (00°000°02) (00'000°0t2) oS
00'0 000 000 [ejuay uswdinb3 puy Asuiyoel
00°000'2¢ %00°88T 00'000°22 00°000'2 (00°000°s2) {00°000'52) €es
000 00°0 000 20UeRINSU]
000 %00°0 (00°000'12) 000 (00000'12) (00°000°12) 015
00°0 00°0 00°0 Snosue[EsI
000 %8085 (zz61h) 8£°085 (00"000'T) (00°000°'T) 6Lb
00°0 000 000 NOLLONYLSNGD
00°005'€ %95°0 (£b'0£8'682'T) £5°691°01 (00°000°008'T) (00'000'008'T) 10b
000 000 000 2JURUIIR| pUY Jleday jueld JoIEMDISEM
S£'099'2 %158 (11°ev’e) 68'95'¢ch (00"000°05) (00°000°05) ¥9¢
00°0 00°0 00'0 DURUIUIRlY Uy JIedsy Bur Jomas
00°0 %000 (00°005'T) 000 (00°005'T) (00"005'1) £9¢
00'0 000 00'0 SoUBUIIRY puy Jieday dwnd [ERUSPISSY
0070 %S6°58 (00°0¥5'0T) 00'09b"%9 (00°000'5£) (00°000'5£) 29¢
dduesquinoug Pasn % ajge[ieAy spunyj saduelqunouy jobpng [ejol sjuswpusawy palqo Jajua) polqo
/renjpy /sdnypuadxa /396png |euibli0 qns 350D
alwW alA

%L9'16 aAneledwo) Ajyiuoiy ZTb : pung
81 Jo /1 abed S20Z Aew
IWd 2S:€ 5202/91/9 awilL foleq seduelquindu3 pue senjpusadxy Jo Juswialels 91 :Aq pajeald

Swelim J9jAL

19sM)

[owie) JUnojy JO UMO L

ainypuadxg Jo Juswajels Doy :awep djejdwa)



00'0 000 000
£0'88°0TT %T9°'8¢ (68'806°€88'T) T TTL¥81°T (00°029'890°€) (00°079'890°€) TP :pund iod |ejoL
000 00'0 00'0 siomolg jue|d Jamas
000 %000 (00°000's) 000 (00°000's) (00°000's) 956
asuelquinoug pasn % a|qejieAy spung sadueIqUINOUZ 196png |eloL sjusawpudwy Palqo J9u9) Palqo
/1enppy /sdinypuadx3 [196png jeuibuO qns 150D
alnW aiA

04/9" :aAneledwo) Ajyauo

%l9'16 Alje. D Aiuol ZIb : puny
8T Jo g1 9bed Sz0z Aepy
Wd ZS:€ S202/91/9 iowy) /ajeq seduelquinduy pue ssamipuadxy jo Juswalels D91 :Aq pajeat)
SWeljipm J9JAL HELT |oune) JUNOK JO UMO| ainypuadxg Jo uawWleS Do PoweN sjejdwa)



Mount Carmel Fire Department

Mitch Walker, Fire Chief

June 2nd, 2025
To: James Stables, City Manager
Ref: May 2025 Monthly Report

The Mount Carmel Fire Department answered a total of 31 calls for service during the month of
May. Day shift personnel answered 19 calls, and 12 calls were answered by volunteer staff. Our
average dispatch to arrival time was 4:17 with a 90t percentile of 7:29. Calls for this month

included multiple vehicle accidents and medical responses. This brings our year-to-date total to

182 calls for service.

May proved to be a very busy month for the fire department, especially regarding community
outreach events. Members participated in events with Oak Grove Baptist Church, Freedom
Baptist Church, and multiple events with Mount Carmel Elementary School. We are always
honored to participate with organizations within the community. Lt. Stapleton and | traveled to
West Fargo, ND to inspect an aerial apparatus to replace our current truck utilizing the CDBG
funds. | am excited to say the trip was successful, we look forward to this long-awaited project

arriving in July!

During May, Mount Carmel members completed a Tennessee Fire and Codes Enforcement
Academy course in Urban Search and Rescue Tactics. This 4-hour course made our members
comfortable operating in areas of natural disasters. Members also completed a rope rescue
awareness class reviewing slope evacuation techniques. We would like to congratulate
Firefighter Hayden Joyner on obtaining his HazMat Technician certification and Asst. Chief Luke
Wood on obtaining Fire Instructor Il. These members are dedicated to serving the town to the

highest level possible.
Thank you and the BMA for your continued support.

Mitch Walker, Fire Chief

100 EAST MAIN STREET, MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE 37645
T (423) 444-1027 E MCFD@MOUNTCARMELTN.GOV



" aso Total Record Volume By Incident Type

Custom v May 1, 2025 - May 31, 2025 v

29%

FIRE
i nlage cf Tousl

INCIDENTS
In Selecied Tan

31

DAYS
In Selected 1 0
May 2 May 4 May 6 May B May 10 May 12 May 14 tAay 16 May 18 May 20 May 22 May 24 May 26 May 28 May 30
Jan'22 Jul'22 Jan'23 Jul’23 Jan ‘24 Jul'24 jan'25

% Rows % Columns % All

Week Ending 5/4/25 5/11/25  5/18/25  5/25/25 6/1/25 6/8/25 6/15/25  6/22/25  6/29/25 7/6/25 7/13/25  7/20/25 7127125 Total

(31) Medical
oSSt 1 2 2 2 4 1M

(32)cigm|ergency

medica

service (EMS) J g 3 & i
incident

(46) Accident,
potential 1 1 2
accident

{55) Public
service 1 1
assistance

61) -
Dispatche
canceled 1 & 3
en route
(62) Wrong
location, no " i
emergency
foun

(73) System or
detector 1 1 2
malfunction

Total g 8 8 8 4 31

Page 1 of 1






6/18/25, 8:33 AM CivicEye - Incident Console

Incidents May 2025 v Incidents (May 2025)

-

O O - O 0O O O NN

Total Incidents

Total Arrests

Total Drug Charges

Total Murders

Total Rapes

Tatal Other Sexual Assaults

Total Kidnappings

Total Domestic Violence
Total Date Violence
Total Stalking

Parties
Individuals 24

Organizations

>hurch Hill

Juveniles
Expunged

Quarantined

3
g
0
Infoctious 0
0
2

Complainants

Victims 11 2
Suspecis 9
Unsubs 0
Witnesses 4 I I l I
Responders 0
5 LN TN BN N I I S e 14 "’;*P;Z
1

Healthcare Professionals '«'.."‘.g%'gug‘v'éoo")pbg‘oﬂ Q")D%Q%'&g‘?'@g"fogﬁ'&q‘?’@go}’ & Q%’N 0‘3')& Q%’x & Q‘o’q' g:’q' @’fb Qéa'q“ %Q%‘q' b‘@’q’ & &
Other

Arrests Incident History (last 12 months) Arrest Race
Juveniles 0 20

Teens 1

Adults - 20s 1] 10

Adults - 30s 0 l I I I I I

Adults - 40s 1 0 l . l

Adults - 50s 2 N O S . e B - B B B

Adults - 60s 0 » v& & & edx Q‘?/c & & \x@( VQ< Q\?’* ~

Seniors - 65+ 0

£ : | street address or place name _go L X 4 Q search mapped incidents Zoom: ) 12 + | -]

https://mountcarmeltn.agisent.com/incidents/index.htm mn



Hawkins County ECD
2291 E MAIN ST ROGERSVILLE , TN 37857

CFS By ESN Type Department Summary Report

et CC L e e A

Call Type Count
DISTURBANCE WI\NEAPON
TRAFFIC STOP ;;_1_
Dept Sub Total

ESN Sub Total

Call Type Count
ATTEMPT TO CONTACT
Dept Sub Total

ESN Sub Total

Call Type
fRECKLESS DRIVER
Dept Sub Total

ESN Sub Total

Call Tpe Count

TRAFFIC STOP 1
Dept Sub Total

ESN Sub Total
Call Type Count
‘CARDIAC ARREST |
DISTURBANCE 1
‘RECKLESS DRIVER 2
TRAFFIC STOP 2
Dept Sub Total 6
ESN Sub Total 6

CAD Report 45 Page 1 of 3 06/12/2025 16:29



(2}
E |
=]
-~

Call Type
911 UNKNOWN

ABDOMINAL PAIN

ANIMAL COMPLAINT
ASSAULT

ATTEMPT TO CONTACT
BLEEDING '
BREATHING PROBLEM
CARBON MONOXIDE ALARM
DISTURBANCE

FOLLOW UP

JUVENILE INCIDENT

LE ALARM-COMMERCIAL

LE ALARM-RESIDENTIAL

LE INFORMATION
MENTALLY ILL PERSON
MOTORIST ASSIST
MVGC-ENTRP/EJEC
MVC-INJURIES

MVC-NO INJURIES
PATROL/PREMISE CHECK
PROPERTY DAMAGE
PURSUIT

RECKLESS DRIVER
ROADWAY HAZARD

SICK PERSON

STROKE

SUSPICIOUS ACTIVITY
TRAFFIC STOP
UNCONSCIOUS
UNKNOWN LE PROBLEM
WARRANT SERVICE
WELFARE CHECK

Dept Sub Total 126
ESN Sub Total 126

D= D NENRS 202 W= NG S a0 20w 2R =

CAD Report 45 Page 2 of 3 06/12/2025 16:29



Call Type Count
RECKLESS DRIVER 1

Dept Sub Total 1
ESN Sub Total 1

TRAFFIC STOP 3
Dept Sub Total 14
ESN Sub Total 14
Total Records 152

4



00:0 6€8
00:0 €c-vi-
00:0 00:0
00:0 00:0
00:0 SOl
00:0 G0:0
00:0 8G:L
00:0 €LiLl
00:0 9~
00:0 00:0
00:0 00:0
94:20:1 80:G
000 00:0
00:0 €26
00:0 ¥I-
000 £6'G
Zvisa ivju3

6€:8 00:0
00:0 €2:€l
00:0 000
00:0 00:0
G0:€l 000
§0:0 00:0
00-8 ¢00
il 00:0
00:0 910
00:0 00:0
00:0 000
80:G 00:0
00:0 000
00:0 €c¥
00:0 ¥0:0
€66 00:0

¥2:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

€€°0

00:0

LGl

0z:0

100

[4%0)

9G¥

A%

00:0

00:0

00:0

ce0

dy/sq u3/sa sq/s40

LELELL
520¢/20/S0

or:GhiolL
§202/20/S0
90:€V:SL
§¢0¢/c0/S0

oLviiet
6202/20/50

cl:8e:0l
§202/20/S0

LE'1T60
§¢0¢/c0/50
I NANAS
G20¢/10/50
61:46:12
G¢0z/10/50

Spile8l
§20¢/10/S0
ylige8l
§20¢/10/50
GlLGevL
5202/10/50
95:ehvl
§202/10/50
ESLYCl
G¢0¢/10/S0
6¥:25:0}
§¢02/10/50

869160
§202/10/S0

81:6€:80
§20¢2/10/50

paso|d §40

LELEL)

9v:Sy:9L

9G:2GL

oL:LLet

Z1-8c:01

L£:12:60

§ligcliee

61:26'1¢

syilesl
16281
SligEpL
95:Zrvl
25Tl

6¥:¢5:01

86:9):60

81:6€:80

1e3|)

LTl 6£:00:vE

02:ge:L) Welill

S0:9¢:91 8¢:6€:91

1S¥E:G1

Geieo:el

LETe0)l 2e6L0L

¥¥:L1:60 6€:L1:60

22602 veiisile

€v:9Lile 0e:50°Le

60:61:8l GZ:61:8l

€18lvl
6l:eziel LLiLLEL
Gegegt

vS:Lv:0L L1250l

GE'8E'80 6£:8€:80

L2'€1:80 $£:20'80
Iy ug

WELiLL

G0:92:91

1GveGL

AR

ce61:04

6€:41:60

[44VA N ¥4

0€:50:1¢

60:61:81
£E:90:81
€L8lyl
bLiLLEL
GE'6eC)

PS:LYi0L

§¢:8€'80

¥€:20'80

LLELLY
§202/c0/S0

S0:92:91
§20¢/20/50
LSpEGL
§202/20/S0

ge:20el
6¢02/20/S0

65:81:01
§¢02/20/S0

6E:L1:80
G202/20/s0
=10 8 YA
S202/10/S0
01:50:4E
S20e/10/S0

80:61-81
§202/10/50
leiv0:8l
G202/10/50
L€yl
G20¢/10/50
00:LL:€L
§20¢/10/S0
GEGeTL
G20¢/1L0/50
yGiLYi0L
§202/1.0/50

G€:8€:80
G¢0¢/10/50

¢0:20:80
G20¢/10/50

sa Pamadsy S49

906

906

906

606

506

€06

£06

506

G506

adon

€06

906

906

906

906

¥06
Hun

652 OANEY

65¢ YOWEY

65 SleEv

69¢ Sleb
g

OVINvYd

Al
65¢3d0dd

69¢ 104Ey

652SNSey

LINNOW ‘1S NIVIA

Mozy | (FNEvD

INNOW) AVYMENS
TINEVD

LNNOW ‘1S NIVIN

mzst | Gandvo
LNNOW) NOHLYYVIN
IAV IONTANIJIAN!
/ 1S aOOMa3y

Hio
AHOMOIH A0 / 3AY
JONIANIAJLIANI

TINEVYO LNNOW
‘1S 30NYdS 90¢
TANHVYD LNNOW
‘1S NIVIN M 991

1 13WdYD LW-NOINN
LIg340 NvINLSY3
T3IWHYD INNOW
‘IAY QOOMAVYH LLL

TINEYO LNNOW ‘vig

652 HOMEY

69¢ SleEv
65C AEY

65¢ YHYEY

65¢ slaey
65¢ SleEv

65¢ Slitv

652 ONVEY

65C SVEY
NSs3 adAy 1D

NS3 Ag dnoig) j8ayg peaids awi] asuodsay ad TINHVYI LNNOW

168/€ NL * ITTIASHIO0Y LS NIVIN 3 1622
ao3 funo) supjmey

107 N1 3J470M Otvi
dIo

AHOMOIH @10 / 3AY
JON3IANIJIAN!
3AY AOOMATONT
/M L AVMHDIH

N1

J4TOM /NI SITII M
T1IAYO ANNOW
3AY NOSY3443r €02
JAY IONIANIHIANI
/1S aoomaszd

AV FONIANIHIANI
1 dID AHOXJIH G710
da

SHVYO NIATS / IAY
AONIANISIANI

1ANAVYO
AINNOW ‘3AV

J341ANNOY 20€

uopeson

£€8€10-G202

G28g10-6202

618€10-520¢

26.€10-620¢2

¢LL€10-520¢C

£€9.€10-G20¢
8¢LE10-G20C

81.€10-G202

20.£10-520¢2
102£10-520¢

089€10-5202

£49€10-620¢C
£99¢10-620¢

8v9¢10-5202

GE9E10-520¢C

¥€9€L0-G202

# 840
6G¢



00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00-0

1¥:65

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

Gell

00:0
00:0

926

00:0

8¢¢

62:0

00-0

90:0

00:0

000

00:0

¥0:9

¢y

00:0

00:0

800

00:0

g1

Ge'l

00:0
00:0

9¢'6

00:0

8¢€:¢

62:0

00:0

90:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

$0:9

€Ty

00:0

000
80:0

00:0

00:0

000

00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
vi:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

80:0

9L

00:0
920

yRAY"

00:0

§G'l

$0:1L

GG:0

€26

00:0

0c:Gl

010

cc'l

2g0

00:4

00:0

L0¥

00:0

00:0

Y8561
§20¢/50/S0

Gligest
G¢02/50/S0
ARG A 4%
§202/50/50
L¥80:G1
§20¢/50/50

6ELLvL
§202/50/50
EVBEEL
§20Z/50/50

Lp:0LEl
6202/50/50
¢lgeol
§20¢2/50/50

02:ey:60
6202/50/50
6¢:¢}:80
§¢02/50/50
¥5:8€:80
§20¢/S0/50
0l:1¥'ee
§20¢/e0/S0
£G:€€:CC
§20¢/e0/50
61:15:0¢
G20¢/e0/S0
358 741 T4
§202/€0/S0
AR HA A
§¢02/€0/S0
8¥:1G:CL
§20¢/€0/50

€lreee
§202/20/S0
€¢:€0:0¢
§¢02/20/S0

Pp:8G:SL

G1:2e:Gl
PR A 48

L$:80:G1

8E:LLvL

£v:8ecl

(441 Fr A8
122560

0¢:8¢£:60

62:21:80

8¢:0¥:20

90'Lv:ee

£6:6¢€:2¢

61°16:0¢

6€:01:61

1G€2:EL

€0:80:Ct

AR x 444

€2:€0:02

2zlliege 9lisyile

¥0:56'Gl 62:€SSl

16:02:G1
90:9¥:¥1

yresvl 8livbivl

Wie0vl

¥1:GC:ElL 9ECTEl

ehiericl viieyel

16:8%:60

62:¢2i60 61:22:60

G€:20°80

€€:91:20

61:6€¢¢

Svegiie Lvllile

61:1€:0C 95:9¢:0¢

9€:6L€l

0E:LP:LL Ce:iviLl

¢estee

0€:.6'61 8€:.56L

62:€5:G1

1G:0C:GL
90:9¥:v1

8LippivlL

LPeovl

9ggeel

vLevet

LE'8¥'60

61:¢¢:60

G€:20:80

€€:91:20

61:6€:2¢

WiLlile

96:92:0¢

20:.£81

9e:GLEl

[ A%

(A WA

0€:2G:61

€6:16:G1
§202/S0/50

16026l
§202/50/50
ov:Siivl
620¢/S0/S0
1Gevyl
§¢02/50/S0

38000 48
G202/50/50
L:0Z:EL
§202/50/50

Olevet
620¢2/50/S0
v Ly:60
§¢02/S0/S0

962160
6202/90/S0
G€:20:80
§202/50/50
€1:10:20
6202/50/50
60:6¢'¢e
§202/e0/S0
61:9L:1¢
6202/€0/50
¥2:92:0¢
§202/€0/50
20:9¢e:84
6202/€0/50
9e:GL €l
5¢0¢/€0/50
SLiEPILL
620Z/€0/50

726122
5202/20/50

0£:26:6)
$202/20/S0

£06

506
906

906

906

¥06

¥06
adon

906

906
006

¥06

06

¥06

adonw

906

¥06

906

906

6S2INNLLE

66¢ SlEv

659¢ Slev

65¢ yvey

65¢ Slitv

6G¢ ONVEY

65C Jlvel

65 DIIEY

652 d1Siv

65¢ SlEv
652 HOISLY

65¢ OLlvey

6S¢ISNSEY

652 NINEY

652 HIIEY

69¢ Slev

652 UNNLY

65¢ SleEv

65¢ Slev

LINNOW ‘1S NIVIN
M o€z | 309N0Ss
18414 s¥3aaIng
TIWNHYD LNNOW

‘1S NiVIN M 99}

| TANEYD LN-NOINN

11d340 NVYINLSYT
M L AVMHDIH

/ AV QOOMAWH
TINEYO INNOW

‘IAVY TIVHSHVYIN 502

TH

HO¥NHO 'GY AITIVA

SHILAVO 6€09

| (ATTIVA SH3ALMVYD)

SNd vzzid
THINEYD

ANNOW ‘LS W13 ¥ES

T1INNVYO

INNOW 'LS SS3YUJAD

L | HOYNHD

1S11dvd 3A0YD HVO
3AY IONIANILIANI

/M L AYMHDIH
TANYYO LNNOW
‘LD SMOavan
3SIINNS 201
NTSIM13 3/ 3AY
JONIANIJIAN!
1AWNYYD LNNOW
‘SAV ¥3N0A £09
T13NHYO LNNOW
‘Ma ATTHSY 9¢L
T13ANEVO LNNOW

YA 33IN0Y3HO 0ES

T13NEYO INNOW
‘1S 30N¥dS 00€
aQy Mvo olg/ay
ATTIVA SH3LHVD
TANHYO INNOW
410 31MYVO 602
13ANYEVYO LNNOW
‘1S AOOMAIY 099

TIH

HOYNHD 'y ATTIVA

SH3 1V 6069

| HOYNHD 1S1Ldve

FIVANTIHO
J1ANEYO LNNOW
‘da NOaNv oyl

IElt=10]

6¥1¥10-5202

S¥1¥10-G20C

Iwi¥10-520¢

6€Lv10-520C

LEL¥10-5202

L2l¥10-5202

€2i¥10-G¢0¢

860%10-G¢02

¥60%710-5202

280%10-920¢C

6.0¥40-6202

896€10-5202

196€10-6¢202

L66€10-520¢C

9v6€10-6202

616€10-G20¢
216¢€10-520¢

§98€10-520¢

€£68€10-620C



00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

000

GE'G

+0:0

o¥-1-

06:0

€6

9z'sl

V-
L0

L0:0

6L°1L

74

00:0

$0:0

§0:0

90:0

(440

60:0

00:0

00:0

GEG

$0:0

00:0

050

£5°€

eisl

00:0
L0

L0:0

611

¥2's

00:0

¥0:0

§0:0

90:0

(440

60:0

0€e'8

00:0

00:0

00:0

0r:0

00:0

00:0

80:0

bLe

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00-0

€00

80:0

00:0

SS'L

8¢:€

10:0)

00:0

ci6l

00:0

0¥:0

0s:0

00:0

00:0

100

00:0

156

00:0

S0:LL

¥S:1

G20¢/60/S0

A gA%A%
620¢/60/S0
Ov:¥¥:cc
6202/80/50

0€:10:G}
§202/80/50
ov:€l:0c
§202/L0/50
1¢:¥i6l
G202/L0/S0
00:80:6}
§20¢/L0/S0
£0:8€:91L
6202/L0/50

oe-epich
§20¢/L0/S0

L$:0¥:90
§202/L0/S0
€l:eLol
§202/90/50
60:€2:€l
§202/90/50
1€:25:04
§¢02/90/50

2v:00:01
6202/90/50

G1:6€'60
G20¢/90/50
62:26:60
§¢02/90/50

60-86:20
6202/90/50

81:8E:61
G20¢/50/S0

vlee9l
§202/S0/50

0g:2TSh

A2 %A}

ovvvcc

65:00:S}
oy:el:0c
leily6l
00:80°61
80:80:91

ocevcl

1¥:0%:90

€Ll

60:€2:€l

12801

L:00:01

G1:6€'60

8¥:65°30

60-85:40

81:8€:61

vl:€2:9l

01605l GE6S¥L

96:6%:01 ¢5'6¥:01

65°Cr'¢C 6L€vcT

pe8Tivl vhilThl
81:89'61 GC-¥5-61
6£:€261 €1:80:61
€258l 8¥:6G'81

LE110:91 92:10:91

60:6¢Cl co6TCl

L0:8€:90 8¥:9€:90

€1:20°91 6¥:1091

alillel

L¥1G0L €¥11G0L

209660 255560

¥¥'€€:60 8E:€C:60

22:9v:80 00:9¥:80

G0:LpL0 95:9%:L0

LEZEBL

9091

GE6S V1

256101

65:¢¥-¢¢

vhileivl

A2 H

50:80:61

182581
92:40:91

co:6ccl

81:9€:90

6¥:10:91

gliLlel

£r:16:01

15'66:60

8€:€€:60

00:9%:80

96:9¥:20

L0:¥2:61

9:v0:91

§20¢/60/50

6101
§202/60/50
8G-ehice
§202/80/50

6v:5Chi
§20¢2/80/50
150561
§¢0¢/L0/S0
¥0:85:81
§¢02/L0/50
L8258L
§20¢/L0/S0
vliersl
§202/L0/S0

co6ecl
§202/L0/50

80:9€:90
G202/L0/50
65:00:91
§202/90/S50
9i:LL:EL
§20¢/90/50
€¥:15:01
§202/90/50

96:656'60
§202/90/50

8€:€e60
G20¢/90/50
€0:92:80
§202/90/50

9G:9¥:.0
§202/90/50

96:90:61
G202/50/50

262091
G202/50/50

€06

006

S06

006

506

S06

€06
€06

906

¥06

€06

906

906

906

06

906

906

€06

Y06

65¢ YOWNEY

6G¢ 10dey

65¢ Slev

6S¢ SIgEy

65¢ ANrey

69¢ Slaey

65¢ dNdEY
662 ¥MISLY

65¢ SlE¥

652 OveEY

652 MNN3A1

65C Slev

69¢ Sley

66¢ Slev

6GCISNSEY

6G¢ 80S.Ly

65¢ SlEy

6S¢ 104ey

65C INEY

/LS NIVA M

TANAHYO
ANNOW 'IAV

AYIANOCDLNOW 202

AV GOOMAYA
/M 1L AYMHOIH
TINEYO

INNOW 'Z09LINN
N7 33T0M 0p¥L
is

NIVIN M / 80 ¥XVNN

T13WEVO LNNOW

‘IAY ANOWWVH ¥E0L

1S INNTYM / IAY
JONIANILIANI

TANEYD LNNOW “HI1D
INOOUHIIHS S veL

TINNYD
LNNOW ‘1S NIVIN
M oer | IFWHvYD
LNNOW) HSYA
dvo 9na v any
TANNYD

LNNOW ‘LS NIV
Mogz | 30MN0oS
1S¥i4 sH3ang
TANEYD INNOW
‘1S 39N¥dS 00

AV FONIAANIJIACNI
/ I AJOMOIH 110

3AY IONIANIJIANI
/ dI0 AHJOMOIH 410

¥d
ASVYHOHIA / Y
ATTIVA SH3ILHVO

THH

HOYNHO 'ay AITIVA

SH31 VO 2959

TINHYO LNNOW ¥a
134NV 34T0M €92

j<[te]

AHOMOIH 0 / IAY

JON3IANIJ3ANI
T1INEVYI LINNOW

‘IAV ITTIAHSVY 9LE

T13INWEYO INNOW

‘IAV JONIANILIANI

9651 | HOYUNHD

1S11dvd WOd33HA

13NAVYD

8¢91710-520¢

£65¥10-520C

L¥Svy10-G202

10S¥10-5202

12y¥10-6202

2evP10-620C

02v¥10-5202

¥6E¥10-5202

95¢€¥10-520C

0eey10-6202

0.2%10-5202

LE¢v10-5202

022vL0-5202

912v10-6202

Glevi0-520C

2levi0-6eoe

802¢¥10-G20¢

LL1¥10-G202

251ivi0-5¢0¢



00:0 800 80:0 000 9e'y §202/60/50 Z|:8eiLz 81012 0F:L0'LZ OF: 012 §202/60/50 €06 652 Sley  LNNOW) S33QYVH %.9%10-6202
66:92:02 6Z:90:02 TANEYD LNNOW

000 D0 00:0  00:0 piril S202/60/S0 859202 60'80:02 60'8D:0Z §202/60/50 £06 692 1LldEw ‘N1 3ITOM OVFL  699¥10-6202
0€:Z2:61 ze'85 vl IAY AOOMITONT



00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
000

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

£6:€¢
60:9¢
00:0

90:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

q A4

00:0

95:8

£ve

00:0

¥0:0

00:0

£6:€¢C
60:9¢
00:0

90:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

TAT4

00:0

998

eve

00:0

$0:0
b

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

Ll
920
L80

e

00:0
61:0

L1:6g

(44

00:0

G20

44

00:0

10:0
L5

810

¥¥:60:91
Gc02/vLIS0
L¥:80'S1
§20e/v1LISO
62:90-¥1
G202/vV IS0
05:0€°60
§20e/¥1LISO

09612
S20e/eLISO
L¥S561
SZ0Z/ELISO
6EZR-LL
S20e/EL/S0

ey:0e:8l
G¢0c/eL/SO
9E:L el
§coe/eHSo
0e:eeol
G20e/eL/so

9ebL:0L
S20C/EL/SO

viLL:8lL
§¢0e/eliso
9¢ge L1
§202/C1/S0
6£:89:80
STAVATAYI

01:20:60
S TAVATAREY

1€:46112

¥v:60:91
L$:90:G1
62:90:¥1

L¥:10:60

10:95:12
176561

6€:2viLL

0€:61:91

9gil eyl

0€:2e04

80:8$'60

i:L1:81

§e:8ellL
6€:85°80

01:20:60

2e1091 6£:2E6G)
¥2:90:51 Si:ovvl
$0:00:%1

12:9€:80 G1:9€:80

seveile

80:8¥'61

0S5'¥€:Gl 62-28:Gl

1G61:pL

€2:G1:01 L2'90:0l

0¢:Ge:60 LE:1T:60

86:¥0:8}

clLi6e:LL 806211
€G:81:80 ¢¥:91:80

¥5:10°80

6€:LEG)
GL:ovivl
¥0:00:¥1

§1:9¢:80

198 ZAY4
80:81:61

92:61:91

62:cE:G)

166L:vl

12:90:01

LE:12:60

85:70:81

80:62:1 1

<¥91:80

$5:10:80

22:96:G1
S202IPLISO
6Y:6€ 7L
$20Z/71IS0
L2661
§202/71/S0
£0:€€:80
SZ0Z/PLIS0

Seveile
5202/€1/S0
6¥-L¥61
G202/EL/S0
SL0vSk
GE0Z/ELISO

L0:CESGL
§202/e1/S0
1G6L:pL
G20e/eLIs0
20:90:01
G20zZ/€L/S0

§G:21:60
GC0C/ELISO

85¥0'81
§20ze/cLis0
10'62°L1
§202/2L/S0
Sv¥1:80
Gc0e/el/so

9€°10:80
6202/2LiS0

$0:16:0C

506

906
006

906

506
£06

506

S06

906

906

006

506

906
006

906

3

OVIAVQ
AL
65¢3d0dd

65¢ISNSEY
65¢ DNIEY

65¢ ANNLY

65¢ YOWEY

65¢ DdANIEY

652 DdNIEY

659 OAW¢CL
65¢ Sltv

65¢ YOWEY

652 HOMEY

65¢ Slev

6S¢ 104Ev

65¢ JOAN

6G¢ DANIEY

THANHVYO

AINNOW ‘@Y 13dYHO

SAAOTI 0chL

TIWHYD LNNOW “¥a

AHOMOIH 10 085
TINEYD LNNOW
‘18 A0NYCS 2¥S
TINEYD LNNOW
‘1S 30NYdS zzv

TANEYD
LINNOW ‘LS NIV
M +2S | 3WdYD

AINNOW) S3AANVH
TINHYD LNNOW
‘1S 3ONHdS L¥S

TINYVO LNNOW "Ha

AHOMOIH a0 +€S
TINHVYO LNNOW
‘IAY AOOMAYH
901 | S1¥vd
OlNY ATI340

JAVY JONIANISIAANI

INTSIT13 3
AV ONOWINYH
/M 1L AVMHOIH
TIH

HOYNHOD 'y AITIVA

SHI LAV 0€99
13NEVYD LNNOIW

‘IAV JONZANIJIANI

62¥l

13WEVYO LNNOW
‘1S ATIOH 6
TIWUVYO LNNOW

‘IAY ANOWWVH EV6

13WHYO
AINNOW 'IAV

JONIANIJ3ANI S29

JANEYD
AINNOW 'LS NIVIA
M ¥26 | (1I3NNYD

¢61G10-5202

8.1510-5202

¥L1510-5202

821510-620¢

960510-5202

§80510-920¢

290510-620C

99061 0-G¢0C

6¥0510-620C

L66¥10-520¢2

486¥10-5202

¢y6v10-G202

168¥10-520¢C

9/8¥10-520¢

§/8¥1.0-G20¢C



00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

¥¥:60:1

00:0
00:0

00:0

000

6¥9

00:0

12§

¥0:0

L0l

950

Lyre-

S0:9

EV'8

ot

9e-9-

8l

s

156

61-:0-

*1AY)

1° 042

00:0
00:0

00:0

90:0

6¥:9

00:0

LeS

¥0:0

L1:0L

95:0

00:0

609

ev8

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

166

00:0

S¥'9

14°H4%

00:0
00:0

00:0

90:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

Lyl

00:0

00:0

ore

9€:6

80:0

¥0:0

00:0

616G

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

$S:0

[420]

6vc

00:0

€0:¢

00:0

00:0

6€:0

910

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

120

00:0

Slib

201

1 8
00:0

€10

80:¢

§202/2e/S0
€1:0b:L1L
§eoz/ee/so

bbbl
gcoz/ze/so

geeeiel
§c0c/ee/so
0§:8¢:¢1
G20z/2e/so
ShievEl
G20e/12/s0
priLLEL
§20¢/1¢/s0

GL€L:80
§¢02/1e/s0
60:2}:1e
§202/02/S0

82:10°1¢
§20¢/02/S0
LE:GS:0)
§¢0¢/02/S0
Py0¥:01
§20¢/02/50
6G:¢2:0l
G¢02/02/S0
ve6eel
G202/61/50
L0°€0:60
§c02/61/50

Leebl
§202/9t/50
G0:.G6°1¢
G¢0c/S1/60

61:20'61
G20Z/S1/S0
1G:91°Cl
G¢0¢/S1/S0
90:L¥:91
§¢0e/vLIS0

1$:00:91
Gc0e/v1/S0

yee0:81

€1:04:LL

Zr9l9)

gz:ee:el

05:8¢e-¢Cl

Shi6viEl

PriLlel

S1:€1:80

60:21:1C

8z:10'le

LE:8G:0L

vr:ov:0l

6G:2¢2:01

ve:i6gel

L0'€0:60

Leieil

eVvSiie

S¥:c0:61
1S°9¥:CL

90:1¥:91

0¥:00:91

158191

8€:1G:Gl

¥sveel

¢0:S¥:60

eviey:el

£2:00:€1

YRATA LY

8€¢l:Ie

0z:62:02

LL:Ly0L

GEET0l

0€:20:01

Lziet

02:25°80

o601 L
€6'G¥: ¢ 85:90:L¢ £0:06:0¢

6yvyicl

829G

80:21:91

oegLiolL

b1:2S:61

0S:veel

1G¥€:60

Lyieyiel

01:zo€l

2c9gil0

GG:€0:1¢

00:e€:02

€5:9¥:01

€0t

¥€:20:01

9eL0:El

6€:20:60

10:65:01

60:-2¢:0¢

80:9e:8L

22:9%'S1

80:¢l:91

ocicLiol

112551

0S:¥2-et

LG¥€:60

Lyeyel

€2:00:€L

22:9e:L0

GG'€0:12

0¢:6¢:0C

L1Ip0L

GE:€T0L

0¢€:20:01

9g:10:et

02:25'80

10'65:01

60:.€:02

80:9¢:81

6v-v¥-Zi

€1:8G:G}

22961

§202/22/50
8v:20:8l
§¢0¢/22/S0

ceceyrsl
§20¢/2e/S0

05:¥2°El
§202/2¢/S0
81:¢€:60
§¢0z/ce/so
Lyierel
G202/12/50
£2:00:€1
G¢0¢/1e/s0

€¥:GEL0
§202/12/S0
6¢:€0:1¢
§202/02/50

0¢Z:6¢2:02
§¢0¢2/0¢/50
L0l
G¢0¢/02/S0
Ge:€e:0l
§202/02/50
0¢:¢0:0)
G202/02/S0
GlL:10:€L
§20z/61/5S0
02:.5'80
G202/61/50

94501
6202/91/S0
20:9¢:02
G202/S1/S0

SS:pe8L
§20¢/S1/S0
6vvycl
G20¢/S1/50
00:85:G1
GeQT/vLiSo

YLEVGL
G20e/vLISo

£06

906

P06

906

¥06

906

906

906

£06

606

006

006

006

906

906

906

G06

S06

906

adow

£06

65¢ OAINCL

692 11dey

662 SlEv

65¢ SlEV

65¢ OAINEY

652ISNSeY

659¢ Sley

65C AOrey

65¢ OANEY

65¢ SlEV
65C 104Ey
65¢ 104ey
65¢ 10dey
652 YVHEY

652 YOWEY

65CHOMEY

65¢ SVEV
El

OVVA

AL

65¢ 3d0yd

65C Sitv

6ST IIEY

65¢ Agviv

‘1S "v1dOd 61€
TINUYI INNOW
‘N7 3470M 0ppL
N7 SONRdS
MOAVIN / IAVY
JON3IAN34IANI

t=1to)

AYOMOIH A0 / IAVY
JONIANIJIANI

Qd MIINONVYO / G
ATTIVA SH3LHYD
TINHVYO LNNOW "HIO

INOOYIHIHS N G0
da 1T139dWvD / ay
ATTIVA SHILNYD
TINYVYD

INNOW ‘209LINN

NT 3370M OFt
TIWHYO LNNOW
‘IAY ANOWWVH #10L
t3[ke)

AHOMOIH 10 / AV
JONIANIJANI
TANHVD LNNOW

‘NI SITTa 3 sez
JIWHYD LNNOW

‘NI SI12 3922
TANYVO LNNOW
‘N1SIT13 3 2¢2
TINEVYD LNNOW
'SLV N1 3370M OFpl
JAY ANOWINYH

/M Ll AYMHDIH
TANHYD

INNOW ‘A LINN

1S aooms0d iy
TANYYD LNNOW "HID
IHOOHEYIHS S 706
TANHYD LNNOW

‘LS NIVIN MOLE

| T3INNVYD LNNOW
40 dnND A¥Iva

¥Aa 1139dNYD / a
ATTIVA SHILNYD
JAY AOOMITONIT
/M L AYMHDIH
TINHVYO LNNOW
‘IAY ANOWNVYH €12
| INFWLYYL3A I

T3NEYO INNON

§8¢910-G20¢

¥82910-620¢

082910-520¢2

1S§2910-5202

942¢910-520C

€11910-620¢

011910-5202

6.0910-G20¢

9€0910-6¢02

¥£0910-6202

L$6510-620¢

,£6510-5202

9€6510-520¢C

118510-G20¢

€41510-5202

2€P510-5202
€9€510-6202

9v€G10-G202
00€510-520¢C

961610-5202

¥61510-G¢0C



00-0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

0o0:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

9¢-¢-

€611

£0:0

00:0

ov€

00:0

0¢-1-

1A 4

00:0

0o:0

00:0
00:0

00-0

00:0

00:0

€0:0

00:0

oye

00:0

00:0

(A4

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

9z’

€50

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

020

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00-0

00:0

10:0

0L8

00:0

70

00:0

00:0
€Lz

00:0

10:0

00:0
00-0

§20¢/L2/S0

82:95:60
§c0z/L2/S0

EE:0¥:60
§202/22/50
90:20'60
G20Z/ieis0
L1:20:80
S202/42/S0

y¥:02:S)
§20¢/92/S0

clogel
G202/92/50

0e:gLiLL
520g/£2/S0
0l:0g9l
Geoz/eeiso

60°12:60
Gc0¢/ee/s0

01:96:80
Ge0e/ee/s0

LyvE-80
S20z/ee/s0
65:12:80
Ge02/EE/S0
25'60:8l

82:80:c}

8¢:96:60

L7:8€:60

60:65:80

11:20°80

€625

clioeel

0e8l:Ll

01:09:91

60-12:60

01:95:80

L1280

65:12:30

10:20°'El 10:20€1

V10560 £1:25'60 LP'0G:60

1€:22°60 ¥2'82:60 1€:L260
00'8¥:80 2S'Lv80 LS'Lp:80

LGP0 6.0

PeSLivL PRILLYL PPLLPL

9s56L€l 95:61-€l

E¥:20:LL €0:€0:LL €¥:20:LL

01:9¥:9L Sh'¥Z:9L Syveol

0€:60°60 0€:60:60
6E€P'80 6€:€1:80
6€:¢2:80 6€:¢¢-80

¥:€0:80 $¥:€0:80

Gc02/L2/50

L¥:06°60
G202/42/50

0€°22:60
§202/L2/50
Ly:6E:80
5202/L2/50
#1:6P:L0
§520¢/L2/50

001wl
§¢02/92/50

96:61'€l
G202/92/50

EF-20:L1
G202/ET/S0
¢EgT9l
G20z/egIso

0€:60-60
§202/€2/S0

8€:€%:80
620¢/ee/50

6€:¢2:80
§20¢/€2/50
##E0:80
S20ZIET/S0
FLLLgL

¥06

G06

S06

¥06

¥06

Y06

¥06

€06
606

906

906

906
906

65¢ Slev

6G¢ Slev

659¢ Slev

65¢ d14.iy

652 ONVEY

6G¢ NIJNEY

66¢ SleEv

69¢ Slev
69¢ 1der

662 SlEv

65¢ Slev

65¢ Siey
65¢ DANIEY

/ 1S 30N¥dsS

ay
HIADYYEANYYL / IAY
JONIANI4IAANI
TINNYO LINNOW
‘JAV FONIANIJIANI
£zel

TINEYD LNNOW
‘IAY ¥3A0QA L6¥
TIWHVO LNNOW

‘1S SSTULAD ¥vE
TFNHEYD

INNOW ‘VLINN

1S MOTIIM 912

ad

ATTIVA SHILNYD
/¥a 3901y X0o4
TAINEYD INNOW
‘IAV ONIANILIANY
Ziel

TIWEVYD LNNOW

‘NT 3470M 0v¥i

3o}

ANOMOIH 70 / IAY
IONIANILIANI
TANHVYD LNNOW ‘ay
ATTIVA SHTLHYD
6£€9 | YHvd ¥3TIViL
OOHD OOHD

TUH

HOYNHD 'ad AT TIVA
SYILMVO 2969
TINHYD LNNOW ‘N1
NIMOVHIIN 1091
TINEYD INNOW

1£8910-5202

608910-5202

208910-520¢

66.910-G20C

¥6.810-5202

¥¥.910-6202

6€.910-5202

8€¥910-920¢2

82¥910-520¢

2.€910-520¢

89€9L0-5202

19€810-5¢202

S9€910-5202



00:0
00:0

00:0

AN
00:0

00:0

10:€0:C LL-"€01-

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

SPLLiL

L1182}

00:0

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

(434

00:0

12843

6

LE0

LE-19-

00:0

0L-h-

00:0

00:0 ZEO
00:0 00:0
¢y 000
00:0 .Lev't
00:0 000
00:0 000
00:0 000
00:0 00:0
¢y 000
00:0 00:0
Y5yl 000
00:0 60t
L£:0 000
00:0 1Lg6
00:0 2100
00:0 010
00:0 000

00:0

€€0

€L

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

€2:0

6€:0

00:0

o4

00-0

0L's

00:0

019

00:0

00:0

05:00:0
§202/0€/50
€1:92:22
$202/62/S0
622V12
§202/62/50
9LHZ:€Z
$202/62/50
ZZ:0v:9l
5202/62/S0
£€:22:01
§202/62/50
6GGLEL
§202/82/S0
zzzvizL
5202/82/50
SZ:08:11
5202/82/50

51:90:0}
5202/82/50
c0'e0:ge
Ge0z/L2/s0
LA TA A
§20e/L2/S0

11:80:61
§202/L2/S0

¢2:60:91
6202/L2/S0

9C eVl
G¢0¢/L2/S0

LLeevl
Gc0¢/L2/S0

96:6¥:€l
G20¢/L2/S0
8¢2:80:€l

6%:00:20
(AR TATAA
6c:¢vile
91:¥2:€C
cciov9l
£€:L2:0)
65:G1:€)
[FAT4 24"

STA Y

61:90:01

¢0-80:¢¢

ysizviee

L1806}

¢¢60:91

9¢:vevl

Llgevl

956l

61:25'90

€ciieie
O:vy:2e L¥:92:¢C Shlvi0c
65:52:91
c0:€L0l

yC:80:€L

65:62:11

¥2:€0:0L
Ge'vsle

GE:pG0C GO¥E0C 05:LE:6L

L5858 LIS¥8L LLLELL

8€:00:91

£E0LPL

olL:ovel

96:¢5:90

65:8¥:1¢C

coveiee

AR %48

Ly:GCLL

LE6e L2

65:8€:61

0¥:0e:LL

60:90:94

L'€Y

ev:0L:vl

61:¢5:90
6G:8¥:te
Lpiocie
SPiL¥:02
65:52:9)
c0:EL:0L
y280:€L
PAH A4

LyST L

200l

Le6e'le

05:.£°61

0r:0g:L)

8€:00:91

0c:€cvl

€C0Lvl

oL:9r€l

61:25:90
5202/0€/50
9z:8YLT
$202/62/50
8LELLZ
5202/62/50
St11:02
§202/62/50
65:62:9)
$202/62/50
Z0:EL:0)
5202/62/50
¥2:80:€)
$202/82/50
peiLezl
5202/82/50
80:GZ:41
5202/82/50

ve2-e0:0L
§20¢/82/50
8F:LE LT
§202/L2/S0
05-2E°6L
S202/L2/S0

0g:seill
G20¢/L2/sS0

BE00:91
S202/L2/50

0Ll
§¢0¢/Le/s0

€€:0L:¥L
6¢0¢/LelS0

oL:9rel
§202/.2/S0
10:20:€l

506
906

906

€06

906
¥06

006

¥06

506

S06

€06

¥06

¥06

€06

S06

606

G06

65¢ SleEv

65¢ ONvEY

65CISNSEY

652 ASMEY

69¢ YONEY
65¢ SlEv

65¢ 104ey

66¢ DANIEY

6G¢ OLveEy

652 SlEv

65¢ ONINEY

65¢ SlEv

662 I1SNSEY

69C SlEv

65¢ 1LdEY

65¢ Slitv

66 Sltv

IAY IONIANI4IAN!

/1S NIVIN 3

JAY JONIJANIJIAANI

/18 aooMa3y
TANEYO LNNOW
"da NOANVYT 804
1INEVO LINNOW
'ya AFTHSY 02}

AV QOOMAYHA
/ML AYMHOIH

JAVY LNOWI39
/1S NIVIN M
TFAEYO LNNOW

40 ATTHSY 251
J3ANEYO LNNOW
'HQ ATTHSY €61
T3NEVYO LINNOW

‘1S MOOTNIH 2S5t
TINEVYO
AINNOW ‘IAV

JONIANIJIANI 0SS
| LSIGOHL3W A3LINN

TINEVYO INNOWN

JAY ZONIANI4IANI

/1S ¥V1dOd

NT NIMOVHOOW
/1S aooma3y
TIH HOYNHD
2107 Qa4 AITIVA
S¥31dvO ¢¥l9

TIWHVYD LINNOW ‘LS
NIV M 0EL | NOINN

110340 NOZI4OH
13NXVYO

INNOW 'SLV.LINN
N7 3470M OviL
1H

HOYNHD 'aY ASTIVA

SYILYUVD €ELS
T3INAYD

LINNOW ‘ad A3 TIVA

SHILHEVD €6€9

JAY FONIANIJIANI

6.1410-520¢

991.210-620¢

191210-G20¢

651.10-6202

6¢1.10-5202
¥20440-620¢C

896910-520¢C

2566910-5202

€¥6910-520¢

€€6910-620¢C

806910-520¢

968910-G20C

¢88910-5¢0¢

698310-6202

§68910-5202

£€68910-6¢0C

9¥8910-G20¢



00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

6E-192-

LT84

ve:0l

135

$0:Z 0s5:¢
(w
Jee|ojzanuty (W) Zeaay/dsig
owl] abesany aw] abeioAy
60:92 00:0 yakrs ) 00:0
(W) eAly dsia N) eAuly/dsig (W) uzidsia (W) suasdsig
ewn) xely  ewll ulN ow} xepy oL Ui
GO:0V6l
00:0 6E€6Z 00:0 GZOZ/OE/SO  ¥P190:02
PEILEEL
szib 000 620 SZOZ/OB/S0° SILEIE)
6z:0z'2l
¥Z:0L 000 #E0 G20Z/0E/S0  §20%Th
BEVZLL
00:0° LLiD 10i0 S2Z0Z/08IS0  BEPE 1L

0Lk

(W) zearuypge  (IN) yo/enlly
awi) abesany

awi| obesaay
LL:6€

AT

00:0

(Wdsiarsdo (W) dsiq/s3o

suwill xely

EEGLBL ZLIL¥EL
LE0CEL CLOLEL

A4 S A O TATA R

6ZlilL 00ELILL

£E5161

CcL9LEL

L TATA XY S

vzi 6811
W) (W) dsigss4o
onosuzjdsiq owl abessay
ewi] ebesaAy
£2:16'C €580V
(W) enouz (w) dsia
/dsiq swl (€301 /S4D wiy [ejo)
wv._ouww_ jeol
TAWHYO LNNOIN
‘N1 3S0d 909 0.ZL10-5202Z
1S

BSCYOWEY AVE /3AY QOOMAYY FETLL0-SZ0T

62:2 LO:L
()
(W) esaaydsia  eAly/eInolug
ewi] abesaay awi) abelany
yriv0:8 6V'SLS
(W) zonny (W) eatiy
swilL Wy /dsig awll [ejol [ds|g swll (e300
92l
EEGLI6L
SZ0Z/0E/S0 €06 BSZADMEY
EFCSLEL
SZ0Z/08/S0 506
PSLELL
S¢02/0E/50 G068 65ZAOMEY
greZLill
SZ0ZI0E/S0 ¥06 6SZ DANEY

6r2LiLL

TIWHYO INNOW "Hd
13NV 3410M 02 ¥122)0-6202

TFNEYD INNOW

1S NIV 3 212

| (TIWNYD LNNOW)
IVHINID YWY TI0A  01ZL10-5202



Hawkins County ECD
2291 E MAIN ST ROGERSVILLE , TN 37857

CFS By ESN Type Department Summary Report

_— 05/01/2025 - 05/31/2025
Call Type

911 UNKNOWN

ABDOMINAL PAIN

ANIMAL COMPLAINT

ASSAULT

ATTEMPT TO CONTACT
BREATHING PROBLEM
DISTURBANCE i

FALL

FOLLOW UP

HARASSMENT

JUVENILE INCIDENT

LE ALARM-COMMERCIAL

LE ALARM-RESIDENTIAL

LE INFORMATION

LE MUTUAL AID

MOTORIST ASSIST
MVCINJURIES

MVC-NO INJURIES

‘MVC-NO INJURIES (COMMERCIAL)
NOISE COMPLAINT
‘PATROL/PREMISE CHECK
PROPERTY DAMAGE

PURSUIT

RECKLESS DRIVER

'SEVERE WEATHER INCIDENT
SUSPICIOUS ACTIVITY

TRAFFIC PROBLEM

TRAFFIC STOP

TRESPASSING 3
VANDALISM 1
WARRANT SERVICE 14
WELFARE CHECK 1
Dept Sub Total 107
ESN Sub Total 107

—ﬁl:nA{D-;—-wm.nmu._‘..AM_.;.;N_..;..;#_.N_\N_‘@O
=)
-~

L]
§ .



00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

Geec:h

00:0
00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
Zvisd

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

6€:8

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
dyjug

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

9i:l¢

00:0

0S¥l

86:CE

00:0
00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

561

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

10

cs0

000

00:0
¢s0

€0

00:0

6L

850

00:0

vL0

00:0

00:0

1€:0

120

160

ly/sq u3/sg@ €qQ/sd0

§202/90/50

81:¢s'ze
§20¢/90/S0
9e:9¥:Gl
§20¢/90/S0
LE:0¥:2e
G202/S0/S0
9c:ce6l
§202/50/50
[AB>A
§20¢/50/50

2 A gy
§¢02/S0/50
£€¥0:0¢
G20¢/v0/S0
vc8lLigl
Gc0e/P0/S0
(U
§202/€0/S0
358 741 ¥4
§¢0¢/€0/S0

PrEVi6L
§20¢/20/S0
vlgzi8l
G20¢/10/50
80-80°2L
§202/10/S0
Leesi L
§202/10/50

25¢C1iL0
§202Z/1.0/S0

eviLev0
§20¢/10/S0

v2:9¢:20
G20¢/10/50

paso|] §490

25:66:2¢

81:¢5'ce

9E:9¥:Gl

}e:0v:ce

92:2e6l
ARrA]

6G:6¢:10

€€:¥0:02

2818l

0£:61-€2

9s:€e:ie

yi€v:6l

vliseiel

80:80:¢)

1S L1

[AEA YA

hLTv0

¥2:9€:20

1ea|n

GE'69'6L leeel

v s

80:¥5:¢¢

£6:.€:2¢

8¥:€2:61

06:00:0¢
65:08:2L
81:96:¢Z

86:60'61

0¥:6€:61

L2651

cooviLL

6G:9¢:¢0
v

9€:82:10

6€:L1:2C

ug

80:¥5:¢C

£y.6¢:2¢

50:90:GL

€6:L€:¢C

8¥:€Z:61

¥£:8¥:60

9€:82:10
L6l
6G:0G:LL
8cil¥ee

00:2£:81

0v6e6!
GEPO0:8L
126G

209%:LL

£€€:00:20

¢0:52:v0

10:£0:20
sa

6202/90/50

9¢:62:2¢
G20¢/90/S0
€1:60:G1
620¢2/90/50
£5:.8¢C
§202/S0/S0
8v:€2:61
6202/50/50
yLy60
G¢0z/S0/50

60:82:10
G202/50/50
91:2¢e:6l
620¢/¥0/S0
65:05°ZL
5202¢/v0/50
60:6€'22
§20z/e0/50
¢0:9¢:84
620¢/€0/50

ov-6e:61
G20¢/c0/S0
12:¥0:81
§20¢/10/50
L2:6G L1
§202/10/50
2091
6202/10/50

¢0:00:20
§202/10/50

(3 A LA
G20¢/10/50

019020
§202/10/50

PaAleday §40

ove

LvE

OSOH

vie

1435
OSOH

343

62¢

134

62¢

QOSOH

19€

OSOH

1A

€LE

£6¢

GEE

Gee
un

652 Slity

SNid vzzid
TIH

HOYNHO ‘ad A3TIVA

6SCISNSEY

6SCIHEY

65 Slev

65¢ Slty
6G2Z3IMIEY

652 Ovey

65¢ INVAEY
69¢ SleEv

6G¢ OLlvEY

6S23IMHEY

65¢ Slev

6G¢ IHIEY

65C SleEv

652 ASMEY

STV 298G

JAV ANOWIWVH

/M LL AVMHOIH
3AY 3ONIANIGAANI

I M L AYMHDIH

3AV LNOWI349
/1S NIVIN M

AV IONIANIJIANI
/M L AYMHOIH

TANEYD LINNOW ‘LS
NIVIA M 0EL | NOINN
11g340 NOZIYOH
ay SSOHD AVM / QY
ATTIVA SH3LNYD
IAY ANOWWVH

/M L AVMHDIH
13NEYO INNOW
'4a ATTHSY 9€t

ad Mvo o019 /ad
ATIVA SHILEYD
TIWHYD LNNOW

‘L LINN 1S NIVIN
3001 | TIVH ALID
TINEYD LNNOW
IAY AOOMITONI

I M LL AVMHDIH
N1SIM13 3/ 3AY
IDONIANIA4IANI
TANEYD LNNOW

da SHVO NIA3S 509
TIH

HOYNHD 'ad AJTIVA

65¢ 10d4ey

65¢ Ovey

SYILHVD 5149
JINHVYO LNNOW ‘LS
NIVIN M 0EL | NOINN

11g38D NOZIMOH
THH

HOYNHD ‘ay AT TIVA

6GZINNLLG
NS3 adAL 118D

NS3 Ag dnoig) je8ys pesids awi | asuodsay OS ALNNOD SNIMMVYH

2687€ N1 3TTIASH3IOO0N 1S NIVIN 3 1622
as3 fQjuno) supimey

SH3LAVO G129

uogeso]

G1E¥10-520¢

0l€¥10-9202

86¢y10-520C

¢6Lv10-5202

€41¥10-5202

86011 0-520¢

€.0v10-520¢

¢50¥10-G202

6€0¥10-620C
896€10-5202

9v6€10-5202

168€10-G20¢

10.€10-6202
659¢€10-520C

959¢€10-620¢

829¢€10-5¢0¢

€c9EL0-520¢C

819¢€10-620¢

# 840
65¢



00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

vy

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

L0:9Y

00:0

00:0

00:0

80:€

00:0

8G:L2'1

00:0

000
00:0

026

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

$0:0

00:0

8¢:€C

00:0

000

00:0

¥2:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

Ll

00:0

FANA

10:0

810

00:0

€10

00:0

00:0
00:0

LIy

00:0

(444

00:0

§Z'0

VA2V

210

¥2:0

00:0

L1:8E¢)
G202/ 1180

CLAARAS
G20z/L /SO

10:62¥0
G¢0z/L1/S0

62:€5:61
§20¢/01/S0
6G:62:61
§20e/01/S0
£¥:6€:91
6202/0L/50
¢¢:90:01
§20¢/01/50
1¢:€0:80
G20c/0L/S0
LEEY Y0
G202/01/S0

LE1LS e
§20¢/60/50
8G:15:20
§¢0¢/60/50

60:85°€2
§20¢/80/50

215091
G¢0¢/80/S0

0€'10:G}
G20¢/80/50
16'E€€e
G20¢/L0/S0
¥v:61:00
§¢0¢/L0/S0

vSLyee
§¢0¢/90/50

¢6'65:¢¢

L:gect

SyilEC)

10:62:¥0

6¢:€5:61

65626}

£P:6€:91

22:90:04
L2'€0:80

6€:¥0:¥0

1€:46:1¢

8G:¥5:¢0

60:85:€¢

105001

§0:10:G1

LGE€ECC

¥¥:61:00

v lviee

11:92:¢1

0%:50'¥0

e€'chi6)

L€2581

62:€5:Gl

8¢:92:60
€1:82:L0

£5'0G:€0

$0:45'0¢

L1 ¥S:€C

oveev)

€1:90:00

65:2¢:¢¢

95:20'¥0

¢l:06:€ee

(44 HA

19221

¢€:20:%0

€eCr6l

€€:62:LL

6¢:€5:G1

8¢:92'60
€4:82:40

L8:Lye0

$0:46:02

6€:0€:20

LI9S€2

Ly€S:GL

1NN 4

clgeee

Seviee

65-CE€C

§¢:L2ch
G20z/11/50

91:9¢:¢l
G202/11/S0

¥1:20'v0
§20¢/11/S0

£€CY61
§202/01/S0
A= TAVAR
G202/01/S0
62:€5:G1
§20¢/01/S0
82:92'60
§202/01/50
€1:8¢:L0
§202/04/50
0¢:2E:€0
G20z/01/S0

$0:25:0¢
620¢/60/50
266120
G20¢/60/50

LEYS€e
620¢/80/50

22€5'S)
G20¢/80/50

(G ATA 48
G20¢/80/S0
§G:L€T
§20¢/L0/50
lg:evee
G202/90/50

69:¢cE€eC
5¢02/90/50

80:¥6:¢¢

OSOH

12

yee

ove

OSOH

She

Sve

5145

yee

¥ee

€129

obe

OSOH

oce

6ve

6¥¢

ove

662 IHAEY

692 SleEv

652 'W3EY

65¢ ONVEY

65¢ DdANIEY

69¢ SleEv

65C¢ SleEv

65¢ Sl1tv

6G¢ daviv

65¢ SlEv

69¢ IONEY

69C SlEV

6S¢ 3 IMEY

65¢ SIdEy

65¢ 10dey

652 ISNSEY

65¢ SleEv

INNOW ‘1S NIVIA

M ¥#26 | OINRYD
1NNOW) STIANVH
JANNYD

LNNOW '1S NIVIN

M 0£Z | 308N0S
18d14 s¥3aling
TANYYD LNNOW
‘1S NIVIN M 991

| 73NEYD LN-NOINN
113340 NYWLSY3
TANNYO

LNNOW 'y A3TIVA
SHILYVO 95¥S
TIWHVO LNNOW
‘LS ATIOH 6EY

1S NIvIN

3/3AV NOSYH3d43r
3AVY ANOWNVH

M L AVMHOIH

1S HOMIg

/ ANV INONTFNHS
13NHEYO LNNOW
‘IAY AOOMAYH L0S

TINHYD
INNOW ‘1S NIVIN

M $25 | (1IWNVYD
AINNOW) SA3A¥VH
TINEYO LNNOW ‘N1
NNY SH3LNNH 651
TH

HOYNHD ‘Y AITIVA
SYILUVO €649

TIIH HOMNHD ‘ay
ATTIVA SHILHVD
GZIl9 | LHYIN ASTIVA
RE 1)

ANNOW 'Z09LINN

N1 3410M 0vpL
TANYD INNOW "HID
IHNOOHTHTHS S ¥06
TIWHVYD LNNOW "HID
IMOOUFHIHS S $06
THH

HOYNHD ‘a¥ AITIVA
SHIALHVYD 8559

[ (AFTIVA SHILHVYD)
JOVHOLS DILLY
TH

HOYNHD ‘QY ATTIVA
SYILHVYD 6£09

| (A3TTVA SH3ALHYD)

118¥10-5202

018¥10-6202

88.%¥10-G¢02

¥9.L¥10-520C

Ly.Ly10-G202

8€.v10-G20¢C

§0.¥10-G20¢C

269¥10-620¢2

689t10-G20¢

¥/9v10-G20¢C

295¥10-620¢

865v10-520C

015¥10-G202

10S¥10-G20¢

0v¥¥10-9202

2cevi0-620¢

0cerL0-5¢0C



00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

9e:0¢€

VA A4

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

1A 44

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

Lipl

00:0

ov:8l
00:0

(458>

60:L2

€L:§1

908

00:0

60:L1

00:0

00:0

Sevie

00:0
00:0

.10

L1:0L

8lib1

00:0

€0:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00-0

00:0

Se:0

12:0

g0
§20

b1

£V0

€lil

9€:0

00:0

b1:0

00:0

010

9Ll

00:0
00:0

00:0

80:1

§¢:0

120

95°0
el

G2oe/LLIS0

A a%s
G202/L1/S0
Ll:9g€l
§202/L}HSO
L0:0€:20
G20¢/L1/S0

1) VA HAA
§20¢/91/S0
ylLGLiLe
§202/91/S0
1S¥¥0¢
G202/94H/S0
o9l
§202/91/50
0E10vL
620¢2/91/50

¢cLT00
G202/91/S0

A AA4
G20zZ/v1/S0
90 L¥: 91
G20e/v1/S0

o9¥65:21
SE0Ziv SO
peiLZiGlL
GZ0z/eL/s0
BEWG
STOZ/EL/S0

0¥:82:2)
§20z/elL/S0

9ep1:0L
Geoz/eL/so

81:12:60
G20e/ELIS0
9l:0G:le
G20e/L1iS0
v§:ce L)
5202/1L/S0
[AAH 4%
G20¢/11/50

yeiLeSL

8z6¥El

L1:98:€1
20:0€°L0

£v:L52C

yl:§lile

5eh 2114

[44° 418

0e:10:v1

¢C:L2-00

(VA 2114

90191

9v'65:Ct

e LTS

1130 4* B A

0r-8¢:cl

9g¥L:0L

81:12:G0

91:06:1¢2

80:8L:LL

[AYR % 48

Lgiveigl Lyilzel

Ly pe:9) 80:L1L:9)

1€:€0:01 8G:2¥:60

05:62:S1

61:pT€L

ov:0e:ee

0¥:60:1¢

85:80:81

0c:0e:51

L1iggel

€0:22:00

00:2¥:0¢

SlLipSTl

£¢:¢0:G1

cleee)

¥1:62:60

L710Z:50

¥0:0€:91

6e:LLSl

£CiLrEL

6£:L0:€L
¥E:L1:90

80:/GilC

1£:8€:0¢

S¥es:Ll

ylczish

LLigsel

€5:%0:00

00:2¥:0¢

01:85:G)

06660

€2:20'61
SLiLvivt

§sieey

£0:61:60

€2:60:50

0S-21:12

10:0€:9}

20yl

G202/LL150

COLyEl
G202/L11S0
20:20:€L
G20¢2/L4IS0
60:21:90
5¢02/LL1S0

PS¥6iLe
6202/91/50
8¥:.£:0C
§¢02/91/50
2ees Ll
520¢/9L/S0
8eileel
§202/91/50
L1es€el
6202/91/S0

Zv¥0:00
§202/91/50

00:c¥:0c
620¢/vL/S0
00:85:G1
520¢/v1/S0

¥€-8€:60
§20e/v LSO
€2:¢0:61
§202/ELISO
SliLvbi
Gcoc/el/so

1N YATAN
G20z/EL/SO

§G:41:60
G20z/eLIS0

85:80:S0
§20Z/€1/S0
62:L1:1¢
S202/11/S0
§0'62:91
G202/LL/S0
€e: Loyl
G202/L1/S0

ove

8¢¢

ore
ove

8€e

8€¢

8€e

ove

€LE

(44

155

OSOH

1GE

08¢

08€

08t

LGE

ove

8et

Sve

Sve

65¢ Sldcy

65T MAEY

65¢ d¥iey

65¢ MASZ.
3

OViNva
Al

65¢ 1d0dd
65¢ ONVEY

65¢ ANFEY

65¢ SIaey

652 \SMEVY

65CISNSEY

65¢c SleEv

6SC IEY

6S¢ J1vEY

65¢ \SMEY

6SCASMEY

652 N\SMEY

652 HAOMEY

65¢ Jvey
65¢ OANEY

652 OANINZL
659 ¥VHEY

1S ¥OOTNTH 202
TIH

HOYNHD 'Yy AT TIVA
SHILYVYD 8559

[ (ASTIVA SHILEYD)
IOVHOLS DILLY
T3INEVYD LNNOW

‘Ha 18340 Zvl
TANEVS INNOW

‘1S ¥va3aD €¥S

TH HO¥NHD

‘a4 W13 918 051
J13WHYO LNNOW
“4a I100IN S9L
IAVY ANOWWYH / ad
13dVHO SAAOTT
TANHYD INNOW "HID
INOOHEHIHS N €L L
JAWEYO INNOW

‘1S 30NYUdS LIE
TANAYO

INNOW ‘SL LINN
3IAY ANOWINVH €28

TIIH HOYNHD ‘ad

ATTIVA SHIALUVD
GZL9 | I4YIN AITIVA

3AY QOOMITONH
/M L AVMHOIH
TH

HOYNHD 'QY ATTIVA
SY3LHVO 1065
TANHYO LNNOW

‘1S 30NYS 1€
J3ANEYO INNOW

‘1S NIVIN 3 6v€

T3NHEYO LNNOW
¥d 3AISHIIUD 9¢P
TIH

HOYNHD 'a¥d A3TIVA
SYILAVD 0€99

TIIH HOYNHD ‘ay
AITIVA SH3LHVYO
gzie | LYYW ATTIVA
13WHYO INNOW

‘1S QOOMAa3Y S€S
AAY AOOMITONT

/I M L AVMHOIH
13NYVYO INNOW

‘LS ATIOH 6E¥
T3NHYO

169510-520¢C

£86510-G202

625510-620C
6¥9510-5¢0C

¥16510-6202

905510-520¢

16%510-6202

¢L¥S10-G20¢C

86¥510-5¢0¢

6.€G10-520¢C

§22510-620C

961510-6202

9€1610-620¢

150510-5202

¥50510-520C

¢20510-5¢0¢2

286¥10-520¢C

€.6%10-520¢

84811 0-G20C

128v10-G202

€18¥10-6202



€0:L1Y

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

20:20°L

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

000

00:0
| AR AY"
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00-0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

L2t

90:0

¥0:0

00:0

00:0
¥0:0

00:0

00:0

1G:€

10:4

00-0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
166
[44:14

00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

10:0

00:0

00:0

8v:0

00:0
00:0

cL0

207}

819

(440

00:0

9liLl

00:0

00:€

00:0
9€:0
4

0e:t

LEibbiLL
§¢0¢/ce/So
96:6v:G1
G202/2e/s0

9z:80:cl
G¢0z/22IS0
96:2e:¢l
G20¢e/2e/s0
8€:90:¢t
§20¢2/¢cis0
¥¥:2S5:90
§¢0z/2e/so

65:02:G0
S202/2¢/50
L5:6¥:80
G20z/1 /50

1£:92:€¢
§202/02/S0

LyvSile
Gc0e/61/S0

8¥-¥1:60
G20c/61/S0
4 AR A
§202/81/50
9€:0€:81
6202/34/S0
€8¢l
§20¢/81/S0
¢0:4¥'00
G20¢/81/S0

21:9¢2:00
§20¢/81/50

vi€liee
G20e/L1LISO
81:20:€C
§202/L1/50
02:95:61
6202/L1IS0
}16:.¢:0¢
§20¢/LLIS0

V2 lE6L

LLitLiLy

95:Gy:GL

9z:90:€L

gsgech

8€:90:C)

¥9:¢5:90

66:02:50
15'G¥'80

9l:02:€¢

L1pSLe

<1:€0:60

eyileee

9e:0e:81

SS9yl L

20:.¥'00

¢1:9¢£:00

vlLi€lee
81:20:€Z
61:95:61

LE6l6l

G2'00:Ll 8E:lE9) 226Gl

Ly6€:GL

LTeoel
yei6ziel

€0:20:21

PP€G'C0 LGE€TE0 Ci9P:20

£7:0¥:80

9€£:20'80
0e:0eze

e5ilei8l

90:4#:00

¥5:80:€2

9¢'lg'le 10:69:0¢ 02:00:0C

LE:9€6)

ceierist

LyeeGl

00:20:cl

8l:6cct

65:L0:C)

02:60:90

(420240

6€:01:80

Ge:8l:ee

91:6€:12

G¥'€0:80

6¢:€¢C.2¢

2sile8l

2gi9eiLL

90:+¥:00

}1:8E€C

¥5:80:€¢
€956l
G1:L0'6}

GGv0:61

(44 418
§202/22/50
Ly:6€G1
§20¢/ce/s0

65:10:€4
G¢0¢/ee/s0
8l:62:¢t
§20¢/¢c/S0
6G:10:Cl
620¢/2e/S0
2€:80:90
G¢02/2e/So

[44°rg4y
620z/22/s0
6€:0¥:80
G20¢/12e/S0

€2:81:€C
G¢02/02/50

60:8€:12
G¢02/61/50

L2:LS'L0
§202/61/S0
L0€eee
6¢0¢/81/50
25:L28l
G202/81/50
91611
G¢0¢/81/50
90:¥¥:00
G20¢/8L/S0

Ll:6eee
§20¢/L1/1S0

¥5:80:€C
G202/LLISO
LV'€G'61
G202/L1/50
¢0:60:61
§20z/LLIS0
G2:€0:61
§20¢/L1IS0

Y04 LiGE

°12%

gve

c9e

[4°3

(413

Sye

vee

G¥e

ot

oce

(143

8€E

8€e

ove

9¢ce

8¢ce

0ce

0ge

0ee

8¢ce

65¢ SleEb
65C¢ SI1Ev

652 ASMEY

65C \SMEY

652 ASMEY

6G¢ LdEy

69¢ SlEy

65¢ Slev

6SCINNLLE

6G¢ 11dev

65¢ OAWeL

652 ISNSEY

65¢ YOWEY

652 1MV4Ly

69¢ Slev

652 ISNSEY

65¢ Slev

6G¢ ddlEy

6S¢ ddley

652 ONINEY

N1 SONINJS
MOAVIW / ANV
3JONIANIJ3ANI

ANV ANOWWVH

I M 1L AYMHOIH
TIH

HOMNHO 'GY AITIVA
SHILMVO ¥299
TAINYYD LNNOW M1
IMNO0UEHTHS S 06
13IWHVYO LNNOW

‘N7 3470M 921
TANHEYO LINNOW ‘SLV
107 N1 3410M Obp L
N7 SONIMdS
MOQvIW / IAVY
JON3AN343ANI

IAY AOOMAVH

I M LY AYMHOIH
TIH

HOYNHD ‘Y AITIVA
SY31YVO 8069
T13INEVYD

LINNOW ‘SLYLINN

N7 3410M Ol

ad MOTIOH
HONYAVSN3S

/a4 W13 ol1d
TINEYD LNNOW ‘8
1IN LS AYH3IHD 602
AV GOOMITONIT

I M L1 AYMHOIH
TINEYD LNNOW "HID

INO0YLHIHS S ¥06
ad SSOHO AVM / aY
AITIVA SY31HVD
11IH HOYNHD

'€ 107ad A3TIVA

SHIALHYD €529
TANEYD

LINNOW ‘LS NIV
M90L | TaNHYD
INNOW Z3dS
TINHYD LNNOW
"Ya 1S3NO KL
TIWHYO LNNOW
‘IAV AONOWWVH vE0L
1S INNTYM / 3AY
IONIANILIANI

TINHVYO
INNOW ‘2LdY

082910-6202

6/2910-520¢

9t¢910-5¢02

Zyeol0-520¢e

6€£2910-6202

$0¢910-G20¢

961910-G202

980910-520¢C

6+0910-6202

€88510-520¢

19.610-520¢

6¢.510-520¢C

L04510-6¢0¢

§29510-620¢

£69510-620¢

059510-520¢2

9v9510-5202

€29510-5202

¥19510-5202

£19610-620¢C



00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

¥S€S

00:0

000

00:0
00-0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

9gile

€e8

9g:el

00:0

8v:¢l

00:0

00:0

1484

00:0

00:0

00:0

€0:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

16:¢¢

161

VA% 4
00:0
00:0
00:0
00:0
00:0
20
9¢:0
pe0

-0

850
¥5'9

Wile

€10

85:0

1€:0

L850

110

00:0

00:0

20:06'2¢
G¢02/Lels0

¥Si11:02
§20¢/L2/S0

21:80:61
§202/.L2/1S0
LG:gevl
G¢0¢2/L¢/s0
ye8livi
§20¢/.2/50
L1:G1¢)
§¢0¢e/L2/S0
65:60:Ct
CTAVAVRAL
0g:6511
G20¢/Le/S0
12:6£:00
620¢/L2iS0
¢ev0iee
§202/92/50
61:9%:€0
620¢/9¢/S0
LEELGL
G20e/se/s0

60:cl:€¢
G202/¥elS0
8l:0¢g'ee
§202/ve/SO

0s5:/2'¢
§20c/ve/so
LELLS)
S¢0e/ve/s0
clioeel
§20¢/ve/sO
00:4¥'Cl
520¢/¥e/SO
L¥:65:0)

G20¢2/¥¢/s0

¥€:92:0¢C
§202/e2/S0
€¥:61:60
§20¢/eT/S0
00:62:0¢
G2oze/ee/s0

20:06:¢2

¥S:11:02

1A VA
LGgevl
ve:8l:vl
L1G1ZL
65:60:Ct
0€:65:11
12:6€:00
12v0'2e
61:9¥'€0

LEELGE

60:¢l:eC
£0:6¢:2¢

12:9¢:0¢

LEILLISE

cLioeiel

00:Lt'C)

9¥'65:01

v£:92:0¢

€¥:61:60

00:52:0¢2

0y:8¢v1
9c-viivl
VAR A%
25v0:2)
1GES L
¥1:85:€C
¥2:0¥'0¢ €1°GL:0¢ €0:9G:61

8¥:8€:€0

85:01:€C

8¥v0:v1

16:80:02

PEEL:S0

00:12:0¢

12:0¥:2¢

v0:€5:L)

L0:0€:L)

or:8eyL

9zl

YA 4%

25:%0:Ct

LG€S L

8€:9¢€:€¢

0€:9t:61

¢e9ze0

2szh§l

01:85:¢¢
90-E¥:1¢

GG:¥€:0¢

ye08€l

ceveel

cl8ech

0€:8¢:0t

81:80:0¢

¥E:€1:60

00:12:0¢

0g:41:22
620¢/L2/S0

eLiLgiLL
§202/L2/S0

0€:G2:L}
§20¢/.2/S0
ov:8evl
§¢0¢/Le/S0
9zLLibL
§202/L2/S0
LL0Vel
§202/.¢/SO
2sy0:glL
§202/.2/50
LGeG L)L
§¢0¢/L2/S0
11:9e:€e
§¢0¢/92/S0
¥G:6¥:61
§202/9¢/50
8¥:52:€0
620¢2/92/50
80:C1:G1
§20¢/S2/S0

¢l:L5:¢e
520¢/v2/S0
[ARC1 N T4
G20¢/¥e/So

¥1:40:0¢
§202/¥2/S0
AR
§20¢/¥2/s0
vZ:ecel
§e0e/ve/so
iviLeel
Gc0e/ve/s0
£5:9€:01

G202/v2/S0

1€:80:02
G20e/ee/S0
€160
Gc0Z/ec/S0
00°1¢:0¢
G202/ce/S0

8€ee

8€ee

OSOH

8.€

8.¢

€LE

574

€Le

£1 4%

EVE

ore

Gee

£ve

9€e

ove

445

(425

8€E

0ee

ove

ove

19€

65¢ 104eP

6S¢ 104y

6SCISNSEY
65¢ ASMEY
6SCASMEY

6GZ A\SMEY

6SCASMEY
65 ASMEY

66¢ SVEv

65CISNSEY
6SZINNLLE

652 DIAEY

65¢ IONEY
652 DAWZL

662 90OS.tv
652 ANrey
6SCINNLLE

6G¢ 1Ldey
o)

66z INNEY

662 Slitv
6SZ dNdey

6G¢ Slitv

HOYNHO 'SLLINN

ad W13 918 oct
TIH

HOYNHD 'SLLINN

ad W13 914 021
TIH HOJNHD

‘T 107 QY ASTIVA
SHILHVD 2vL9
TANEYD

INNOW 'LS 3NId 8L¥
13WHEVYO LNNOW

‘10 ¥3NNVd 821
T13WEVYO LNNONW

‘N7 3470M 921
13NYYO LNNOW

‘28 N1 3410M 0vplL
13NYYD LNNOW

¥d SYMVO NIA3S 0L
T1IH HOYNHO
‘413 olg Lt
TINIYD INNOW

“4ad AFTHSV €61
T13NEYI LNNOIW
ANV VINVILY ¥22
IAY AOOMITONS
/M LL AYMHOIH
T1IH

HOYNHD 'GY AITIVA
SYILYVYO ¥6L9

1S INNTYM / IAVY
JONIANILIANI
TiH

HO¥NHO '@y AITIVA
SYILHVD 9209
TINHVYO LNNOW WA
139NVY1 34T0M 042
132WEVYI INNOW
‘JAV OIHO 0002
TANYEVYO LNNOW

‘NT 34T0M OrpL
AV GOOMITONIT

/M L1 AVMHOIH

TIH
HOYNHD 'Y ATTIVA
SY31YVD 8559

[ (A3TIVA SH3LHYD)
IOVHOLS OILLY
IAY AOOMAWY

/M Ll AVMHSIH
IAY AOOMITONT

I M LL AVMHDIH

016910-520C

888910-520¢

€88910-5202

168910-5202

¥5891.0-6202

£€8910-520¢

2€8910-6202

0€8910-620¢

182910-6202

892910-G¢0C

¢el910-5202

298910-920¢

119910-520¢

£659910-5202

£85910-620C

9¥5910-G202

6€£5910-5202

¥£9910-520¢2

125910-5¢0¢

29%910-G202

25€910-520C

02€910-G20¢



00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

¢1:00:1

00:0

00:0

00:0

awi} abessay awi} abeioay awy] abesany
sTrLe 00:0 12 00:0 A VXA
(W) aAlLY/dsiq N) aALuy/dsia (w)sugidsig (W) Juzydsig (W) dsta/sd0
awiy xep switg Wi oWl Xep awl] uIp awl] Xepw
G295
00:0 00:0 000 €20 §20Z/1€/S0 G2:9G9-L)
€1:62:91
00:0 2l:20:L 000 91:0 GZ0Z/LE/S0  Ziseial 91:€0:9)
(rA A"
00:0 €0:21 000 910 G20T/1E/S0  LEiLLEL cegegl
6€-€2:20
00-0 00:0 00:0 220 G20Z/LE/S0  8€:€Z:20
L0:9%:G61
00:0 000 000 22¢ GZ0Z/0€/S0  L0:9¥°Gl
9l:ve:ee
00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 620Z/62/S0 60:v2:2¢ LGi¥: 12 LS'8L1E Shiiv0C
£0:62:01
00-0 00:0 00:0 00:0 G20¢/6¢/S0 €0:62:01 1§:22:01
82:01:20
00:0 00:0 000 00:0 §202/62/50 82:01:20 05:€2:10
65:85:02
000  00:0 000 00:0  S¢02/82/S0  ggiggioz 6€:25:02

125
(w)
1e8|D/ZeAllly

(W) zeaaydsia

615 vyl

() ZaalyAyeT

6v:2

() yo1/enlY

awyi) abesaay
00:0
(W) dsia/s49
swil Uiy

952541

b0:9Gvi

62:8lcl

9¥61:20

G0:LE°G)
SPiLvi02
16:2Z-0L

05:€2:10

6€:.5:0¢

0L:4

() entuydsiq
ow] abesory
0€:0€:6
(W) zonmy

(dsia swny feyo1 /dsiq awiy [ejoL

€eCq Ll
G202/1€/50

81:6G:¥1
G20z/1e/s0

€l:8lcl
§202/1e/S0
¥2:64:20
G202/ /S0

EVPEG)
G202/0€/50
SPilv:0C
G202/62/50
16220l
§202/62/S0
05:€2:10
§¢0¢/62/50

6€:25:0¢
§20¢/82/S0

L0L

G0
(w)
aALlly[aInoIuz
awi] abesany
L15:8v:21
(W) aary
LPE  6SCINNLLE
9€€ 6SCISNSEY
ErPE 6S¢ SIAtEY
€bE 65¢C HIVEY
9¥¢ 692 DANIEY
8€E 6GCASMEY
€.E 6SC SleEv
GEE BG¢ JdlL
9¥e B69C Sitv

00 6¢C:1

() () dsta/s49

eynosugydsiq  awi] abelaay
awil] obeiany

0yl 62:0v-C

(W) sinoauz () dsia

/dsig awiy [e30) /S4D swil [ej0f

THH HOYNHD
‘G101 @Y ARTIVA
SYILHVYD €529

TANYVO
INNOW ‘a¥ ASTIVA

SYHAIYVYD 0445
13NEYD

INNOW 'y AITIVA
SY3ILYVD 0445
JANHYD LNNON
‘1S NOSMOVT 506
THH HOYNHD

‘¥Z 107ad AITIVA
SY3ILAVYO L¥L9
TANIVYO LNNOW
‘Yd AITHSY 0z
T1ANEYO LNNOW
'ya 1S3¥D zvl

M LL AVMHOIH

I AV GNOWWVH

ad MOTI0H
HONYAVYSN3S

/ad W13 old
1H

SpJ023Yy |ej0]

9.€.10-G¢02

6¥€.10-620¢

12€L10-G20C

G0€L10-G20C

¢§¢l10-5202
651210-6202
§40.410-520¢C

€50.10-620¢

G20.10-G20¢



*OU] ‘SWISAS SILJRIL XayPpay O

1 J01
NV 2¥'G1 '8 6202/81/8 *UQ pejelsuad
#SANOCrIN :Ag pajelsuag
%ES or oy S¢ 78 0 Gey 00§ viol
%cCcC 8 8 62 L€ 0 10} 8¢l  ZO0-VHLII-NOW
%¥8 ce 44 9 8¢ 0 ¥ee ¢9€  LOWHLI-NOW
d1vd G3LNRId SNOLLVIOIA SNOWLLVIOIA NOILNJ3SO¥d SINIAIONI

FONVNSSI S3DILON TVIOL Q3AOdddY  d3L0Arad  H0d4 FTGVIIVAY  SSIHOO0HUd NI SIN3AIONI d3103ar3d d3ss300dd

§zoe-felnN-1€ ol SZ0z-AeN-10
SWILSAS Diddvail
sadA] uonasilaq |1V (]swien wno) Hoday juswabeuepy tlswoisny XI1Ha3y

LUO0d3¥ ANVININNS LNINIODVNVIN ¥3INOLSNO



T Jo1

“oU] ‘SWa)SAS JIJJRI] XSIPNY O

sjoefoy sso

72 1€ Q¢ uonndssold 104 s|gejieAy
0 0 0 ssalboid u| ssa
S/ A 8¢ SUOJJB|OIA fBeJo] gns
*144 10} vee _ ejol
sanss|
0t 1] (174 sojeld Jaded uopelisibay
14 0 14 anjeN/Iaylespy
4 0 4 alejo ung ®
19 0l 1S SoIYBA papusixg UrespvAolod
cle 99 902 uola1asiq ao1o0d
6l 14 Gl ANQA a18|dwodu)pdanoou| spoloy
8 I L Buipuodssy solysA Aousbrowy ao)j0d
6¢ 0l Bl uoponusqo Aeld  uolonisqQ
s10)oB 9|qe||o/uooun ssa
005 8cl 41 SUOIIB|OIA |B10L
0 8 0 sjoaley Japodw| |eyo
} 0] L 19bbu] win] - aouayO ON
€9 L) 9¢ dojg Buyosaliog - sausyo oN
Sl g 1] Jabbu] ssje - aduayO ON
14} 14 ol Jeg dojg Japy - 99Ul ON
4 0 4 Wispiou| sjeondnQ
S8 9z 6S a|gejnoasoiduoy [ejol
G8s 9L Ly suonosie(Q [B10)
N -
S <
< <
T T
3 i in
= > 2
(@] [@)]
2 = =

% :pl 10jesado
sadA] uol}salaq Iy (jowies Junojy) Hoday Juswabeuely S1M

620Z-AeN- 1€ 01 SZ0Z-AeiN-10



(o]

jo

-ou] ‘swsdg S X3Pay o

%ES-0F %Z2-8 %¥8-2E pajulld S291j0N |e10.L

%ES-0F %228 %¥8-ZE suole|oip, paroiddy
e BLYSE %8L6C_ %98 [Bi01

%BE-62 %8.-62 %00-0 2UAS U] JON 09PIA

%¥0-¢ %00-0 %80-¢ sjeudoiddeu ysely sbew| susag

%10-) %00-0 %E0-1 yse|d oN ajeld Jeay

%10-) %00-0 %E0-1 Aunjg ejawe) sjeld Jeay GRS

%10-1 %00-0 %E0- Jauodu)/a|qepeslun Jeqejeq BIsWED




Mount Carmel Municipal Report

Report for: __May 2025

Charge

Number of

Driver’s license to be carried 55-50-351

Driver’s license violation residency law 55-50-333

Driving left of center 55-8-120

Driving right lane except to pass 55-8-115

Driving too slow-impeding flow of traffic 55-8-154

Driving without a license 55-50-301

Due Care 55-8-136

Failure to Appear- Municipal 39-16-609

Financial responsibility 55-12-139

Light law violation 55-9-402

Move over law 55-8-132

Muffler law 55-9-202

Driving Unregistered Vehicle 55-3-102

Registration- expired plate 55-4-110

Registration —improper display 55-4-110

Registration — misuse 55-5-115

Registration — No certificate in vehicle 55-4-104

Seat belt required 55-9-603

Speeding 55-8-152

Stop sign violation 55-8-149

Traffic control signal violation 55-8-110

Texting/ Hands free law 55-8-199

Driving on suspended/ revoked license 55-50-504

Possession of a revoked, suspended, altered license 55-50-601

Improper left turn 55-8-140

Animal Running at large MC-10-101 Dogs (10-203)

Failure to dim lights 55-9-407

No U-turn 55-8-109

Failure to yietd right of way causing accident 55-8-197

Registration- Address incorrect 55-4-131

No parking violation 55-8-160

Child restraint law 55-9-602

Written Warnings

Total




MOUNT CARMEL

%/)év«e o /Ja?ff&:w vt goedy

LEGISLATIVE MEMORANDUM

TO: Honorable Mayor Gibson, Vice Mayor Bare, and Alderman Gilliam,
Alderman Patrick, Alderman Shugart, Alderman Binstock, Alderman Cross

THRU: James Stables, City Manager

FROM: Tyler Williams, Assistant City Manager/CFO

DATE: June 26, 2025

RE: ORDINANCE NO. 25-541 (Second Reading) Retail Package Store Licensing

SUMMARY:

Second Reading of Ordinance # 25-541, “An Ordinance To Amend the Code of Ordinances,
Title 8, Relating to Alcoholic Beverages; By Amending Chapter 2 Definition of Beer; By
Amending Chapter 2 By Adding a New Subsection Relating to Special Events Permits for
On Premises Sale of Beer; By Adding a New Chapter 3 Relating to Retail Package Store
Licensing; To Fix a Penalty For Violation Thereof; And, To Fix the Effective Date of this
Ordinance”

Ordinance is being brought for consideration as a result of the November 5, 2024 election
where Mount Carmel voters approved a referendum to allow packaged liquor sales within
the town limits.

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT(S):
Administration
FISCAL IMPACT:

Revenue from “Inspection Fee” equal to eight percent (8%) of the wholesale price of
alcoholic beverages supplied by a wholesaler. Other positive economic impacts are possible
from increased traffic and sales.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
N/A, voter referendum
ATTACHMENTS:

Ordinance 25-541



ORDINANCE NO. 541-2025

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF
ORDINANCES, TITLE 8, RELATING TO ALCOHOLIC
BEVERAGES; BY AMENDING CHAPTER 2 DEFINITION
OF BEER; BY AMENDING CHAPTER 2 BY ADDING A
NEW SUBSECTION RELATING TO SPECIAL EVENTS
PERMITS FOR ON PREMISES SALE OF BEER; BY
ADDING A NEW CHAPTER 3 RELATING TO RETAIL
PACKAGE STORE LICENSING; TO FIX A PENALTY
FOR VIOLATION THEREOF; AND, TO FIX THE
EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS ORDINANCE

WHEREAS, Mount Carmel voters approved a referendum on November 5, 2024, to allow packaged liquor
sales within the town limits, Now therefore,

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMAN, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. That the Code of Ordinances, Title 8, Alcoholic Beverages, Chapter 2, Section 8-206
relating to the definition of beet, be and hereby is amended by deleted it in its
entirety and replacing it with a new Section 8-206 to read as follows:

Section 8-206 “BEER” DEFINED,

Tenn. Code Ann. §57-5-101(b), including all amendments thereto, is hereby adopted by
reference and incorporated in this ordinance as if fully set out herein and shall constitute the
definition of beer.

SEcTiION 1L That the Code of Ordinances, Title 8, Alcoholic Beverages, Chapter 2, Section 8-
209, relating to permits for retail sale of beer be and hereby is amended by adding
an additional Subsection (4) relating to Special Events, which Subsection (4) to read
as follows:

(4) A specnal events permit for the retail sale of beer s e o ;

ot hoiders to be effective for periods of time not exceedmg forty-elght (48) hours duratmn
Such perrmts shall be issued only for a community event designated as a special event by the
beer board.

(a) sinl event fe detined 2 amry '}hl;if‘fWL
aOneST, camva:

gt LotV S gotupgi! ceiehrs

reteratd 10 D COUGRIGERG. O oD Ve

Alcoholic Beverage Ordinance ___-2025
Page 1 of 5



SECTION

(b) The special events permit may provide for the sale sl conswmption ot beer o private
locations by individuals attending the special event but does not otherwise suspend the
prohibitions of § 8-102 regarding motor vehicles. The special events permit shall provide the
following:

1. The name of the permit holder;

2. The location of the retail sale of beer during the special event;
3. The name of the special event;

4. The duration of the permit.

(c) The application for the special events permit shall be filed with the beer board not
later than thirty (30) days prior to the beginning date of the special event accompanied by the
application fee set forth on §8-207.

(d) The board shall designate the geographical location of a special event and any sale
and consumption of beer, sold by a special event permit holder, ina public place, shall be subject
to the provisions of this chapter.

m. That the Code of Ordinances, Title 8, Alcoholic Beverages, be and hereby is
amended by adding an additional Chapter 3 relating to retail package store licenses,
which chapter to read as follows:

8-301. Alcoholic beverages subject to regulation. It shall be unlawful to engage in the business
of selling, storing, transporting or distributing, or to purchase or possess alcoholic beverages
except as provided by Tennessee Code Annotated, title 57,

8-302. Application for certificate. Before any certificate, as required by Tennessee Code
Annotated, §57-3-208 shall be signed by the mayor, or by any aldermen, a request in writing
shall be filed with the recorder, giving the following information: (1) Name, age and address of
the applicant. (2) Number of years residence at applicant's address. (3) Whether or not the
applicant has been convicted of a felony in the past ten (10) years.” {4) The location of the
proposed store for the sale of alcoholic beverages. (5) The name and address of the owner of the
store. (6) If the applicant is a partnership, the name, age and address of each partner. If the
applicant is a corporation, the name, age and address of the executive officers, or those who wiil
be in control of the package store. The information in the application shall be verified by the
oath of the applicant. If the applicant is a partnership or a corporation, the application shall be
verified by the oath of each partner, or by the president of the corporation,

T
State law reference Tennessee Code Annotated, §57-3-208:

2
State law reference Tennessee Code Annotated, §57-3-208 requires the applicant to submit a
criminal history background report

Alcoholic Beverage Ordinance __ -2025

Page2of 5



8-303. Applicant to agree to comply with laws. The applicant for a certificate of good moral
character shall agree in writing to comply with the state and federal laws, the rules and
regulations of the Tennessee Alcoholic Beverage Commission for sale of alcoholic beverages
and the Code of Ordinances of the Town of Mount Carmel.

8-304. Applicant to appear before board of mayor and aldermen; duty to give information. An
applicant for a certificate of good moral character may be required to appear i person before
the board of mayor and aldermen for such reasonable examination as may be desired by the
board.

8-305. Action on application. Every application for a certificate of good moral character shall
be referred to the chief of police for investigation and to the city/town attorney for review, each
of whom shall submit his findings to the board of mayor and aldermen within thirty (30) days
of the date each application was filed. The board of mayor and aldermen may issuc a certificate
of good moral character to any applicant, which shall be signed by the mayor or by a majority
of the board of mayor and aldermen

8-306. Renewal of certificate.* A certificate issued under this chapter remains valid unless there
is a change of ownership or location. If either of these events occur, a new certificate must be
obtained.

8-307. Applicants for certificate who have criminal record. No certificate of good moral
character for the manufacture or sale at wholesale or retail of alcoholic beverages, or for the
manufacture or vinting of wine, shall be issued to any person, (or if the applicant is a
partnership, any partner, or if the applicant is a corporation, any stockholder), who, within ten
{10) years preceding the application for such certificate of good moral character, has been
convicted of any felony or of any offense under the laws of the state or of the United States
prohibiting the sale, possession, transportation, storage or otherwise handling of intoxicating
liquors, or who has during such period been engaged in business, alone or with others, in
violation of such laws.

8-308. Number of retail licenses to be held by retailer.* No retail licensee shall, directly or
indirectly, hold more one (1) retail license in the Town of Mount Carmel.

8-309, Where establishments may be located. It ¢hiali be unlawiu for 2y i
mraintain any retail estabiishniens for the sole. storage or distibuiic
except at locations zoned Netahharlood Business District B-1, Ans
Genera! Business District 5-3 o Shopping Cenier District B4 In so eva

issued to an applicant when tic lasation seoured for the retall st is w Wi D iR e

3
State faw reference Tennessée Code Annotated, § 57-3-208

4

State law reference Tennessee Code Annotated, §57-3-406

Alcoholic Beverage Ordinance ___ -2025
Page 3 of 5



(Z00%) of any chareh, schotl or o
frorm the nearest part of thie enfiie b

10 the nearest part of the entise maildin

B T g L . ¥ % | Py - ikl B 44
SN, SO SOOI EVETRERTS W G DOG,

8-310, Retail stores to be on ground floor; entrances. No retail store shall be located anywhere
on premises except on the ground floor thereof. Each such store shall have only one (1) main
entrance; provided, that when a store is located on the corner of two (2) streets, such store may
maintain a door opening on each such street; and provided further, that any salesroom adjoining
the lobby of a hotel may maintain an additional door into such lobby as long as the lobby is open
to the public.’

8-311. Sales for consumption on-premises. No alcoholic beverages shall be sold for consumption
on the premises of a retail seller.

8-312. Radios, amusement devices and seating facilities prohibited in retail establishments. No
radios, pinball machines, slot machines or other devices which tend to cause persons to
congregate in such place shall be permitted in any retail establishment. No seating facilities shall
be provided for persons other than employees.

8-313. Inspection fee. There is imposed an inspection fee in the maximum amount allowed by
Tennessee Code-Annotated, §$7-3-501 en all licensed retailers of alcoholic beverages.

8-315. Violations and penalty. Any violation of this chapter shall constitute a civil offense and
shall, upon conviction, be punishable by a penalty under the general penalty provision of this
code. Upon conviction of any person under this chapter, it shall be mandatory for the municipal
judge to immediately certify the conviction, whether on appeal or not, to the Tennessee
Alcoholic Beverage Commission.

SECTION 1V. That the violation of any provision of this ordinance shall be punishable by a penalty of not

SECTION

ATTEST:

more than fifty doliars ($50.00). Each day of violation may constitutc a separate offense.

V. That this ordinance shall take effect from and after the date of its passage and
publication as the law directs.

JOHN GIBSON, Mayor

TYLER WILLIAMS, CMFO, Recorder

5

State law reference Tennessee Code Annotated, §57-3-404(f)

Alcoholic Beverage Ordinance ___-2025
Paged4of §



1% Reading Motion By: Second By:

Ayes Nays Other

Vice Mayor Bare
Alderman Binstock
Alderman Cross
Mayor Gibson
Alderman Gilliam
Alderman Patrick
Alderman Shugart

Total

2™ Reading Motion By: Second By:

Ayes Nays Other

YVice Mayor Bare

Alderman Binstock

Alderman Cross

Mayor Gibson

Alderman Gilliam

Alderman Patrick

Alderman Shugart

Total

PASSED FIRST READING: this __™ day of May, 2025.
PASSED SECOND READING: this ™ day of June, 2025
ORDINANCE PUBLISHED: this _ ™ day of June, 2025

Aleoholic Beverage Ordinance ___-2025
Page S5aof 5



|

MOUNT CARMEL

yf/zéme Ze /un.z‘(/aw.ﬂz StoaZs

LEGISLATIVE MEMORANDUM

TO: Honorable Mayor Gibson, Vice Mayor Bare, and Alderman Gilliam,
Alderman Patrick, Alderman Shugart, Alderman Binstock, Alderman Cross

THRU: James Stables, City Manager

FROM: Tyler Williams, Assistant City Manager/CFO

DATE: June 26, 2025

RE: RESOLUTION NO. 25-653

SUMMARY:

Discussion and Consideration of Resolution 25-653, which authorizes the adoption of an
updated Personnel Policies and Procedures document with an effective date of July 1, 2025.
Major changes include adoption of the Town pay plan, alignment with federal holiday
schedule, vacation leave adjustments, and other necessary human resource related updates.

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT(S):
Administration

FISCAL IMPACT:

None

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval
ATTACHMENTS:

Resolution No. 25-653

“Personnel Policies and Procedures”



MOUNT CARMEL

.7«,0/:«::, 7o pr¥ dawre saal

RESOLUTION 25-653

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE
ADOPTING REVISED PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

WHEREAS, the Town of Mount Carmel recognizes the importance of maintaining clear,
current, and comprehensive personnel policies and procedures to guide the employment practices
of the Town and ensure compliance with applicable federal and state laws; and

WHEREAS, the Town has undertaken a thorough review and revision of its existing Personnel
Policies and Procedures to reflect current best practices, legal requirements, and the operational
needs of the Town; and

WHEREAS, the revised Personnel Policies and Procedures have been reviewed by Town
Administration, legal counsel, and other relevant stakeholders, and are recommended for
adoption;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen meeting at
Mount Carmel, Tennessee, on this 26" day of June, 2025, that:

SECTION 1. The revised Personnel Policies and Procedures document, as presented and
attached hereto as Exhibit A, is hereby adopted and shall be effective as of July 1, 2025.

SECTION 2. This revised policy shall supersede and replace all previous personnel policies and
procedures adopted by the Town.

SECTION 3. Town Administration is hereby authorized and directed to implement the revised
policy and ensure that all Town employees are informed of and have access to the updated
document.

This Resolution shall take effect immediately, the public welfare requiring it.

ADOPTED this 26™ day of June, 2025.

John Gibson, Mayor

Attest:
Tyler Williams, Town Recorder




PERSONNEL

POLICIES & PROCEDURES

MOUNT CARMEL

A place 7o pot dawr seall
e /-

TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE

Revision 05/01/2025
Adopted 06/26/2025

Effective 07/01/2025



H 1032311Q
$3921A13S aNqnd
SHI0M 21dNgd

sapo9 suipjing Aaus0ly umo)
2 UORUINII D114

$321A13S 211gNd

agpnrumo]

S121y3ya.ld

103U02 jeWwIuY

iojensiunupy

UMO] JUB}SISSY
SI13)I0MN 18IS Od 32140 1s0d

(pseog KieaqiT)
Asesqn

$1921)}0 32110d

uswiIapy pue lofely jo pieog
1aWwie ) JUNOW JO SUBZIND

sueuelq 10393.41Q Aeigi

SUOREIUNWIWOoY
21qnd

$32IAI3S YR UIaY|

sp102ay —

H|
1she1sads sadzinas

aalensiupy

asueuly —

1shje103dg sasalag
aAlENSIVIWPY

Jey) |euolleziuesiQ [dwJe) JUNOJA JO UMO ]|




Town of Mount Carmel Personnel Policy

SECTION 1: PERSONNEL POLICIES. .........ccieureeereereenn e ssissiusssssississassssssassammiersenisssisssmiissnnssssrsmsopssnssnssnssnt ss 5-7
1.1 INTRODUCTION TO PERSONNEL REGULATIONS .........ooiuiiieniiiniissitisiisisssisississisisssssssasssassisiasinens 5
1.2 PURPOSE AND OBUECTIVES........cucieieriercinninesssnsississssisissasss st st ssssas s esssas st sisss i 5
1.3 COVERAGE .. iusisessisssiiss sk tiosssss oo ettt s e s s 08 s oo 4 oo B BTN o0 5-6
1.4 ADMINISTRATION ....ootevieteriinesmmsesesseresseseamaesssnssssssssssmssesssassassbsbesassassbessss shrsssssassbakssssssssssbsntanssnissssnsins 6-7
1.5 AMENDMENTS TO PERSONNEL POLICIES iicisiusuimssesssassssissssssisoissrsnssnssssntassusssssissssrosmonsssssrsssossogns sossees [
1.6 SEVERABILITY ...ooeoroieenseenennesnsses ciisassionsiisss ssbasssssonss issnioidamis i s isaeose s suds s s i svesa oA 035 s s i

SECTION 2: HIRING PROCEDURES .........ouiitiiiimtememseissiisissinsesrssessss st st sssass s ssssas s sssssssssissans 7-8
2.1 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYMENT ....c.coeiiirercereenecsssisisiississssiastssisssssssammssssssissmssessssssss sssssaseasuasasssss 7t
2.2 JOB ANNOUNCEMENTS......c0euremmsssssssssnssssaserserssnsssssssssssnssersansasssssssississessssssasssssssmssssssdbasssnion bstsosssssiaruasans 78
2.3 EMPLOYMENT OF RELATIVES AND FRIENDS.........coccviiiiiinniiiiseisssissssssssssissssssss s sssssssss s 8
2.4 CITIZENSHIP AND IMMIGRATION STATUS VERIFICATION ... 8

SECTION 3: CLASSIFICATION, PAY, AND FRINGE BENEFITS........ccocoviiimeiissnnnsssnrs s 8-10
3.1 EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION ucuiucssvuvwisaviviaasesscaeisssiisssssssionisssiisssnsessmmestssns s sams iasssiossrsens s arsyias s s 8
3.2 PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL / EVALUATION.........c0eovevissarsmmiirsmemarsasmesiessensenssebisssssissassssiessessississossansns 89
3.3 BENEFITS ... oo iicsisosssasmssissimsssesassssuoisios saisasys sy s i s o ey 1 NS T Hen g AV o 49 vtastngms o 9
3.4 HOURS OF WORK ;;isveiavivsesssinsisnsngeseisatisseassasisibtasia o s isieiisiss s siassie s s esaoss ot s oo s ionboness oo 9
3.5 ATTENDANGCE ......ovvoiiiinssresesssssessesestess st ess bbbt 8883408082818 9
3.6 OVERTIME COMPENSATION ...........ooo. e iosiinsmssusssssiinssssssss i asasiassns wimst o 5asmds isoniss e sosess 9-10
3.7 CALL QUT PAY ... rereccrre oo mssisbsrsssinsiossofsassississsinsssbtstbodsodbobbontsrstbb s ol st Gei s s nnasesassens 10
3.8 MANDATORY UNIFORMALLOWANCE .........occoiiimimiimiimemimsssisisinsiisininsss s st ssssssssessssanssssssnsses oo 10

SECTION 4: LEAVE POLICIES .....oovereeeeenee e kit i 4 oh ks 3535450055 0 G0 4003 10-14
4,1 VACATION LEAVE ........ooveereeeeirerrererne e rsmsssesrasnssnsssssnsensssss beshsstnsb s dasessans i snsessonsssnsnssndsanssndssai sesbsuanssvains 10

2|Page



4.3 HOLIDAY LEAVE ..ot issssssnsssssnsens A D USSR EATN  o ove 1112
A4 CIVILLEAVE .....oiiiiemiiiiiinisst s tsessessessets s sss s ss st 4040088885185 2055800 12
4.5 FUNERAL LEAVE :i:usissscassnessiseiieioth ossiss it s a0uacaes v s asaasastaws s 0o oo s smiomsv e sssiis s sss a0 s 00 12
4.6 MILITARY LEAVE/VETERANS' RE-EMPLOYMENT ..o, T 12-13
4.7 WORKERS COMPENSATION.......cucvemneissismisimiessisisnsisnissiarsinisssssisasassssishsersmuosnsasorsasssssassussssmsasensesssve 13-14
4.8 ABSENCE WITHOUT LEAVE ......cccovivverrinninnas S Ao A A NPT AT 14
4,9 FAMILY LEAVE ..ottt ss sttt sessess s et sstsssmassessb0 1000000000000 800 b0 14

SECTION 5: WORKPLACE VIOLENCE AND HARASSMENT......c.ucvvimmmmimmmnmiinmcmmmssssssemmasssnenssssensssensss 14 = 17
5.1 WORKPLACE VIOLENGCE ...........c.coceveemmmmmanssrnarsnssssssssssasiasiveisessassassissssssnssnosssiissassisdsstassasdasissivnsserssassanes 14-15

SECTION 6: MISCELLANEQUS POLICIES.......c.ocoeminiriiiice it issss bbb sssssessinsassissisnnssssasens 17-20
6.1 DRUG AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE POLICY ......ooiiriiriisiissisiissnississsssssssoss s st nns 17
6.2 TRAVEL POLICYiciusss iuisassasivsassesississseessssssonsos s4svsisecosid s si8s s ssss s 558 i s pas 100t ss s 17
6.3 USE OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT .....coocoimiiminmciciiiiiisiinsnisinsns 17
6.4 PERSONAL/ BUSINESS CELL PHONES............oocmmmmmmmmermimmmsisinssssssssnisis s 17-18
6.5 CUSTOMER COURTESY u5usianeiessiyssiesiassis e i s assissisaiavs i sissss oisavisssaon s s asessssassinn e s e s o 18
6.6 PERSONAL CONDUCT ...coutvesssessssessessessaseesssssssssmssessensensessesssssssessinsissmssisessssssssssstbabassasnss st abiasians st sons 18
6.7 DRESS CODE .....icuiouwuissssssisissssossisss s e s oo s s e o5 s a B sss s Togaesas s os s 18
6.8 NON-SMOKER PROTECTION ACT .,.vviveessussicsssiiaisssssnssssossosnsinstissassnssnsassonssinnsisss issssssiissiansssisissssossnssorsnrens 18
6.9 COMPUTER USE AND MONITORING.......vtecireemimieiisimaimniessesisss s issessss s sssssssssassssssassiss s snes 18-19
6.10 SOCIAL MEDIA USE AND INTERNET POSTING.......ccooiiiiimmiiminminiisminimsnisinsssssssssissis 19-20
6.11 RECORDING AND CAMERA DEVICES ........ootiiiimeimnrinssissrisssinesssssssssss st s bissassss st s ens 20
6.12 DISCIPLINARY ACTION ...........comsissmuonsosssasssssissssssmsissmsenmtmsmeismsnssssssssmsssrssnisaytmssssspssaassssssssssssssoss 20

SECTION 7: POLITICAL ACTIVITY, ETHICS, AND CONDUCT ..ot 20-22

7.1 CODE OF ETHICS ...ttt bt bbb 20



7.2 TERMINATION, ACCOUNTABILITY AND DISCLOSURE ACT ....coovvmmiminniisirniaisninnns
7.3 GENETIC INFORMATION ANDNONDISCRIMINATION ACT ..ovvririiemissiiisrsiiiniinnnsssnisesisssmsiessnases
7.4 AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT ...oovvoiuererirmmrmssassssissssessssisssess st sbis bbb ssisssssississsensesases
APPENDICES: APPENDIX A - ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT .....ocovvirmmmmirmrmisscnmsensesisnssns s
APPENDICES: APPENDIX B - EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM. ..o
APPENDICES: APPENDIX C - ADOPTED PAY PLAN - FY 2025/26........ccoocvemmamininininiiinn.

21-22



11 INTRODUCTION TO PERSONNEL REGULATIONS

The Town of Mount Carmel Personnel Policy and Procedures hereinafter referred to as “Personnel Regulations,’
adopted by resolution, is applicable to all employees of the Town of Mount Carmel whose activities and functions
are subject to the control and direction of the Town Administrator. These policies and procedures and all other
Town manuals do not bestow any additional rights to employees regarding employment or employment benefits.
These policies and procedures are not part of a contract, and no employee has any contractual right to the matters
set forth herein. This will serve as notice to all employees that the employment relationship may be terminated by
either the Town or the employee at any time for any reason. All employees are “at will" and the Town is an “at will’
employer under Tennessee law. The Town reserves the right to change all such policies. practices. and
procedures in whole or in part at any time, with or without notice to employees.

These Personnel Regulations shall be made available to all employees. Regular employees will receive a copy of
the regulations upon employment. Any employee who desires to review the regulations during work hours may
review the departmental copy.

1.2 PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES

The primary purpose of these policies is to establish an understanding, cooperation and efficiency in local
government operations by establishing a system of personnel administration which provides consistent, impartial
and effective policies and procedures for the employees of the Town of Mount Carmel Tennessee without regard
to race, color, religion, gender or gender identity, age, national origin, disability, military status, genetic information,
communication with an elected public official, free speech, refusing to participate in or remain silent about illegal
activities, exercising a statutory constitutional right or any right under clear public policy, political affiliation, or any
other basis protected by law. The objectives of these policies are to promote and increase efficiency, provide fair
and equal opportunities, develop a process of recruitment and selection of employees, and promote high morale
among employees.

It is the Town of Mount Carmel's policy not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment or
during the course of employment due to race, color, religion, gender or gender identity, age, national origin,
disability, military status, genetic information, communication with an elected public official, free speech, refusing
to participate in or remain silent about illegal activities, exercising a statutory constitutional right or any right under
clear public policy, political affiliation, or any other basis protected by law. Race, color, religion, age, sex, national
origin or ancestry, marital status, veteran's status, or ability in accordance with applicable federal, state, and local
law. If an employee believes that he or she has been involved in any incident that was discriminatory, he or she
should report the incident immediately to Management. The Town further complies with all federal and state laws
protecting employees from discrimination.

It is the policy of the Town of Mount Carmel to apply and foster a sound program of personnel administration to
ensure the legal employment and placement of applicants, the establishment of a classification and compensation
program, the establishment of an employee relations system and the provision of employee development and
training and record retention.

1.3 COVERAGE
The Personnel Regulations will apply to all employees unless otherwise stated under exempt positions.
Temporary, seasonal, and part-time employees are subject to all regulations but do not have access to additional
benefits, such as, insurance benefits, leave accrual, holiday pay, or retirement benefits.



All offices and positions of the local government placed in the exempt service are:

all elected officials.

members of appointed boards and commissions.

consultants, advisers, and legal counsel rendering temporary professional service.

the local government attorney.

independent contractors.

part-time employees paid by the hour or the day who are not considered regular unless otherwise
indicated.

7. the local government judge.

AU AW~

Some policies apply to all employees and officers of the municipality, including those placed in the exempt service,
such as policies related to discrimination and/or harassment, and polices required by state or federal law.

1.4 ADMINISTRATION
These rules will be administered by the Town Administrator and Assistant Town Administrator under the direction
of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen in conformity with the ordinance establishing a personnel system.

The governing body is responsible for the appointment of the Administrator, establishment of overall policy
guidelines for the operation of municipal govemment including adoption of the Personnel Regulations and
amendments thereto, development and adoption of an annual fiscal budget.

The Town Administrator is the Chief Executive/Administrative Officer for the Town of Mount Carmel. The
administrator is hired and serves at the pleasure of the governing body. The administrator is responsible to the
governing body for the proper operations of all town functions. The responsibilities of the administrator include
appointment and termination of all Town employees, enforcement and application of all laws, provisions of the
Town Charter and Municipal Code, and acts of the governing body including but not limited to the Personnel
Regulations and pay classification plan. The administrator is also responsible for the implementation of additional
rules, policies, and procedures, which may be necessary for the proper operation of the Town or its various
departments, provided that such rules and procedures are consistent with the Personnel Regulations adopted by
the governing body.

The Assistant Town Administrator may fulfill the role of Town Recorder and Chief Municipal Finance Officer for
the Town of Mount Carmel overseeing those administrative functions of the Town. The Assistant Town
Administrator is hired and serves at the pleasure of the Town Administrator. In addition to the Town Recorder and
Chief Municipal Finance Officer responsibilities, the Assistant Town Administrator may also be responsible for
appointment and termination of Town employees, enforcement and application of all laws, provisions of the Town
Charter and Municipal Code, and acts of the governing body including but not limited to the Personnel Regulations
and pay classification plan. The Assistant Town Administrator is also responsible for the implementation of
additional rules, policies, and procedures, which may be necessary for the proper operation of the Town or its
various departments, provided that such rules and procedures are consistent with the Personnel Regulations
adopted by the goveming body. Additionally, the Assistant Town Administrator shall serve as the Acting Town
Administrator when needed or required.

The Town Administrator, Assistant Town Administrator and Department Heads and supervisors are responsible
for the administration and enforcement of the Personnel Regulations for employees in their respective program
areas.

The Town Administrative Department's responsibility and functions regarding the administration of the personnel
regulations shall include, but not be limited to, the development and presentation of personnel regulations and
recommended amendments consistent with proper employment practices to the Town Administrator for
consideration and presentation to the governing body. The Administrative Department shall also provide technical



assistance to Department Heads and supervisors on the interpretation and application of the Personnel
Regulations.

Amendments to the rules and regulations shall be made in accordance with the procedure herein. Nothing
in the personnel rules and regulations document shall be deemed to give employees any more property
rights in their jobs than may already be given by the local government charter. The local government
reserves the right to alter or change any or all these rules without prior notice to employees.

1.5 AMENDMENTS TO PERSONNEL POLICIES
Amendments or revisions to these regulations, policies and procedures may be recommended for adoption by the
Town Administrator or by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of its own initiative. Such amendments or revisions of
these regulations, policies and procedures shall become effective upon approval by the Board of Mayor and
Aldermen.

All departmental regulations, policies and procedures as presently constituted or hereinafter adopted, which are not
in conflict with these regulations, shall remain in full force and effect.

1.6 SEVERABILITY
If any Charter, Article or Section of these Regulations is found to conflict with Federal, State or Town laws and
regulations, or Court decision, that section will continue in effect only to the extent permitted by such law or
regulation or Court decision. If any Charter, Article or Section of these regulations is or becomes invalid or
unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceable nature will not affect or impair any other Charter, Article or Section
of these regulations.

21 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYMENT

It is the obligation and policy of the Town of Mount Carmel to provide equal opportunity employment to all
employees and applicants for employment. No person will be discriminated against in employment because of
race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin, disability, military status, communication with elected public officials,
free speech, refusing to participate in or remain silent about illegal activities exercising a statutory constitutional
right or any right under clear public policy, political affiliation, genetic information, or any other basis protected by
law.

The Town of Mount Carmel will provide reasonable accommodation to qualified disabled individuals unless the
accommodation would pose an “undue hardship” on the Town.

This policy applies to all terms, conditions, and privileges of employment and all policies of the Town, including
hiring, placement, training, employee development, promotion, transfer, compensation, benefits, grievances,
educational assistance, layoffs, termination, and retirement.

2.2 JOB ANNOUNCEMENTS
Department Heads who need to fill a budgeted job opening should contact town administrative personnel to begin
the recruitment process. The Town Recorder (or their designee) will prepare and publicize job announcements to
bring notice of vacancies to as many qualified candidates as possible.

In-House Posting - Notice of vacant regular positions will be made available to internal employees on the Town's
official website. Notice of regular vacancies will be posted internally and externally until the position is filled.

Public Advertisement - Applicants shall be recruited from a geographic area as wide as necessary and for a
period sufficient to ensure that qualified applicants are obtained for Town Service. The Town’s Administrative



Office and the Department Head will determine what forms of media to extend the advertisement. Vacancies where
appropriate will be posted on the Town's website until the position is filled. All internal and external candidates shall
make application through the Town’s website and submit their signed/scanned application via email to the Town
Administrator.

2.3 EMPLOYMENT OF RELATIVES/FRIENDS

As a public employer, the Town of Mount Carmel must maintain a process of faimess in all things. Career
opportunities must be equal in matters of relationships, just as in other employment matters: sex, age, national
origin, race, religion, creed, color, ancestry, disability, and marital status. A person’s name should be neither a
help nor a hindrance to advancing as far as ability and performance will allow. Decisions to hire are based on the
individual applicant's merits. We will not employ, transfer, or promote someone unless it is in the best interest of
all concerned. Further, the Town maintains a strict prohibition against hiring relatives into departments where
other relatives are employed and against letting relatives make employment decisions about other relatives. We
take special precautions to avoid conflicts of interest, or the appearance of conflicts of interest, in dealing with
related employees. Standard hiring criteria must be applied; direct reporting of one relative to another is generally
avoided. Be careful about providing information that would give a friend or related employee unfair advantage
over others. Personal relationships that might create conflicts of interest should be discussed with your
Department Head or with the Town Administrator. If a relationship between two employees conflicts with this
policy, a change to an appropriate job or shift change that does not create a conflict may be sought for one of the
individuals.

2.4 CITIZENSHIP AND IMMIGRATION STATUS VERIFICATION
The Town will not discriminate based on a person’s national origin or citizenship status with regard to recruitment,
hiring, or discharge. However, the Town will not knowingly employ any person who is or becomes an unauthorized
immigrant. In compliance with the Immigration Reform and Control Act, all employees hired after November 6,
1986, regardless of national origin, ancestry, or citizenship, must provide suitable documentation to verify identity
and employability. The documentation must be provided within three days of employment, or the individual will be
subject to separation.

3.1 EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION
Employee compensation shall be in an amount set by the Town Pay Plan established by the Town Administrator
and adopted through the budget process by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen as identified in Appendix C.

A non-exempt municipal employee who does not work their regularly scheduled work week shall be paid only for
hours worked, unless such absence is authorized as paid leave by the employee's supervisor, or the Town
Administrator.

Regular paydays for all municipal employees shall be bi-weekly, no later than every other Friday. Direct Deposit
into a financial institution is required. All non-exempt employees will sign their timecards at the end of each pay
period and supervisors will also be required to sign timecards. Signature on timecard is a verification the employee
has worked the exact hours shown on the timecard and no more or no less for the applicable period shown on said
card. Exempt salaried employees are required to submit a signed exception record at the end of each pay period,
indicating that they worked a minimum of 80 hours in the pay period, or had any work hour exceptions, such as,
holiday, vacation, sick or any other types of paid or unpaid leave.

The appropriate deductions, as required by State and Federal law, shall be made from each employee's pay. Itis the
policy of the Town that no advance on future wages shall be made.

3.2 PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL / EVALUATION
The performance of all employees will be appraised and reviewed at least annually by their immediate supervisor.



Evaluations for new hires shall occur before the end of the first sixth (6) months. Written appraisals will be
discussed with the employees, so they will know how they are progressing and what they may do to improve their
performance.

Department Heads will review employee performance evaluations for consistency and application of proper
evaluation standards for each employee being evaluated. The failure to submit an evaluation after notice may
subject the Department Head to counseling or disciplinary action. Completed employee performance evaluations
shall be placed in the employee’s personnel file. The Town Administrator will perform an annual performance
evaluation for all Department Heads.

As important as these written performance/appraisals are, they are not meant as substitutes for ongoing
discussions between employees and their supervisors about their performance. Annual step pay increases, not
classified as COLA, will be tied to an employee’s minimum acceptable performance. Employees must not be
under any formal discipline or a performance improvement plan and receive an overall ‘meets expectations” rating
to receive their step pay raise for the year, which will be effective on the next pay period beginning after their
actual hire/promotion date anniversary.

3.3 BENEFITS
A list of current benefits is available from the Town recorder.

3.4 HOURS OF WORK
The standard work week for each department will be determined by the department head with approval of the
Town Administrator. Up to one hour will be allowed for an unpaid lunch, including travel time, and will not be
considered part of the regular workday.

3.5 ATTENDANCE
Employees shall attend their assigned places of work in accordance with the policies regarding hours of work,
holidays, and leave. If an employee, for some unavoidable reason, cannot report for work, they shall notify their
supervisor or department head at least 30 minutes prior to the start of their assigned work shift. The Department
Head will set the department specific notification process. Failure on the part of an employee to comply with these
policies may be cause for non-payment for the workday absence, and/or disciplinary action.

3.6 OVERTIME COMPENSATION
All non-exempt general employees shall receive overtime pay at the rate of one and one-half times their regular
rate of pay for each hour worked in excess of 40 hours, and non-exempt sworn police employees for each hour
worked in excess of 43 hours. All non-exempt general employees may also accrue compensatory time offin lieu of
overtime for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours (regular employees)/43 hours (sworn non-exempt police
employees) in any one work week so long as approved in advance by the employees' Department Head and the
Town Administrator and may accrue such compensatory time off up to a maximum of 80 hours.

Compensatory time, or overtime must be documented by a detailed explanation of the work or project(s) that
required working overtime hours in the workweek on each employee's timecard. All compensatory time off accrued
for all Town employees qualifying for compensatory time off, the time must be used by the end of the following
month.

Exempt employees who are paid by salary shall not be entitled to overtime compensation, additional holiday pay,
or compensatory time. However, exempt employees will be granted 60 hours of executive leave annually that
must be used during the fiscal year awarded, no accruals will be allowed or maintained, and at the end of the
fiscal year will be reset to 60 hours. Executive leave should be used and will not be paid out and should be utilized
in no less than 4-hour blocks and for no more than 16 consecutive hours (2-days). Executive leave should not be



routinely abutted with other types of leave to extend the overall time off. If an exempt employee wishes to use
executive leave, they must submit their request to the town administrator on the appropriate form. Executive leave
requests should be submitted at least 1 day in advance for requests of 4 to 8 hours, and 3 days in advance for
requests of more than 8 hours.

3.7 CALL OUT PAY
Employees in Public Works and Wastewater may be required to return to the Town to. When a non-exempt
employee, after departing from their regularly scheduled workplace, reports back to work for unscheduled service
after hours, the Town will pay him or her a minimum of two (2) hour's wages from the time he or she begins work
at the worksite until the time they leave the worksite. Each non-exempt employee who is called out will be paid at
one and one-half (1%%) times their regular hourly rate while on call-out duty.

3.8 MANDATORY UNIFORM ALLOWANCE
1. Uniforms, when required, will be provided by the Town. The cost to maintain those uniforms will also be paid
by the Town
2. Personal Protective Equipment. Full-time employees may be reimbursed for the purchase of safety-toe
protective footwear (including steel-toe shoes or steel-toe boots) and non-specialty prescription safety eye
wear as Personal Protective Equipment, or other equipment as defined in departmental SOP or as adopted
otherwise. Cost will be reimbursed up to $200 for steel toe boots and a winter coat one time per fiscal year.

41 VACATION LEAVE
Each full-ime regular employee shall eam vacation time in accordance with the following schedule (unless
additional benefits are negotiated at the time of job acceptance):

Years of Hours per weeks/hours PD hours earned per PD weeks/hours

Service pay period earned per year pay period / yearly earned per year
1-5 3.08 hours 2 weeks (80 hours) 3.23 hours 2 weeks (84 hours)
6-10 4.62 hours 3 weeks (120hr) 4.96 hours 3 weeks (129 hours)
11-15 6.16 hours 4 weeks (160hr) 6.62 hours 4 weeks (172 hours)
16-20 7.70 hours 5 weeks (200hr) 8.27 hours 5 weeks (215 hours)
20+ 9.23 hours 6 weeks (240hr) 9.92 hours 6 weeks (258 hours)

Vacation time can be carried over by no more than 80 hours into the next anniversary year, unless requested by
the employee and authorized by the Town Administrator/Manager in writing. If carry over exceeds 80 hours,
unused vacation leave will be converted into sick leave. Employees may be paid for up to two weeks of unused
vacation per year (anniversary). Vacation leave shall be taken on a normal workweek basis. Paid holidays falling
within a period of vacation leave shall not be counted as vacation. Each employee, upon retirement or voluntary
separation, including a 2-week notice to the town (actually worked), shall be paid for any unused vacation leave.

Unless there is an emergency, all employees shall provide their supervisor with at least two weeks' notice when
requesting vacation time. Department heads must apply for vacation leave to the Town Administrator for approval.

Vacation leave shall not accrue to any employee when an employee is on leave for more than (15) days in the
month, unless otherwise directed by the Town Administrator.

4.2 SICKLEAVE
Each regular full-time employee will accrue sick leave at the rate 4 hours per pay period or 6 hours per pay period




for full time police officers working 12-hour shifts. Employees may accumulate up to 720 hours of sick leave,
which may be carried over from one calendar year to another. Any unused sick leave in excess shall only be
credited as additional time worked when calculating the employee's retirement benefits towards TCRS retirement.
No employee shall be paid for accumulated sick leave. All accumulated sick leave shall expire upon an employee’s
separation from employment.

Employees become eligible to use sick leave in the following situations:
« When an employee is incapacitated by sickness or a non-job-related injury, or they are seeking medical,
dental, or other diagnosis or treatment.
« When necessary, care and attendance of a member of the employee's immediate family is approved by
a department head.
o When employees have received notice from their doctor that they may jeopardize the health of others
because they have been exposed to a contagious disease.

Sick leave benefits shall begin on the first day of such absence and shall continue for 10 work days or 80 hours.
Any additional time-off necessary shall be taken by utilizing Short-term Disability Insurance provided by the town
and can be supplemented by employee vacation time.

Sick leave shall be requested in advance for any non-emergency medical, dental, or other diagnosis or treatment.
Employees shall, when possible, notify their department head of their illness or incapacity before they are due to
report to work on the first day of any sick leave.

To prevent abuse of the sick leave privilege, department heads are required to satisfy themselves that an
employee is genuinely ill before sick leave is authorized. An absence due to sickness of 3 or more days
consecutively, or greater than 6 days cumulatively, may require a doctor's certificate. Sick leave may be denied,
and appropriate disciplinary action taken when an employee is shown to be abusing sick leave privileges.

Sick leave shall not accrue to any employee until the required eligibility period has elapsed, when an employee is
on leave for more than fifteen (15) days in the month, unless otherwise directed by the Town Administrator.

An employee, upon exhausting all earned sick leave, may use vacation. After an employee has exhausted their
accrued sick leave and vacation leave, leave without pay may be granted at the discretion of the Town
Administrator as a reasonable accommodation to persons with disabilities. Also, employees may be placed on
special leave without pay, or they may be terminated if unable to perform their job or another job with or without a
reasonable accommodation. Should employees later be able to return to work, upon presentation of certification
by a doctor, they may be given preference for employment in a position for that they are qualified, with the approval
of the Town Administrator.

Employees may not borrow against future sick leave.

4.3 HOLIDAY LEAVE
The Town shall recognize and observe all holidays officially designated by the federal government, including any
future amendments, deletions, or additions to the federal holiday schedule, which shall be automatically
incorporated herein. In addition, the Town reserves the right to designate discretionary holidays (notated™).
Therefore, the following shall be paid holidays for all full-ime employees and shall be observed on the dates and
days as prescribed by law:

New Year’s Day Juneteenth Thanksgiving Day
Martin Luther King Jr. Day Independence Day Thanksgiving Day After**
Washington’s Birthday Labor Day Christmas Eve**

Good Friday* Columbus Day Christmas Day

Memorial Day Veterans Day



The Town offices, except essential services, shall be closed on official holidays. When a holiday falls on Saturday,
it shall be observed on the preceding Friday. When a holiday falls on a Sunday, it shall be observed on the following
Monday.

All regular full-time non-exempt employees required to work on a Town-observed holiday will receive straight time
holiday pay, and in addition will be paid for hours worked on the Town-observed holiday at the rate of one and
one-half times their regular rate of pay. Emergency services personnel and sewer personnel will utilize the actual
holiday for observance.

If a holiday occurs while an employee is on Workers' Compensation leave or other disability compensation leave,
and is not using sick leave or vacation leave, no credit for the holiday shall be allowed. To receive pay for an
observed holiday, an employee must not have been absent on the workday immediately preceding or immediately
following the holiday unless on vacation time authorized by the supervisor or documented/excused sick leave on
such days.

4.4 CIVIL LEAVE

Employees are eligible for paid civil leave in the following situations:
1. When an employee is called to serve as a juror or is appointed to serve as a clerk or judge on an
election board, the employee is entitled to his regular pay.
2. For voting if the employees’ working hours prevent voting during the time the polls are open.
3. When an employee is called to perform emergency civilian duty.
4. When an employee is subpoenaed to appear in court on behalf of the Town.

An employee who is required by subpoena to appear in court as a plaintiff, defendant or witness on a personal
matter shall not be granted civil leave but may be granted vacation leave or leave without pay.

45 FUNERAL LEAVE

Up to three (3) days with pay may be granted for attendance of funerals of the immediate family of an employee.
Any additional days may be charged to vacation, sick leave, or taken as leave without pay with the approval of the
Department Head.

The employee’s immediate supervisor must first approve all funeral leave. In situations where several employees
wish to have time off to attend a funeral or funerals, discretion must be used by supervisory personnel so that
Town service can be maintained.

4.6 MILITARY LEAVE/VETERANS' RE-EMPLOYMENT

Any employee who is or becomes a member of the amed forces of the United States (including the Army, Amy Reserves,
Army National Guard, Navy, Naval Reserve, Marine Corps, Marine Corps Reserve, Air Force, Air Force Reserve, Air
National Guard, Coast Guard, Coast Guard Reserve, Commissioned Corps of the Public Health) and leaves work for initial
training for the Guard or Reserves, leaves work to join active-duty military, oris called to active duty, will be placed on military
leave. Such employee must present his/er supervisor or department head with advance notice of the active-duty orders.
The employee’s seniority, status and pay will remain unchanged during hisfher time of military leave. Continued heaith
insurance coverage will be offered up to 24 months. The Town will continue to pay the portions of the premiums they were
responsible for while the service member was employed if the leave is for fewer than 31 days. For military leaves longer
than 31 days the employee must pay up to 102% of the cost of premiums due for such policy. An employee wishing to
continue health insurance coverage during his/her military leave shall provide a mailing address where notices of premium
payments due may be sent.

The process for reinstatement of employees retuming from military leave begins when the employee submits an “application
for re-employment.” Said application must be submitted within ninety (90) days of the end of service, or from the end of
hospitalization continuing after discharge for a period of not more than one (1) year for an injuryfilliness related to deployment.
The retuming employee will be re-employed in the position they would have attained had they not been absent for military



service, with the same seniority, status and pay.

Any employee who is a member or may become a member of any reserve component of the armed forces of the United
States or of the Tennessee Army and Air National Guard will be entitied to a leave of absence from their respective duties
for periods of military service during which they are engaged in the performance of duty or training in the service of this state,
or of the United States, under competent orders. While on such leave, the employee will be granted paid leave up to twenty
(20) days in anyone (1) calendar year.

Qualified employees who seek paid leave under this policy must provide the official order calling for their service or training
to their supervisor. Employees serving in the National Guard or Military Reserve will receive full compensation for a pericd
of twenty (20) days of military leave each calendar year, excluding holidays and scheduled off days. Such leave will not be
charged to any form of accrued paid leave. An employee requesting miltary leave shall provide the Town the dates for
training and travel time in advance. After the twenty (20) working days of full compensation, the Town may provide partial
compensation to its employees while under competent orders. After the twenty (20) working days of full compensation,
members of any reserve component of the ammed forces of the United States, including members of the Tennessee amy
and air national guard, may use up to five (5) days of sick leave in lieu of vacation leave for the purposes of not having to
take leave without pay.

MILITARY RESERVISTS LEAVE

Active State Duty: Army/Air National Guard and TN State Guard, Civil Air Patrol
In addition to the leave of absence provided above, employees who are members of the Tennessee army and air national
guard on active state duty or the Tennessee state guard and civil air patrol shall be entitied fo an unpaid leave of absence
from their respective duties, without loss of time, pay not specifically related to leave of absence time, regular leave or
vacation, or impaiment of efficiency rating for all periods of service during which under competent orders he/she is engaged
in the performance of duty or training in the service of this state, including the performance of duties in an emergency.
Pursuant to T.C.A. § 42-7-102, members of the United States air force auxiliary civil air patrol who participate in a training
program for the civil air patrol, or in emergency and disaster services, as defined in T.C.A. § 58-2-101, are entitled to aleave
of absence with pay for a period of not more than fifteen (15) days during a calendar year for such purposes if the leave of
absence is at the request of the employee's wing commander or the wing commander's designated representative.
Employees granted leave are entitled to their regular salary during the time that they are away from their regular duties. Al
the rights and benefits of the employee continue as if a leave of absence had not been granted.
It is the responsibility of the employee to make arrangements with their department head for leave to attend monthly
meetings on regular off time, with the expectation that the paid leave granted herein will be applied to the annual training
periods required for reservists.
8-33-110. Unpaid leave for members of Tennessee army and air national guard, Tennessee state guard and civil air
patrol.
In addition to the leave of absence provided in § 8-33-109, all officers and employees of this state, or any department or
agency thereof, or of any county, municipality, school district, or other political subdivision, all other public employees of this
state and all private sector employees who are members of the Tennessee army and air national guard on active state duty
or the Tennessee state guard and civil air patrol shall be entitled to an unpaid leave of absence from their respective duties,
without loss of time, pay not specifically related to leave of absence time, regular leave or vacation or impairment of efficiency
rating for all periods of service during which under competent orders they are engaged in the performance of duty or training
in the service of this state, including the performance of duties in an emergency.

4.7 Workers Compensation
Town employees are subject to the provisions of the Tennessee Workers’ Compensation Actand are entitied to the
benefits of that law, whether by injury or occupational disease arising out of and in the course of employment.

Injury or occupational disease occurring out of and in the course of employment shall be reported to the Recorder
and/or supervisor as soon as possible and the Recorder shall file the necessary reports.

The Town Recorder will furnish information and reports concerning injuries, or alleged injuries, or occupational
diseases which are or may be within the scope of the Workers' Compensation Act, in order that proper medical



attention is provided, compensation and expenses are paid, investigation and determination of applicable benefit
eligibility may be made, and that compensation is terminated when the disability ceases or benefits are exhausted.

An employee entitled to be paid Workers' Compensation for temporary disability may be granted sick leave with full
pay for the first five (5) working days of such disability, excluding the day of injury (assuming such employee has
sufficient accumulated sick leave).

Worker's compensation pays an employee 66.67% of their weekly salary once the employee has been disabled
for more than seven (7) days. Compensation will be made as of the eighth day of disability due to an occupational
injury. If the employee is disabled for fourteen (14) days or more, worker's compensation will pay the employee
retroactively from the first full day of absence from work up to the return date to work. Employees receiving
worker's compensation payments may not supplement their pay with accrued paid leave. An employee who is
receiving Workers' Compensation for an injury or occupational disease arising from the course and scope of
employment, shall have the option of electing to use accumulated sick leave and/or vacation leave for the first
seven calendar days of Workers' Compensation leave. After such sick and/or vacation leave has been used, the
employee shall not be entitied to any compensation except that authorized by the Workman's Compensation Act.
Such injured employees shall be carried in a leave without pay status for a period not to exceed one (1) year after
which employment may cease.

Employees injured on the job that receive a restricted release or restricted permission to return to work may be
returned to their prior position if reasonable accommodation can be made without violating the medical
restriction(s) or does not pose a safety risk to themselves or others. Likewise, such an employee may be placed
in another position for which they are qualified within the Town if such an open position exists, and the injured
employee’s restrictions may be accommodated. Nothing herein should be construed as acommitment on the
part of the Town to make work or create a position for an injured employee.

4.8 ABSENCE WITHOUT LEAVE
Absence by an employee from place of duty not specifically authorized or covered in this manual shall be charged
as absence without leave. Absence without leave shall be in a non-pay status and may be cause for disciplinary
action, up to and including discharge.

4.9 FAMILY LEAVE
The Family and Medical leave policy is applicable to employees who have worked at least 12 months for the Town
and who have worked at least 1,250 hours during the preceding 12-month period, and work for an employer with
50 or more employees within 75 miles of the work site. Until such time the Town employs 50 or more employees,
no employees shall be deemed eligible under the Act.

5.1 WORKPLACE VIOLENCE

Employees are expected to maintain a productive work environment free from harassing or disruptive activity
including threats of physical violence. No form of bullying or harassment will be tolerated, including sexual
harassment and harassment based on race, color, religion, gender or gender identity, age, national origin,
disability, military status, genetic information, communication with an elected public official, free speech, refusing
to participate in or remain silent about illegal activities, exercising a statutory constitutional right or any right under
clear public policy, political affiliation, or any other basis protected by law. This policy applies to all Town employees,

elected officials, appointed officials, part-time/temporary employees, and contractors.
1. No employee or non-employee shall be allowed to harass any other employee or non-employee by exhibiting

behavior including, but not limited to, the following:

a. Verbal harassment - Verbal threats toward persons or property; the use of vulgar or profane
language directed towards others; disparaging or derogatory comments or slur; offensive flirtations




or propositions; verbal intimidation; exaggerated criticism or name-calling; spreading untrue or
malicious gossip about others.

b. Physical Harassment - Any physical assault, such as hitting, pushing, kicking, holding, impeding,
or blocking the movement of another person.

c. Visual Harassment - Displaying derogatory or offensive posters, cartoons, publications, or
drawings.

d. Bullyir?g - Workplace bullying refers to unwanted aggressive behavior that involves a real or
perceived power imbalance. The behavior is repeated, or has the potential to be repeated, over
time. The imbalance of power involves the use of physical strength, access to embarrassing
information, or popularity to control or harm others. This behavior may be performed by individuals
(or a group) directed towards an individual (or a group of individuals)

2. Allemployees, except those authorized to carry weapons for official job-related purposes, are prohibited from
carrying weapons while performing work for the Town.

3. Under no circumstances are the following items permitted on Town property, including Town-owned parking
areas, except when issued or sanctioned by the Town for use in the performance of the employee'’s job:

e dangerous chemicals; or
e explosives or blasting caps; or
o other objects carried for the purposes of injury or intimidation.

4. Charges of violence and harassment may be reported to any supervisory employee of the local government,
including the Town Administrator and the Mayor. The Town will promptly investigate reports of workplace
violence including suspicious individuals or activities. Depending on the severity of the charges or whether a
crime is committed, the Town Administrator may request that the Police Chief provide assistance or assume
responsibility for the investigation. All employees are required to assist during the investigation by providing
testimony, statements, and evidence, as required. Failure to cooperate or creating an interference may result
in disciplinary action.

5.2 HARASSMENT
Employees are obligated to report instances of harassment. Employees are also obligated to cooperate in every
investigation of harassment. The obligation includes, but is not limited to, coming forward with evidence, both
favorable and unfavorable, for a person accused of such conduct; fully and truthfully make written reports or
verbally answer questions when required to do so by the investigator. All employees are required to assist during
the investigation by providing testimony, statements, and evidence, as required. Failure to cooperate may result
in disciplinary action.

Copies of the investigative report with recommendations for appropriate action will be turned over to the Town
Administrator for further action. Anyone determined to be responsible for threats of, or actual violence, or other
conduct that is in violation of this policy will be subject to prompt disciplinary action up to and including termination.

The following actions constitute an unlawful practice and are absolutely prohibited by the Town when they affect
employment decisions, create a hostile job environment, cause distractions, or unreasonably interfere with work
performance. They are:

1. sexual harassment or unwelcome sexual advances,

2. requests for sexual favors.

3. verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature in the form of pinching, grabbing, patting, or
propositioning.
explicit or implied job threats or promises in return for submission to sexual favors.
inappropriate sexually oriented comments on appearance.
sexually oriented stories.
displaying sexually explicit or pornographic material, no matter how the material is

Nk



displayed; and/or

sexual assault on the job by supervisors, fellow employees, or non-employees

9. Demeaning insulting, intimidating or sexually suggestive written, recorded or electronically
transmitted materials (such as email, instant message, and intemet materials)

it

Employees must avoid any action or conduct which could be viewed as sexual or other discriminatory harassment.
Persons who engage in unlawful sexual or other discriminatory harassment will be subject to disciplinary action
up to and including termination of employment.

Employees and others will not be retaliated against for raising complaints of sexual or other discriminatory
harassment, unless the claim is one that is made in dishonest bad faith.

Making Harassment Complaints

Prevention is the best tool for the elimination of harassment. Therefore, the following rules shall be strictly enforced.
An employee who feels he/she is being subjected to harassment should immediately contact their supervisor or
the Town Administrator or any other individual with whom the employee feels the most comfortable.

The employee should be prepared to provide the following information:
(a) The employee’s name, department, and position title.
(b)The name of the person or persons committing the sexual harassment including their titles, if
known.
() The specific nature of harassment, how long it has gone on, and any adverse action (demotion, failure
to promote, dismissal, refusal to hire, transfer, etc.), taken against the employee because of the
harassment, or any other threats made against the employee because of the harassment. (d)Witnesses to
the harassment.
(e)Whether the employee has previously reported the harassment and, if so, when and to whom.

Reporting and Investigation of Harassment Complaints

The Town Administrator is the person designated by the Town to be the investigator of complaints of harassment
against employees. In the event the harassment complaint is against the Town Administrator, the investigator
shall be the Town attorney, or independent attorney provided by the Town's Employment Practices Liability
Insurance provider.

When an allegation of harassment is made by any employee, the person to whom the compliant is made shall
immediately prepare a report of the compliant according to the preceding section and submit it to the Town
Administrator.

The investigator shall make and keep a written record of the investigation, including notes of verbal responses
made to the investigator by the person complaining of harassment, witnesses interviewed during the investigation,
the person against whom the compliant of harassment was made, and any other person contacted by the
investigator in connection with the investigation.

Upon conclusion of the investigation, the investigator shall prepare a confidential report of the findings and present
them to the Town Administrator. The report shall include the written statement for the person complaining of
harassment, the written statement of witnesses, the written statement of the person against whom the compliant
of harassment was made, and all the investigator's notes connected to the investigation.

Action on Complaints of Harassment

Upon review of the investigator's report, the Town Administrator shall, within a reasonable time, determine whether
the conduct of the person against whom a harassment complaint has been made constitutes harassment in
violation of this policy. In making that determination, the Town Administrator shall look at the record as a whole
and at the totality of circumstances, including the nature of the conduct in question, the context in which the




conduct, if any, occurred, and the conduct of the person complaining.

If the Town Administrator determines that the complaint of harassment is well founded, in whole or in part, he/she
shall take prompt and effective remedial action against the employee found to have engaged in harassment, which
may include disciplinary action up to and including termination. To the extent possible, the disciplinary action
should be consistent with the nature and severity of the offense and may take into consideration such factors as
the effect of the offense on the complainant, or on employee morale and public perception of the offense.
Disciplinary action will be determined on a case-by-case.

A written record of the disciplinary action shall be kept, including verbal reprimands. In all events, an employee
found guilty of harassment shall be warned not to retaliate in any way against the person making the compliant of
harassment, witnesses or any other person connected with the investigation of the compliant of harassment.

In cases where the harassment is committed by a non-employee against a municipal government employee in the
workplace, the Town Administrator shall take whatever lawful action against the non-employee is necessary to
bring the harassment to an immediate end.

6.1 DRUG AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE POLICY
To provide a safe, healthy, productive, and drug-free working environment for its employees to properly conduct
the public business, the Town has adopted a drug and alcohol testing policy. The types of tests required are pre-
employment (for safety-sensitive positions), transfer (for certain safety sensitive positions), reasonable suspicion,
post-accident, random (for safety-sensitive positions), return-to-duty, and follow-up post rehabilitation testing. A
copy of the full policy can be obtained from the Town recorder.

6.2 TRAVEL POLICY
Employees shall be reimbursed for official travel in the performance of their duties, as well as for official
expenses personally incurred related to their position. A copy of Town of Mount Carmel approved Travel Policy is
available in the recorder’s office.

6.3 USE OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT
All local government vehicles and equipment are for official use only. No other person other than a local
government employee may operate a local government vehicle or piece of machinery. Passengers may be carried
only as part of official business. Drivers and/or operators must have a valid driver's license and other certifications
as required for a particular vehicle or piece of equipment and be approved by the department head or the Town
Administrator.

Any employee who is required as an employment condition to possess and maintain a valid driver's or commercial
driver's license or any employee who drives a Town vehicle must immediately, before reporting for duty the next
workday, inform his/her supervisor if his/her license becomes denied, expired, restricted, suspended, or revoked
any time during employment with the local government. A periodic review (no less than once every three (3) years)
of employees’ driving records will be conducted by the Town Administrator or their designee. If a town vehicle
becomes damaged or is found to be damaged, the employee must immediately notify their supervisor.

6.4 PERSONAL /BUSINESS CELL PHONES
Employees should ensure personal cell phones do not interfere with their work or the Town'’s operations. Cell
phones shall be turned off or set to silent or vibrate mode during meetings, conferences and in other locations
where incoming calls may disrupt normal workflow.



Business cell phones are typically provided to positions that require immediate and on-going communication due
to management responsibilities, field operations and emergency response purposes. Since they are provided to
conduct Town business, the employee should limit personal usage to calls that are essential. If an individual is
abusing the privilege of using a Town cell phone, disciplinary action may be taken, along with discontinuation of
the use of the Town cell phone. Employees must be aware that any electronic communication devices owned by
the Town are open to audit for monetary and/or content review or for any purpose and are always subject to
public record requests.

6.5 CUSTOMER COURTESY
All contact with customers, citizens, and coworkers should be managed in a professional manner.
Professionalism, politeness, and courtesy are essential. Lack of courtesy and professionalism may result in
disciplinary action.

6.6 ATTENDANCE AND PERSONAL CONDUCT
Employees are expected to report to work as scheduled, on time and prepared to start working. Employees also
are expected to remain at work for their entire work schedule. Late arrival, early departure or other absences from
scheduled hours are disruptive and must be avoided.
Employees are representatives of the Town and as such, are expected and encouraged to conduct themselves
always in a manner so as not o bring discredit upon the Town of Mount Carmel. Employees engaging in activities
that are harmful to public perception of the Town may face disciplinary action.

6.7 DRESS CODE
Non-Uniform
Personal appearance and manner of dress is an important part of your job responsibilities. Employees are
expected to dress and groom in a manner which reflects good taste, and which is appropriate for the type of work
performed. Since all employees deal with co-workers and the public daily, personal hygiene is a requirement.
Employees should ensure their personal hygiene will not be offensive to others around them. This includes but is
not limited to — scented body products, perfume/cologne, oral hygiene, and body odor. An employee who does
not meet the standards of this policy will be required to take corrective actions, which may include leaving the
premises. Any work time missed because of failure to comply with this policy will not be compensated, and
repeated violations of this policy may be cause for disciplinary action.
Uniform
In departments where uniforms are provided, all employees are expected to wear the uniform according to
departmental policy. All uniforms are expected to be kept neat and in good repair. There may be an allowance
allotted and/or uniforms will be provided for those employees required to wear uniforms and is specific to their
respective department.

6.8 NON-SMOKER PROTECTION ACT
The Town complies with the Non-Smoker Protection Act of 2007 which prohibits smoking in all public places such
as buildings, equipment, and Town-owned vehicles. All employees who operate Town-owned vehicles are
prohibited from smoking in the vehicle or piece of equipment. Violators of this policy will be subject to disciplinary
action.

6.9 COMPUTER USE AND MONITORING
Computers, the Internet, and e-mail, as with other technologies, should be used to maximize the Town’s efforts in
serving its citizens. It is every employee's duty to use the Town's computer resources and communication devices
responsibly, professionally, ethically, and lawfully. These policies are not intended to, and do not, grant users any
contractual rights. The term “Computer Resources” refers to the Town's computers, electronic equipment, and its
entire computer network



Computer Use Policy Overview

The computer resources are the property of the Town and should be used for legitimate business purposes. While
personal use of Town computer resources, including the Interet and electronic mail is not forbidden, it is
discouraged. Personal use shall be minimal and shall not interfere with the performance of job duties and
responsibilities. Users are permitted access to the computer to assist them in performing their jobs. Confidential
information or other information that would cause citizens to lose confidence in the Town or its personnel should
not be provided using e-mail or shared with individuals outside the Town’s employment ranks.

No one may use loopholes or acts of subterfuge within the computer security systems or knowledge of a special
password to damage computer systems, to compromise sensitive information, to obtain extra resources, to take
resources from another user, to gain access to systems or to use systems from which proper authorization has
not been given. Users may not impersonate other individuals or misrepresent themselves.

Use of the computer is a privilege that may be restricted or revoked at any time. All information contained in the
computer and all documents generated there from are for the exclusive use of the Town in connection with the
conduct of its business and are the sole property of the Town.

Waiver of Privacy Rights
Users expressly waive any right of privacy in anything they create, store, send or receive using a town computer.

Compliance with Laws and Licenses
In their use of computers, users must comply with all software licenses and copyrights and all state, federal and
international laws governing intellectual property and online activities.

Communication of Trade Secrets
Unless expressly authorized by the Town, sending, transmitting, or otherwise disseminating proprietary data, trade
secrets or other confidential information of the Town is prohibited.

Use of Encryption Software
Users may not install or use encryption software on any computers without first obtaining written permission from
the Town.

Monitoring Usage
The Town has the right to monitor sites visited by employees on the Internet, monitoring chat groups and
newsgroups, reviewing material downloaded or uploaded by users to the Internet, and reviewing e-mail sent and
received by others. Employee violations of any of the provisions outlined in this policy may subject employee to
disciplinary action.

Public Records

All employee correspondence in the form of electronic mail, including computers, computer files, software, Internet
access, voice mail and the e-mail system, are public records under the Tennessee Public Records Act and may
be subject to public inspection under the law.

6.10 SOCIAL MEDIA USE AND INTERNET POSTING
This policy applies to every employee, whether part-time, full-time, currently employed by the Town of Mount
Carmel in any capacity who posts any material whether written, audio, video or otherwise on any website, blog or
any other medium accessible via the internet.

The policy applies to municipal employees posting content to non-Town created social media platforms in their
personal capacity. Employees are prohibited from posting anything on the internet that could be construed as an
act of unlawful harassment, a threat, or other evidence of discrimination. Employees should limit their personal
internet activities to non-working hours, meal periods and/or rest breaks.

An employee may not characterize him or herself as representing the Town, directly or indirectly, in any online



posting unless pursuant to a written policy of the Town or at the direction of a supervisor.

The simultaneous use of a Town email address, job title, official Town name, or logo in conjunction of a posting
shall be evidence of an attempt to represent the Town in an official capacity. Other communications leading a
reasonable viewer to conclude that a posting was made in an official capacity shall also be deemed evidence to
represent the Town in an official capacity.

Any postings on non-Town social media made in an official capacity may be subject to the Tennessee Open
Records Act.

When posting in a personal social media account an employee should take reasonable care to distinguish that his
content is a personal expression and not that of the agency.

Employees who violate the terms of this policy are subject to discipline up to and including termination.

6.11 RECORDING AND CAMERA DEVICES
Electronic recorders are prohibited, except when the use of an audio recorder is part of the employee’s job
responsibilities as strictly defined within hisfher job description. Electronic recordings are allowed during official
Board of Mayor and Aldermen and other various commission meetings. Audio recordings may also be utilized
during disciplinary or grievance hearings for documentation purposes at the discretion of the Department Head
and/or Town Administrator. Failure to comply will result in prompt disciplinary actions.

6.12 DISCIPLINARY ACTION
The Town'’s progressive discipline process is designed to provide a structured corrective action process to improve
and prevent a recurrence of undesirable employee behavior and performance issues.

The Town reserves the right to discharge employees at will, for cause or for no reasen, except that no employee
will be discharged for reasons that are prohibited by state and federal law. Acceptable disciplinary actions include,
but are not limited to:
e Retraining
Personal Improvement Plan
Counseling and verbal warning
Written warning
Suspension/probation and final written warning
Suspension or Termination

Behavior that is illegal, and/or involves theft, substance abuse, infoxication, fighting and any other acts of violence
or threats at work may not be subject to routine or normal progressive discipline, and may result in immediate
termination. Such behavior may also be reported to the appropriate local law enforcement authorities.

All employees are required to promptly self-report any criminal charges, arrests, or convictions to Town
Administration or their immediate supervisor, as such disclosures are essential to maintaining the integrity, safety,
and compliance standards of the Town.

Employees who have been terminated for cause are not eligible for rehire.

71 CODE OF ETHICS
The code of ethics for personnel of the municipality was adopted in 2007. By Ordinance 320. It applies to all full-
time and part-time elected or appointed officials and employees, whether compensated or not, including those of
any separate board, commission, committee, authority, corporation, or other instrumentality appointed or created



by the municipality.

7.2 TERMINATION, ACCOUNTABILITY AND DISCLOSURE ACT
All employees are responsible for disclosing conflicts of interest. This could include, but is not limited to, the hiring
of immediate family members, using confidential information to obtain financial gain, the use of Town personnel,
resources, property, supplies or funds for personal use or gain or entering certain contracts without having an
open bidding process and voting on issues where personal gain is involved.

7.3 GENETIC INFORMATION AND NONDISCRIMINATION ACT

The Town of Mount Carmel is committed to providing a work environment free of discrimination and harassment
based on genetic information. It is the Town's policy to notify employees and health care providers not to provide
genetic information when the Town requests health related information. The notice should be included on request
forms and/or provided on a separate form when employees or healthcare providers are asked to submit health-
related information.

It is the Town’s policy to comply with GINA's confidentiality requirements by treating genetic information in the
same way as medical information. It is also the policy of the Town not to retaliate against any employee for
complaining about discrimination or harassment based on genetic information. If you feel you have been
discriminated against or retaliated against, or harassed based on genetic information, follow the complaint
procedure detailed in the workplace harassment policy.

7.4 AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA/ADAAA)
The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and the Americans with Disabilities Amendments Act (ADAAA) are
federal laws that require employers with 15 or more employees to not discriminate against applicants and
individuals with disabilities and, when needed, to provide reasonable accommodations to applicants and
employees who are qualified for a job, with or without reasonable accommodations, so that they may perform the
essential job duties of the position.

The Town is committed to the fair and equal employment of individuals with disabilities under the ADA. It is the
Town's policy to provide reasonable accommodation to individuals with disabilities who are qualified for the job in
question unless the accommodation imposes an undue hardship on the Town. The Town prohibits any harassment
of, or discriminatory treatment of, employees based on a disability or because an employee has requested
reasonable accommodation.

In accordance with the ADA, reasonable accommodations will be provided to qualified individuals with disabilities
to enable them to perform the essential functions of their jobs or to enjoy the equal benefits and privileges of
employment. This policy applies to all applicants for employment and all employees.

Eligibility

The ADA policy applies to any qualified individual with a disability who can perform the essential functions of the
job with, or without, reasonable accommodation.

Disability

“Disability" refers to a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activities. A
“qualified person with a disability” means an individual with a disability who has the requisite skills, experience,
and education for the job in question, and who can perform the essential functions of the job with or without
reasonable accommodation.

Reasonable Accommodation

The Town will seek to provide a reasonable accommodation for a known disability or at the request of an individual
with a disability. A “reasonable accommodation” is any change or adjustment to the job application process, work
environment, or work processes that would make it possible for the individual with a disability to perform the
essential functions of the job and does not place undue hardship on the Town.

Essential Job Functions

For each position, the job description typically will identify essential job functions. The Town Administrator will




review job descriptions on a periodic basis to evaluate job functions designated as essential. An applicant's or
employee’s questions about a job's requirements should be directed to their supervisor.

Regquesting Reasonable Accommodation(s)

An applicant or employee with a disability is responsible for requesting accommodation(s) from the Town
Administrator or designee and engaging in an informal process to clarify what the applicant or employee needs
and to identify possible accommodations. The Town will inform the applicant or employee of his/her rights under
the ADA and document the interactive process discussions. An applicant or employee may be required to provide
documentation from an appropriate professional, such as a doctor or a rehabilitation counsellor, conceming the
applicant's disability and functional limitations. If an applicant or employee disagrees with the result of the medical
examination, the applicant or employee may request a second examination performed and paid for by the
applicant or employee. In the event of a disagreement in the two previous medical opinions, a third opinion may
be obtained with both parties sharing the cost of the examination.

The applicant or employee should describe the problem created by a workplace barrier so that appropriate
accommodation(s) may be considered. Typically, the Town Administrator will collaborate with the applicant or
employee to identify possible reasonable accommodations and to assess the effectiveness of each in allowing
the applicant or employee to complete the hiring process or perform the essential functions of the job.

Based on this interactive process, reasonable accommodations will be selected that are appropriate for both the
Town and the individual. While an individual's preference will be considered, the Town is free to choose between
equally effective accommodations with consideration toward expense and impact on the rest of the organization.
A request for reasonable accommodation may be denied if it would create an undue hardship for the Town. The
Town Administrator will provide notification in writing of denial based on undue hardship. Factors to be considered
when determining whether an undue hardship exists include the cost of the accommodation, the organization's
overall financial resources, the financial resources of the facility at which the accommodation is to be made, the
number of employees at the facility, the total number of employees of the organization, and the type of operation.
Safety

All employees are expected to comply with all safety procedures. The Town Administrator will not place qualified
individuals with disabilities in positions in which they will pose a direct threat to the health or safety of others or
themselves. A “direct threat” means a significant risk to the health or safety of oneself or others that cannot be
eliminated by reasonable accommodation. The determination that an individual with a disability poses a direct
threat typically will be made by the Town Administrator and will be based on factual, objective gvidence. A written
copy of the determination will be given to the applicant or employee so that he or she may submit additional
information and/or challenge the determination that he or she poses a direct threat.

Confidentiality

All information obtained concerning the medical condition or history of an applicant or employee will be treated as
confidential information, maintained in separate medical files, and disclosed only as permitted by law.

Complaint Procedure

It is the policy of the Town to prohibit any harassment of, or discriminatory treatment of, applicants or employees
based on a disability for requesting a reasonable accommodation. If an individual feels he or she has been subject
to such treatment or has witnessed such treatment, the situation may be reported to any supervisory employee of
the Town including the Town Administrator. The Town's policy prohibits retaliation against an applicant or
employee for exercising his or her rights under the ADA or applicable state fair employment laws. Any employee
found to have engaged in retaliation against an applicant or employee for exercising his or her rights or for making
a request for reasonable accommodation under this policy will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including
discharge. If an applicant or employee feels he or she has been retaliated against, the situation may be reported
to any supervisory employee of the Town, or any of the following, the Town Administrator, department head or
Town recorder.




APPENDIX A - ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT - MOUNT CARMEL PERSONNEL POLICY

This is to acknowledge that | have received a copy of the Town of Mount Carmel (‘the Town’) Personnel Policy
and understand that it outiines certain Town policies, procedures and benefits as may exist at the time of
publication. | understand that it is my responsibility to familiarize myself with all information within the Personnel
Regulations.

| understand that the Personnel Regulations do NOT constitute a contract or agreement of any kind; it is merely a
statement of policies and procedures. | understand that the contents of the Personnel Regulations do not confer
any rights on, promises to me, or guarantee my employment for any period. | understand that the Town can alter,
eliminate, or otherwise change any policy, information, or benefit described in the Personnel Regulation (exceptthe
“at-will" employment policy), without notice, at any time and it is my responsibility to review the manual periodically
on the website to observe any recent changes.

| understand that my employment with the Town is employment at will and can be terminated by me of
the Town at any time for any reason or no reason. | understand that, although other terms and conditions
of my employment may change, this at-will employment relationship will remain in effect throughout my
employment with the Town. | understand that this at-will relationship may not be modified by any oral or
implied promises or agreements. | understand that no employee has a right to continued employment by
virtue of anything stated or inferred in the Personnel Regulations.

| understand that nothing in the Personnel Regulations or any summary brochure or employee handbook should
be deemed to be a promise by the Town to provide any benefit. Rather, the Town reserves the right to alter or
eliminate any benefit, without notice, at any time.

| understand that the Personnel Regulations replaces (supersedes) all prior Town policies and all prior Town
Personnel regulations, employee handbooks or manuals, and any information contained in any such prior policy,
handbook, or manual is no longer in effect.

| understand and agree that all Town property must be retumed upon separation from employment. By signing
below, | understand and agree that the Town may deduct from my final paycheck any pre-funded benefit and any
other amount due (on a depreciated/prorated basis) for failure to return Town property if the deduction(s) do not
reduce final pay to below minimum wage.

Employee Signature

Date



APPENDIX B - ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM - EMPLOYEE DRUG & ALCOHOL TESTING POLICY

As an applicant or an employee, | have carefully read the Town of Mount Carmel's drug and alcohol testing policy.
| have received a copy of the Town of Mount Carmel's drug and alcohol testing policies, understood its
requirements, and agreed without reservation to follow this policy. As an applicant, | am aware that my offer of
employment is conditional upon the results of a drug and/or alcohol test. As an employee, | am aware that | may
be required to undergo drug and/or alcohol tests, that | will be informed prior to the drug and/or alcohol test, and
that | may be subject to immediate dismissal if | refuse to take the test.

As an applicant or an employee with the Town of Mount Carmel, [ hereby consent to and acknowledge that | am
scheduled to undergo drug and/or alcohol testing. The test for alcohol will be a breath analysis test. The drug test
will involve an analysis of a urine sample, which | will provide at a designated site. The purpose of the test will be
to evaluate for the presence of the following substances: amphetamines, marijuana, cocaine, opiates, PCP,
alcohol, and/or any additional drugs listed in the Tennessee Drug Control Act. | authorize qualified personnel to
take and have analyzed appropriate specimens to determine if drugs and/or alcohol are present in my system. I
acknowledge that the drug/alcohol test results will be made available to the testing laboratory, medical review
officer (MRO), the (personnel director), or his/her designee. As an applicant, | am aware that a confirmed and
verified positive drug/alcohol test result will rescind my conditional offer of employment. As an employee, | am
aware that a confirmed and verified positive test result may lead to disciplinary action up to and including immediate
dismissal. | will present a copy of this form to the collection site when | report for my scheduled drug/alcohol test.
| also understand that failure to provide adequate breath for testing without a valid medical explanation, failure to
provide adequate urine for controlled substances testing without a valid medical explanation and engaging in
conduct that clearly obstructs the testing process are the same as refusing to test.

Name of Applicant or Employee Social Security Number
Department Supervisor Department
(Signature of Applicant or Employee) Date

(Signature of Witness)



APPENDIX C - TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL EMPLOYEE PAY PLAN

ADOPTED PAY PLAN - FY 2025/26 TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TN

£6:088'721$ | v0°09%

45857 eTTS | Sv'vas

£6'7G8'26$ | Y0'LYS

Ge'88T'v8% | 0L'Le$

96°01€CLS | 9L VES

9L916'65$ | 19828

85°9L1°61$

r81$

G0'Se8TCI¢ | L9898

y1967°0T1$ | C1°ES$

LT997'56$ | 067§

75760288 | 898

8T LYS0LS | T6'EES

81'¢90'84§ | 16'LC$

98'80L'87$

66L1$

9r'e98'811¢ | G1°L9§

CIT08'L01$ | £876$

£8'L81°668 | 8LYY$

L8'977°088 | 88'5€$

19978'89% | 60'€E$

00'Ly9'9$ | £2'LC$

HATARY

AR

Gey96'G11¢ | G998

8TL1'901$ | 95°06$

L1'998'06$ | 69°€v$

croLeeLs | o0Ged

T6LYT'L9¢ | 8TTE$

L£'697°65$ | LG9S

9e'L08'LT$

AVAR)

G6'3eT'eTT$ | 6EVSS

99'909'201¢ | £€'67$

£6'679'88$ | 29§

60798'9L$ | ST'VES

9T'015'69$ | 09'1¢$

er'L16°¢5$ | 76'5C$

OeLE LTS

0,918

yS9L8°01T$ | L0°€GS

G0707°00T$ | €1'8%$

€LL8Y'988 | 89TH$

7986v'vL$ | TEEES

9e716'€9¢ | €L0c$

L£709'75¢ | 67°5C$

1€'676'97$

0£'91$

EVy89L0T$ | LL798

6v°99'L6 § | S6'9F$

878LEW8S | LSOV$

857897L$ | 16CES

15'€5e79$ | 86'6T$

6616148 | L97C$

16'G6591$

06'51$

86'£60°50T¢ | 19098

87'082°%6 § | 18579

LT07ET8$ | 8G'6ES

98'806'0L$ | TLTES

0L7Te809$ | GT6T$

0L'£90°05$ | L0YT$

65276191

16°61$

65367701 | 8679

95'996'76 § | 6977$

or'TIe0ss | 1986$

8¢'6L1°698 | v6'0£$

86'87€'65$ | £'8C$

£5'9r8'8y$ | 87°€T$

AN TR

AR

0£°566'66 § | L0'BY$

£€'689°06 § | 09°€r$

79€58'8L$ | L97LE$

80'76v'L98 | 81°0€$

Iy 106'.6$ | v8'Le8

91'989'Lv$ | 16CC$

AR

9L11$

899516 § | 06978

0v'LLY'88 § | ¥STrS

qGTry9LS | G988

£6'678'98 | 57'67$

1768795 ¢ | 9T'LT$

£8°T6Y'9v$ | GETC$

7L086'T$

or1$

GELLT'GE § | 9LGS

T7'61€'98 § | 05T7$

0T'8L5YL$ | G8'GES

£6'6£2 798 | £L'8C$

rIIress | 059z$

98°85¢'sr$ | 18°72$

£eaT9vT$

01§

96'968'76 § | Y9VV$

90v1Zv8 § | 67 0v$

CI6SLTLS | 86ES

01°€£9'79¢ | £0'82$

T 19,86 | 68'5T$

G6TST s | 8TTC$

98'857¥1$

1L¢1$

L1'76506 § | S9er$

90'09178 § | 09°6€$

15786°0L8 | ETHES

6Y'7v1'19¢ | 6€°LT$

ag'5ar'ee$ | coacs

ceeLrers | 9L0c8

80'TT6ET$

8e'eT$

£978¢'98 ¢ | 67'TY$

qT'95T'08 § | ¥5'8E$

81'€52'69$ | 6Cee$

91'659'65$ | 89°9C$

ProL1TS$ | 099C$

120e1er$ | ST0Ts

BLTLGETS

GO'ET$

8660798 § | G178

e1'10z'8L § | 098§

80'795°£9$ | 87'7E$

07'861'85$ | £0'9C$

£79C6'6Y$ | 009C$

68°760TY$ | 9L6T$

LLoveeT$

INAR)

0672178 § | v Ov$

8,°€62°9L $ | 89'9€$

L1'916'69$ | 697E$

YL8LL9SS | 68'ST8

LYoTLer$ | Trees

£9°060°07$ | LT6T$

£8'L16TT$

[A4ARS

ET'TL078 § | 9v'6eS

96'7er'vL § | 6LGE$

9v'80£9$ | 76'08$

68'66€'G9$ | LL VTS

1wees'Lv$ | 98°7es

T8TIT'68$ | 08'81$

9/'709CT$

TANARS

6£'690°08 § | 67'8€$

75197, § | 161ES

96'66L729$ | 9T°0¢$

weTr0'e$ | LTve$

7ee9e'$ | 60TC$

£9'851'8E$ | GE'819

JER AR

8118

879118, § | 95L8$

9e'v8'0L § | 90'vES

L60279¢ | ev'6Ts

0L1TLTe8 | 85°€T$

15TeT'sr$ | SLTTS

e1'82C'L8$ | 06°L1$

87'566'TT$

£qT1$

0CTITIL § | v992$

0v'811'69 § | £TEES

08'91L'65$ | 1L8C$

EL9EYTSS | 00°ET$

A TAN R RRAATAS

£1°0ce'9e$ | I L1$

16770L71$

TANR

Jenuuy

79pelg
JOIRISIUIPY UMO]

Aunoy

Jenuuy

Xapew
JOJENISILIWIPY UMOL
JUBISISSy

Aoy

lenuuy

napei
$10)2211q Juawyedag

Aunoy

Jenuuy

dapess
3004

Anoy

Jenuuy

Napei9
uoddng sanensiuupy

Aunoy

lenuty
fapei)
SHoManang

Anoy

Jenuuy

Alnoy

¥ apeig
slll]-ugq

0zdaig
61 daig
81 dag
L1435
91 dag
grdaig
p1 dais
g1 dais
t1dag
T1dag
ot dai
6 doig
gdaig
Ldaig
gdais
g doig
pdaig
g doig
gdaig
Tdaig
fnu3




MOUNT CARMEL

._7@/1-/44:6 % ,anz‘z/aw,n a0l

LEGISLATIVE MEMORANDUM

TO: Honorable Mayor Gibson, Vice Mayor Bare, and Alderman Gilliam,
Alderman Patrick, Alderman Shugart, Alderman Binstock, Alderman Cross

THRU: James Stables, City Manager

FROM: Tyler Williams, Assistant City Manager/CFO

DATE: June 26, 2025

RE: RESOLUTION NO. 25-654

SUMMARY:

Discussion and Consideration of Resolution 25-654, which authorizes the Town to commit
an additional $29,125.00 to the CDBG ladder truck purchase grant. This amount was
already included in the FY 26 budget, but the State is requiring BMA action via a
resolution to show the funds are committed.

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT(S):
Administration/Fire

FISCAL IMPACT:

$29,125.00 (already budgeted for FY 26)
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends approval
ATTACHMENTS:

Resolution No. 25-654



MOUNT CARMEL

A place 2 put dawrn soals

RESOLUTION 25-654

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE TO COMMIT
THE ADDITIONAL FUNDS NEEDED FOR THE LADDER TRUCK PURCHASE WITH
THE CDBG GRANT

WHEREAS, bids were opened on May 22, 2025, for the MCFD Ladder Truck Purchase project;
and

WHEREAS, the low bidder was West Fargo Rural Fire Department (brokered by Brindlee
Mountain Fire Apparatus LLC) for a total bid of $520,000.00; and

WHEREAS, the original amount budgeted for the vehicle was $490,875.00; $392,700.00 from
the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and $98,175.00 in grantee match funds;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen meeting at
Mount Carmel, Tennessee, on this 26™ day of June, 2025, that:

SECTION 1. The Town of Mount Carmel hereby commits to provide the additional funds
needed for the purchase of the used Ladder Truck in the amount of $29,125.00.

SECTION 2. The Town of Mount Carmel! hereby authorizes the Mayor of the Town of Mount
Carmel to sign and thus, execute all applicable documents related to the CDBG Ladder Truck
Purchase Project.

This Resolution shall take effect immediately, the public welfare requiring it.

ADOPTED this 26" day of June, 2025.

John Gibson, Mayor

Attest:
Tyler Williams, Town Recorder




MOUNT CARMEL

%/yﬁﬁe Zo pet o g re 40.079

LEGISLATIVE MEMORANDUM

TO: Honorable Mayor Gibson, Vice Mayor Bare, and Alderman Gilliam,
Alderman Patrick, Alderman Shugart, Alderman Binstock, Alderman Cross

THRU: Tyler Williams, Assistant City Manager/CFO

FROM: John K. Gibson, Mayor

DATE: June 26, 2025

RE: DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION: Carter’s Valley Fire Dept. Request for
Turkey Shoots

SUMMARY:

The Carter’s Valley Fire Department is requesting approval to conduct Turkey Shoots
within the Town limits.

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT(S):

Mayor

FISCAL IMPACT:

N/A

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends approval
ATTACHMENTS:

None



MOUNT CARMEL

0{/: lace Te pat lowrt sa.eld

LEGISLATIVE MEMORANDUM

TO: Honorable Mayor Gibson, Vice Mayor Bare, and Alderman Gilliam,
Alderman Patrick, Alderman Shugart, Alderman Binstock, Alderman Cross

THRU: James Stables, City Manager

FROM: Tyler Williams, Assistant City Manager/CFO

DATE: June 26, 2025

RE: DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION: Surplus Items

SUMMARY:

Administration requests consideration and approval to surplus the following items:

e Up to ten (10) burgundy executive chairs (formerly used in BMA meeting room)
e One (1) walk-through metal detector

These items have met their useful and expected life cycle and are no longer needed for effective use
in the Town.

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT(S):
Administration

FISCAL IMPACT:

Unknown currently

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval
ATTACHMENTS:

None



MOUNT CARMEL

\7{/1 lace To ,an.?,‘ o e taald

LEGISLATIVE MEMORANDUM

TO: Honorable Mayor Gibson, Vice Mayor Bare, and Alderman Gilliam,
Alderman Patrick, Alderman Shugart, Alderman Binstock, Alderman Cross

THRU: Tyler Williams, Assistant City Manager/CFO

FROM: David Larson, Police Chief

DATE: June 26, 2025

RE: DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION: K-9 Enforcement Grant

SUMMARY:

The Police Department is requesting approval to pursue a K-9 enforcement grant. This
would afford the Town a K-9 dog valued at approximately $10,000-$15,000. The Town
would be obligated to send the K-9 officer to training, which would cost approximately
$5,000. The Town would also be responsible for ongoing maintenance, food, veterinary
care, etc. of the dog, as well as outfitting a police vehicle for a K-9 unit. All proposed
expenses would be paid from the Drug Fund.

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT(S):
Police
FISCAL IMPACT:

$5,000- training; outfit of vehicle for K-9 unit; ongoing maintenance, food, and veterinary
care (all paid by Drug Fund)

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval
ATTACHMENTS:



